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ARIZONA CORPORATION COMMISSION 

Amended Application and Petition for Certificate of Convenience and N e c e s & U w m f i o n  G~~~~~~~~~ 

DOCKETED Intrastate Telecommunications Services 

Mail original plus 13 copies of completed application to: 

Docket Control Center 
Arizona Corporation Commission 
1200 West Washington Street 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007-2927 

For Docket Control Only: 
(Please Stamp Here) JAN 2 4  2011 

DOCKETED f3Y 

Please indicate if you have current applications pending 
in Arizona as an Interexchange reseller, AOS provider, 
or as the provider of other telecommunication services. 

Type of Service: 

Docket No.: Date: Date Docketed: 

Type of Service: 

Docket No.: Date: Date Docketed: 

A. COMPANY AND TELECOMMUNICATION SERVICE INFORMATION 

(A-1) 
the appropriate box(s). 

Please indicate the type of telecommunications services that you want to provide in Arizona and mark 

Resold Long Distance Telecommunications Services (Answer Sections A, B). 

Resold Local Exchange Telecommunications Services (Answer Sections A, B, C). 

0 Facilities-Based Long Distance Telecommunications Services (Answer Sections A, B, D). 

Facilities-Based Local Exchange Telecommunications Services (Answer Sections A, B, C, D, E) 

Alternative Operator Services Telecommunications Services (Answer Sections A, B) a Other Resold and Facilities-Based IntraLATA and InterLATA Private Line Services 

(A-2) 
mail address, and World Wide Web address (if one is available for consumer access) of the Applicant: 

The name, address, telephone number (including area code), facsimile number (including area code), e- 

Zayo Group, LLC (“Zayo” or “Applicant” or the “Company”) 
400 Centennial Parkway, Suite 200 
Louisville, CO 80027 
Phone: 303-381-4664 
Fax: 303-226-5923 
sbeer@zayo.com 
www.zayo.com and www.zayo-bandwidth.com 
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(A-3) 
that listed in Item (A-2): 

The d/b/a ("Doing Business As") name if the Applicant is doing business under a name different from 

(A-4) 
E-mail address of the Applicant's Management Contact: 

The name, address, telephone number (including area code), facsimile number (including area code), ant 

Scott E. Beer 
VP, General Counsel & Secretary 
Zayo Group, LLC 
400 Centennial Parkway, Suite 200 
Louisville, CO 80027 
Phone: 303-381-4664 
Fax: 303-226-5923 
sbeer@zayo.com 

(A-5) 
E-mail address of the Applicant's Attorney andor Consultant: 

The name, address, telephone number (including area code), facsimile number (including area code), an( 

Michael T. Hallam 
Lewis & Roca 
40 North Central Avenue 
Suite 1900 
Phoenix, AZ 85004 
Phone: (602) 262-5340 
Fax: (602) 734-3886 
Mhallam@lrlaw.com 

with a copy to: 

Jean L. Kiddoo 
Brett P. Ferenchak 
Bingham McCutchen LLP 
2020 K Street N.W. 
Washington, DC 20006 
Phone: (202)373-6697 
Fax: (202)373-6001 
jean.kiddoo@Eingham.com 
brett.ferenchak @ bingham.com 

A-6) The name, address, telephone number (including area code), facsimile number (including area code), and 
E-mail address of the Applicant's Complaint Contact Person: 

Peter Chevalier 
Associate General Counsel 
Zago Group, LLC 
400 Centennial Parkway, Suite 200 
Louisville, CO 80027 
Phone: 303-414-4008 
Fax: 303-226-5039 
pchevalier@zayo.com 
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(A-7) What type of legal entity is the Applicant? Mark the appropriate box(s) and category. 

0 Sole proprietorship 

0 Partnership: Foreign - Limited, __ General, __ Arizona, ___ 

11 Limited Liability Company: -- Arizona, X Foreign 

Corporation: ___ I‘ S”, ___ T’, - Non-profi t 

Other, specify: 

(A-8) Please include “Attachment A”: 

Attachment “A” must include the following information: 

1. A copy of the Applicant’s Certificate of Good Standing as a domestic or foreign corporation, LLC, 
or other entity in Arizona. 

A list of the names of all owners, partners, limited liability company managers (or if a member 
managed LLC, all members), or corporation officers and directors (specify). 

2. 

The officers of Applicant are as follows: 

Dan Caruso (President & Chief Executive Officer) 
Scott E. Beer (Vice President, General Counsel & Secretary) 
Ken desGarennes (Vice President & CFO) 

The managers of Applicant are  as follows: 

Daniel P. Caruso 
Gillis Cashman 
John Siege1 
John A. Downer 
Michael Choe 
Rick Connor 
Don Detampel 

ll 

All officers and managers can be reached through Applicant’s principal place of business. 

3. 

Zayo is a direct subsidiary of Zayo Group Holdings, Inc. (“Holdings”), a Delaware corporation. 

Include your Tariff as “Attachment B“. 

Your Tariff -include the following information: 

1. 

Indicate percentages of ownership of each person listed in A-8.2. 

(A-9) 

Proposed Rates and Charges for each service offered (reference by Tariff page number). See 
Intrastate Telecommunications Services Tariff, pages 34-37. 

Tariff Maximum Rate and Prices to be charged (reference by Tariff page number). See Intrastate 
Telecommunications Services Tariff, pages 34-37. 

Terms and Conditions Applicable to provision of Service (reference by Tariff page number). See 
Intrastate Telecommunications Services Tariff, pages 9-28. 

Deposits, Advances, and/or Prepayments Applicable to provision of Service (reference by Tariff 
page number). See Intrastate Telecommunications Services Tzriff, pages 17-19. 

The proposed fee that will be charged for returned checks (reference by Tariff page number). See 
Intrastate Telecommunications Services Tariff, page 23. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 
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, 

(A-IO) Indicate the geographic market to be served: 

Statewide. (Applicant adopts statewide map of Arizona provided with this application). 

Other. Describe and provide a detailed map depicting the area. 0 
(A-1 1) Indicate if the Applicant or any of its officers, directors, partners, or managers has been or are currently 
involved in any formal or informal complaint proceedings pending before any state or federal regulatory 
commission, administrative agency, or law enforcement agency. 

Describe in detail any such involvement. Please make sure you provide the following information: 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

Neither Applicant nor any of its officers, directors, partners or managers has been or  a re  
currently the subject of any formal or informal complaint proceedings pending before any state or 
federal regulatory commission, administrative agency, or law ecforcement agency. 

(A-12) Indicate if the Applicant or any of its officers, directors, partners, or managers has been or are currently 
involved in any civil or criminal investigation, or had judgments entered in any civil matter, judgments levied by 
any administrative or regulatory agency, or been convicted of any criminal acts within the last ten (10) years. 

States in which the Applicant has been or is involved in proceedings. 

Detailed explanations of the Substance of the Complaints. 

Commission Orders that resolved any and all Complaints. 

Actions taken by the Applicant to remedy and/or prevent the Complaints from re-occurring. 

Describe in detail any such judgments or convictions. Please make sure you provide the following 
information: 

1. 

2. 

States involved in the judgments and/or convictions. 

Reasons for the investigation and/or judgment. 

3. Copy of the Court order, if applicable. 

Neither Applicant c3r any of its officers, directors, partners, or managers has been or are  
currently the subject of any civil or criminal investigation, o r  had judgment entered in or  any 
judgments levied by an  administrative agency or  regulatory agency, or  been convicted of any 
criminal acts within the last ten (10) years. 

Indicate if the Applicant's customers will be able to access alternative toll service providers or resellers (A-13) 
via I+IOlXXXX access. 

Yes 

To the extent Applicant provides basic local exchange services, Applicant's customers will be able 
to access alternative toll service provides o r  resellers via l+lOlXXXX access. 

07/07/06 
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(A-14) Is Applicant willing to post a Performance Bond? Please check appropriate box(.). 

For Long Distance Resellers, a $10,000 bond will be recommended for those resellers who collect 
advances, prepayments or deposits. 

Yes 0 No 17 
If "No", continue to question (A-15). - 

For Local Exchange Resellers, a $25,000 bond will be recommended. 

Yes 
If "No", continue to question (A-15). 

0 For Facilities-Based Providers of Long Distance, a $100,000 bond will be recommended. 

Yes 0 No 0 
If "No", continue to question (A-15). 

For Facilities-Based Providers of Local Exchange, a $100,000 bond will be rtcommended. 

Yes No 
If any box in (A-14) is marked "No", continue to question (A-15). 

Note: Amounts are cumulative if the Applicant is applying for more than one type of service. 

While Applicant is willing to post a Performance Bond, Applicant does not believe that a bond 
should be required because Applicant does not intend to provide telecommunications services to 
residential customers. Instead, Applicant will provide telecommunications services to enterprise 
and carrier customers. As described below, Applicant will primarily provide Private Line, 
Wavelength, Ethernet, Dedicated Internet Access and collocation services. Applicant notes that iis 
subsidiary, Zayo Bandwidth, LLC (L'ZB"), whose operations Applicant will assume upon 
completion of their merger, was not required to post a bond prior to providing private line 
services, but only prior to providing local exchange services. See Docket No. 3-20694A-09-0379, 
Decision No. 71784 at Para. 14 (July 30,2010). Applicant seeks similar treatment in this 
application. 

(A-IS) If any box in (A-14) is marked "No", provide the following information. Clarify and explain the 
Applicant's deposit policy (reference by tariff page number). Provide a detailed explanation of why the 
Applicant's superior financial position limits any risk to Arizona consumers. 

Applicant's deposit policy can be found on pages 17-19 of the Intrastate Telecommunications Tariff. 
Applicant does not intend to provide telecommunications services to residential customers. 

(A-16) Submit copies of affidavits of publication that the Applicant has, as required, published legal notice of 
the Application in all counties where the Applicant is requesting authority to provide service. 

Note: For Resellers, the Applicant must complete and submit an Affidavit of Publication Form as Attachment 
'C" before Staff prepares and issues its report. Refer to the Commission's website for Legal Notice Material 
(Newspaper Information, Sample Legal Notice and Affidavit of Publication). For Facilities-Based Service 
Providers, the Hearing Division will advise the Applicant of the date of the hearing and the pubiication of legal 
notice. Do not publish legal notice or file affidavits of publication until you are advised to do so by the Hearing 
Division. 

07/07/06 
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(A-17) Indicate if the Applicant is a switchless reseller of the type of telecommunications services that the 
Applicant will or intends to resell in Arizona: 

If “Yes”, provide the name of the company or companies whose telecommunications services the 
Applicant resells. 

Applicant will primarily provide services using its own facilities and facilities leased from other 

(A-18) List the States in which the Applicant has had an application approved or denied to offer 
telecommunications services similar to those that the Applicant will or intends to offer in Arizona: 

Note: If the Applicant is currently approved to provide telecommunications services that the Applicant intends to 
provide in Arizona in less than six states, excluding Arizona, list the Public Utility Commission (“PUC”) of each 
state that granted the authorization. For each PUC listed provide the name of the contact person, their phone 
number, mailing address including zip code, and e-mail address. 

Applicant is not currently authorized to provide telecommunications service in any state, but is 
seeking such authority in every state where certain of its subsidiaries currently provide 
telecommunications services so that it can provide those services to their customers upon 
completion of the intra-corporate consolidation described herein. Collectively, Zayo’s subsidiaries 
are currently authorized to provide telecommunications services in the District of Columbia and 
the following states: Arizona, California, Colorado, Delaware, Georgia, Idaho, Illinois, Indiana, 
Kansas, Kentucky, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, Missouri, Nevada, New Jersey, New York, 
North Carolina, Ohio, Gregon, Pennsylvania, Tennessee, Texas, Utah, Virginia, Washington and 
West Virginia. Applicant has not had an  application approved or  denied to offer 
telecommunications services in any state. 

(A-19) List the States in which the Applicant currently offers telecommunications services similar to those that 
the Applicant will or intends to offer in Arizona. 

Note: If the Applicant currently provides telecommunication services that the Applicant intends to prcvide in 
Arizona in six or more states, excluding Arizona, list the states. If the Applicant does not currently provide 
telecommunications services that the Applicant intends to provide in Arizona in five or less states, list the key 
personnel employed by the Applicant. Indicate each employee’s name, title, position, description of their work 
experience, and years of service in the telecommunications services industry. 

Applicant does not currently provide telecommunications service in any state, but intends to 
provide telecommunications services in every state where its subsidiaries currently provide 
telecommunications services upon completicn of the intra-corporate consolidation described 
below. Specifically, this Application is being filed in connection with an  intra-corporate 
reorganization that Zayo will undertake with its various subsidiaries to simplify its existing 
corporate structure. Among other things, the reorganization will include the merger of Zayo Fiber 
Solutions, LLC V‘ZFS) and Zayo Bandwidth, LLC (“ZB”) with and into Zayo, with Zayo 
surviving. Organization charts illustrating the current and post-transaction corporate structures 
are attached hereto as Exhibit A. An application for any required Commission approvals for the 
intra-corporate transactioss will be submitted separately 

Collectively, Zayo’s subsidiaries currently provide telecommunications services in each 
jurisdiction Iisted in the response to A-18. Please see the responses to A-18 and -4-20 for 
information regarding the services offered by other Zayo entities. 

Biographies of Zayo’s key personnel are provided as Exhibit B. 

07/07/06 
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(A-20) List the names and addresses of any alternative providers of the service that are also affiliates of the 
telecommunications company, as defined in R14-2-801. 

In Arizona, ZB is currently authorized to provide facilities-based local exchange and long distance 
pursuant to authority granted in Docket No. T-20694A-09-0379 on July 12,2010. ZFS is currently 
authorized to provide Competitive Private Line Telecommunications Services pursuant to 
authority granted in Docket No. T-20667A-09-0179 on February 23,2010. 

Ir. addition, American Fiber Systems, Inc. is currently authorized to provide facilities-based and 
resold local exchange, exchange access and interexchange telecommunications services pursuant to 
authority issued in Docket No. T-03980A-01-002 on March 9,2001. 

(A-21) Check here if you wish to adopt as your petition a statement that the service has already been classified 
as competitive by Commission Decision: 

Decision # 64178 

Decision # 64178 Resold LEC 

Decision # 64178 

0 
c] 

Resold Long Distance 

Facilities Based Long Distance 

- 
B. FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

(B-I) Indicate if the Applicant has financial statements for the two (2) most recent years. 

Yes 0 No 

If "No," explain why and give the date on which the Applicant began operations. 

(B-2) include "Attachment D". 

Provide the Applicant's financial information for the two (2) most recent years. 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

A copy of the Applicant's balance sheet. 

A copy of the Applicant's income statement. 

A copy of the Applicant's audit report. 

A copy of the Applicant's retained earnings balance. 

A copy of all related notes to the financial statements and information. 

Note: Make sure "most recent years" includes current calendar year or current year reporting period. 

Applicant provides as Attachment D the most recent audited financial statements of Zayo for the 
period ended June 30,2010. Zayo's SEC Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30,2010 is 
available at http://investor.zayo.com/sites/zayo.investorhq.businesswire.com/files/report/file/lOQ-- 
- September~20~201O~Quarterly~Report.pdf. 

Indicate if the Applicant will rely on the financial resources of its Parent Company, if applicable. (B-3) 

Zayo will rely on its own financial resooxes. 

Decision # 64178 Facilities Based LEC 

07/07/06 
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(B-4) 

Applicant's business is building communications solutions for large enterprise and carrier customers on an 
individual case basis for each project's needs. The responses to questions 1 and 2, below, therefore, are  
based on a rough estimate of the projects that Applicant might obtain in the first twelve months of 
operations. 

The Applicant must provide the following information. 

I .  Provide the projected total revenue expected to be ge,neiated by the provision of telecommunication: 
services to Arizona customers for the first twelve months following certification, adjusted to reflect 
the maximum rates for which the Applicant requested approval. Adjusted revenues may be 
calculated as the number of units sold times the maximum charge per unit. 

Subject to the qualification above, Applicant projects total revenue of $100,000 for the first twelve 
months of providing telecommunications services following certification. 

2. Provide the operating expenses expected to be incurred during the first twelve months of providing 
telecommunications services to Arizona customers following certification. 

Subject to the qualification above, Applicant projects operating expenses of $25,000 dnring the 
first twelve months of providing telecommunications services following certification. 

3. Provide the net book value (original cost less accumu1ated depreciation) of all Arizona jurisdictiona! 
assets expected to be used in the provision of telecommunications service to Arizona custcmers at 
the end of the first twelve months of operation. Assets are not limited to plant and equipment. Items 
such as office equipment and office supplies should be included in this list. 

At the end of the first twelve months of operation, Applicants net book value of all Arizona 
jurisdictional assets expected to be used in the provision of telecommunications service to Arizona 
customers is $22,500,000. 

4. 

NIA, See response to #3. 

5. 

If the projected value of all assets is zero, please specifically state this in your response. 

If the projected fair value of the assets is different than the projected net book value, also provide 
the corresponding projected fair value amounts. 

The current fair value of assets is the same as the current net book value. 

C. RESOLD AND/OR FACILITIES-BASED LOCAL EXCHANGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS 
SERVICES 

(C-1) Indicate if the Applicant has a resale agreement in operation, 

No 

If "Yes", please reference the resale agreement by Commission Docket Number or Commission Decision 
Number. 

07/07/06 
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D. FACILITIES-BASED LONG DISTANCE AND/OR FACILITIES BASED LOCAL EXCHANGE 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES 

(D-1) 
AND/OR facilities-based local exchange telecommunications services in Arizona. This item applies to an 
Applicant requesting a geographic expansion of their CC&N: 

Indicate if the Applicant is currently selling facilities-based long distance telecommunications services 

If "Yes," provide the following information: 

1. The date or approximate date that the Applicant began selling facilities-based long distance 
telecommunications services AND/OR facilities-based local exchange telecommunications services 
in Arizona. 

Identify the types of facilities-based long distance telecommunications services AND/OR facilities- 
based local exchange telecommunications services that the Applicant sells in Arizona. 

2. 

If "No," indicate the date when the Applicant will begin to sell facilities-based long distance 
telecommunications AND/OR facilities-based local exchange telecommunications services in Arizona. 

Applicant intends to provide facilities-based telecommunications services primarily using its own facilities. 
Zayo has not yet entered into or requested interconnectionhesale agreements in Arizona. The 'rimeframe 
for providing facilities-based services in Arizona is as soon as commercially possible after certificate 
granted. 

Applicant's subsidiaries, ZB and ZFS, currently provide facilities-based telecommunications services in 
Arizona. As described above, Zayo will assume the operations of ZE and ZFS upon completion of the 
intra-corporate transactions described heiein. 

E. FACILITIES-BASED LOCAL EXCHANGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES 

(E-I) Indicate whether the Applicant will abide by the quality of service standards that were approved by the 11 Commission in Cummission Decision Number 59421 : 

To the extent that Applicant provides basic local exchange services, Applicant will abide by the quality of 
service standards approved in Commission Decision Number 59421. 

(E-2) 
and will coordinate with incumbent local exchange carriers ("ILECs") and emergency service providers to 
provide this service: 

Indicate whether the Applicant will provide all customers with 91 1 and E91 1 service, where available, 

Yes No 
To the extent that Applicant provides basic local exchange services, Applicant will provide all customers 
with 911 and E911 service, where available, and will coordinate with ILEC and emergency service 
providers to provide this service. 

11 (E-3) Indicate that !he Applicant5 switch is "fully equal access capable" (Le., would provide equal access to 
facilities-based long distance companies) pursuant to A.A.C. R14-2-1111 (A): 1 E yes 0 No 

To the extent Applicant deploys its own switch, it will be fully equal access capable. I 
07/07/06 
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I certify that if the applicant is a Delaware limited liability company, a current copy of the 
Certificate of Formation is on file with the Arizona Corporation Commission and the applicant 
holds a Certificate of Good Standing from the Commission. If the company is a foreign corporation 
or partnership, I certify that the company has authority to transact business in Arizona. I certify that 
all appropriate city, county, and/or State agency approvals have been obtained. Upon signing of 
this application, I attest that I have read the Commission’s d e s  and regulations relating to the 
regulations of telecommunications services (A.A.C. Title 14, Chapter 2, Article 11) and that the 
company will abide by Arizona state law including the Arizona Corporation Commission Rules. I 
agree that the Commission’s rules apply in the event there is a conflict between those rules and the 
company’s tariff, unless otherwise ordered by the Commission. I certify that to the best of my 
knowledge the information provided in this Application and Petition is true and correct. 

1 
( S i g n a t u r x u t h  

1 
( S i g n a t u r x u t h  

Scott E. Beer 
(Print Name of Authorized Representative) 

Vice President, General Counsel & Secretary 
(Title) 

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this do day of January, 201 1. 

My Commission Expires b - % - 20 \ \ 

AZ Cert 
I N73638306.1 



LIST OF ATTACHMENTS & EXHIBITS 

Attachment A-1 

Attachment A-2 

Attachment B 

Attachment C 

Attachment D 

Exhibit A 

Exhibit B 

Certificate of Formation 

Certificate of Good Standing as Foreign Entity 

Proposed lntrastate Tarif€ 

[NOT APPLICABLE] 

Financial Information 

Organization Charts 

Maaagemen t Biographies 

, 
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ATTACHMENT A-1 

Certificate of Formation 
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DeCawure 
G First State 

I ,  HARRIET SMITH WINDSOR, S E C L v T m Y  OF STATE OF THE STATE OF 

DELAWARE DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE ATTACHED I S  A TRUE AND 

CORRECT COPY OF THE CERTIFICATE OF CONVERSION OF A DELAWARE 

CORPORATION UNDER THE NAME OF "ZAYO BANDWIDTH, I N C .  TO A 

DELAWARE L I M I T E D  Z I A B I L I T Y  COMPANY, CHANGING I T S  NAME FROM "ZAYO 

BANDWIDTH, I N C .  " TO "ZAYO GROUP, L L C " ,  F I L E D  I N  THIS OFFICE ON 

THE FIFTEENTH DAY OF FEBRUARY, A . D .  2008, AT 9r32 O'CLOCK A . M .  

YOU m y  i a t  corp. 
v e r i f y  t h i s  c e r t i f i c a t e  
delaware. gov/authver. shtml 

Harriet Smith Windsor, Secretary of State 

AUTi3ENTICATIONr 638485 6 

DATE: 02-15-08 



CERTIFICATE OF CONVERSION 
OF 

ZAYO BANDWIDTH, INC. 
TO 

ZAYO GROUP, LLC 

State of Delaware 

Laelivered 09:39 AM 02/15/2008 
E‘ILED 09:32 AM 02/15/2008 

~iEZEF’~orporatjms of state 

SRV 080165531 - 4346984 ETLE 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 266 of the Delaware General Corporation 
Law, Zayo Bandwidth, Inc., a corporation existing under the laws of the State of Delaware (the 
“Converting Corporation”), hereby adopts and authorizes for filing with the Delaware 
Secretary of State, this Certificate of Conversion (this “Certificate”) for the purpose of 
converting the Converting Corporation into a limited liability company organized under the laws 
of the State of Delaware named Zayo Group, LLC (the “New Company”). 

The undersigned, a duly authorized officer of the Converting Corporation, certifies as 
follows : 

1. The Converting Corporation is a corporation organized under the Iaws of the State 
of Delaware. 

2. The name of the Converting Corporation immediately prior to the conversion and 
subsequent filing of this Certificate is Zayo Bandwidth, Inc. 

The date the Converting Corporation was organized under the laws of the State of 
Delaware is May 4,2007 under the name CIT Holdco, Inc. 

3. 

4. The name of the New Company t s  set forth in its Certificate of Formation is Zayo 
Group, LLC. 

This Certificate is executed by the undersigned authorized officer of the Converting 
Corporation as of February =t,h2008. 

ZAYO BANDWIDTH, INC., 
a Delaware corporation 

Secretary 



I .  ' 9eGaware 
First State 

I ,  HARRIET S M I T H  WINDSOR, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF 

DELAWARE DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE ATTACHED I S  A TRUE AND 

CORRECT COPY OF CERTIFICATE OF FORWITION OF "ZAYO GROUP, LLC" 

FILED I N  T H I S  OFFICE ON THE FIFTEENTH DAY OF FEBRUARY, A . D .  

2008, A T  9:32 O'CLOCK A . M .  

d 2 4 z A A d  b*L 
Harriet Smith Windsor, Secretary of State 

4 3 4 6 9 8 4  8100V AUTHENTICATICN: 6384 85 6 

0801 65531 DATE: 02-15-08 
You may v e r i f y  t h i s  c e r t i f i c a t e  onl ine 
a t  corp.  delaware. gov/authver.  shtml , 



State of Delaware 

&livered 09:39 AM 02./15/2008 
F I L E D  09:32 AM 02/15/2008 

SRV 080165531 - 4346984 ETLE 

Division secretafry o CorporatiGns Of 

CERTIHCATE OF FORMATION 
OF 

ZAYO GROUP, LLC 

TO THE SECRETARY OF STATE 
OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE: 

The undersigned, an authorized natural person, for the purpose of forming a limited 
Iiability company, under the provisions and subject to the requirements of the State of 
Delaware (particularly Chapter 18, Title 6 of the Delaware Code and the acts amendatory 
thereof and supplemental thereto, and known, identified, and referred to as the ‘Delaware 
Limited Liability Company Act”) hereby certifies that: 

ARTICLE I 

NAME 

The name of the limited liability company is Zayo Group, LLC (the “Company”). 

ARTICLE XI 

INITIAL REGISTERED OFFXCE ANT) REGISTERED AGENT 

The address of the registered office and the name and address of the registered 
agent of the limited liability company required to be maintained by Section 18-104 of the 
Delaware Limited LiabiIity Company Act is The Corporation Trust Company, 
1209 Orange Stxet, Wilmingtm, Delaware 19801, County ofNew Castle. 

I N  WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned authorized agent of the Company has 
executed this Certificate of Formation as of the 15th day of February, 2008. 

Title: Authorized$ersarr/ 



ATTACHMENT A-2 

Certificate of Good Standing as Foreign Entity 
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Office of the 
CORPORATION COMMISSION 
CERTIFICATE OF GOOD STANDING 

To all to whom these presents shall come, greeting: 

I, Ernest G. Johnson, Executive Director of the Arizona Corporation Commission, do 
hereby certify that 

* * *ZA YO GROUP, LL C* * * 

a foreign limited liability company organized under the laws of the jurisdiction of Delaware 
did obtain a Certificate of Registration in Arizona on the 14th day of January 201 1. 

I further certify that according to the records of the Arizona Corporation Commission, as 
of the date set forth hereunder, the said limited liability company has not had its Certificate 
of Registration revoked for failure to comply with the provisions of A.R.S. section 29-601 et 
seq., the Arizona Limited Liability Company Act; and that the said limited liability company 
has not filed a Certificate of Cancellation as of the date of this certificate. 

This certificate relates only to the legal authority of the above named entity as of the date 
issued. This certificate is not to be construed as an endorsement, recommendation, or 
notice of approval of the entity's condition or business activities and practices. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed 
the official seal of the Arizona Corporation Commission. Done at 
Phoenix, the Capital, this 24th Day of January, 201 I, A. D. 

CGA------ 
Executive Director 

By: 5641 18 
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CHECK SHEET 

The sheets inclusive of this tariff are effective as of t he  date shown at the  bottom of the 
respective sheet(s). Original and revised sheets a s  named below comprise all changes 
from t h e  original tariff and are currently in effect as of the  date on t h e  bottom of this 
sheet. 

Paqe 
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1 
2 
3 
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6 
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8 
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14 
15 
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2i 
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Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
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28 
29 
30 
31 
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34 
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Number of Revision 
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Original 
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Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
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I TARIFF FORMAT 

A. Page Numbering - Page numbers appear in the upper right corner of the page. 
Pages are numbered sequentially. However, new pages are occasionally added 
to the tariff. When a new page is added between pages already in effect, a 
decimal is added. For example, a new page added between Page 14 and -I5 
would be 14.1. 

B. Page Revision Numbers - Revision numbers also appear in the upper right 
corner of each page. These numbers are used to determine the most current 
page version on file with the Commission. For example, the 4'h revised Page 14 
cancels the 3rd revised Page 14. 

C. Paragraph Numbering Sequence - There are various !evels of paragraph 
coding. Each level of coding is subservient to its next higher level: 

2 
2.1 
2.1.1 
2.1 .I .I 

D. check Sheets - When a tariff filing is made with the Commission, an updated 
Check Sheet accompanies the tariff filing. The Check Sheet lists the pages 
contained in the tariff, with a cross-reference to the current revision number. 
When new pages are added, the Check Sheet is changed to reflect the revision. 
An asterisk designates all revisions made in a given filing (*). There will be no 
other symbols used on this page if these are the only changes made to it (Le-, 
the format, etc. remain the same, just revised revision levels on some pages.) 
The tariff user should refer to the latest Check Sheet to find out if a particular 
page is the most current on file with the Commission. 
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Explanation of Svmbols 

(C) - To signify changed administrative regulation 

(D) - To signify a discontinued rate, administrative regulation or test 

( I )  - To signify an increase in a rate 

(M) - To signify text or rates relocated without change 

(N) - To signify a new rate, regulation or other text or new test 

(R) - To signify a reduction in a rate 

(T) - To signify a change in text but no change in rate 

Issued: January ~, 201 1 Effective: ,201 1 
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DEFINITIONS 

“Access Line” refers to facilities and transmission path used to create a 
telecommunications connection from a network device to the serving center and 
composing the local loop. 

“Applicant” refers to an individual, partnership, corporation, association, or government 
agency who applies to the Company for any new or additional telephone service. 

“Business Hours” refers to the time after 8 :OO A.M. and before 5:OO P.M., Monday 
through Friday excluding holidays 

“Carrier,” “Company” or “Utility” refers to Zayo Group, LLC. 

“Central office” refers to a switching unit that provides central office telecommunications 
services to the general public having the necessary equipment and operating 
arrangements for terminating Access Lines and trunks or trunks only. 

”Commission” refers to the Arizona Corporation Commission. 

“Customer” refers to any person, firm, corporation, or governmental entity who has 
applied for and is granted service or who is responsible for payment of service. 

“Delinquent or Delinquency” refers to an account for which payment has not been paid 
in full on or before the last day for timely payment. 

“Facility” refers tG cne or all of the elements of a physical p!ant used to provide 
telecommunications services. 

“Grade of Service” refers to the type of service furnished to a Customer with respect to 
the functionality and capabilities of the service offering. 

1 Effective: ,2011 
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DEFl NITIONS (Cont’d) 

”Grandfathered Service” applies to an obsolete and/or outdated service the Utility no 
longer wishes to provide. The grandfathering of a service is the Utility’s method 
of managing a tariff for this service prior to ultimately discontinuing the service, or 
change existing tariff regulations without discontinuing certain rights, privileges or 
conditions of the service to existing customers. 

“ICB” refers to pricing arrangements made on an individual case basis. 

“Local Access Transport Area (”LATA”)” refers to a geographic area established for the 
provision and administration of communications service. A LATA encompasses 
designated exchanges, which are grouped to serve common social, economic 
and other purposes. 

“On-Net” refers to services where all originating and terminating points are on Company 
owned or operated facilities. 

“Service” refers to any telecommunications service(s) provided by the Company under 
this tariff. 

”Subscriber” refers to the firm, company, corporation, or other entity that coiitracts for 
service under this tariff and that is responsible for the payment of charges as well 
as compliance with the Company’s regulations pursuant to this tariff. 

“Switching” refers to the machines that switch telephone calls from/to other telephones 
or trunks. 

“Tariffs” refer to the tariffs, price lists, and generally applicable terms and conditions on 
file with a state or federal regulatory authority or publicly available on the 
Company’s website in accordance with the regulations of a state or federal 
regulatory authority. 

Issued: January -, 201 1 Effective: ,2011 
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SECTION 1. APPLICATICK OF TARIFF 

1.1.1 

1.2.2 

1.1.4 

This tariff governs the services provided by Zayo Group, LLC that 
originate and terminate within the State of Arizona. Specific services and 
rates are described elsewhere in this tariff. 

The Company instalis operates, and maintains the communications 
services provided herein in accordance with the terms and conditions set 
forth under this tariff. The Company may act as the Customer’s agent for 
ordering access connection facilities provided by other carriers or entities 
when authorized by the Customer, to allow connection of a Customer’s 
location to the Company’s network. The Customer shall be responsible 
for all charges due for such service arrangement. 

The Company’s services are available to large enterprise, government 
and wholesale Customers only. The Company’s obligation to furnish, or 
to continue to furnish, telecommunications service is subject to availability 
and dependent upon its abilibj to obtain, retain, and maintain: without 
unreasonable expense, suitable rights of way and facilities required to 
furnish and maintain that service. 

Issued: Januar; -, 201 1 Effective: ,201 1 
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i SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS 

I 2.1 Undertaking of the Company 

This tariff contains the regulations, rates and charges applicable to resold and 
facilities-based competitive telecommunications services provided by the 
Company in the State af Arizona. 

2.2 Obligations of the Customer 

2.2.1 The Customer shall be responsible for: 

2.2.1.1 The payment of all applicable charges pursuant to this tariff 

2.2.1.2 Reimbursing the Company for damage to, or loss of, the 
Campany’s facilities or equipment caused by the acts or omissions 
of the Customer; or the noncompliance by the Customer, with 
these regulations, or by fire or theft or other casualty on the 
Customer’s premises unless caused by the negligence or willful 
misconduct of the employees or agents of the Company. 

2.2.7.3 Providing at no charge, as specified from time to time by the 
Company, any needed space and power to operate the Company’s 
facilities and equipment installed on the Customer’s premises. 

2.2.1.4 Complying with all laws and regulations regarding the working 
conditions on the premises at which the Company’s employees and 
agents shall be installing or maintaining the Company’s facilities 
and equipment. The Customer may be required to install and 
maintain the Company’s facilities and equipment within a 
hazardous area if, in the Company’s opinion, injury or damage to 
the Company’s emplGyees or property might result from installation 
or maintenance by the Company. The Customer shall be 
responsible for identifying, monitoring, removing and disposing of 
any hazardous material prior to any construction or installation 
work. 

Issued: Januay ~, 201 1 Effective: ,201 I 
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SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d) 

2.2 Obligations of the Customer (Cont’d) 

2.2.1.5 

2.2.1.6 

Complying with all laws and regulations applicable to, and obtaining 
all consents, approvals, licenses and permits as may be required 
with respect to, the location of the Company’s facilities and 
equipment in any Customer premises for the purpose of installing, 
inspecting, maintaining, repairing, or upon termination of service as 
stated herein, removing the facilities or equipment of the Company. 

Making Company facilities and equipment available periodically for 
maintenance purposes at a time agreeable to both the Company 
and the Customer. No allowance for interruptions in service will be 
made for the period during which service is interrupted for such 
purposes. 

2.2.2 With respect to any service or facility provided by the Company, the 
Customer shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Company from 
all claims, actions, damages, liabilities, costs and expenses for: 

2.2.2.1 Any loss, destruction or damage to property of the Company or any 
third party, or injury to persons, including, but not limited to, 
employees or invitees of either the Company or the Customer, to 
the extent caused by or resulting from the negligent or intentional 
act or omission of the Customer, its employees, agents, 
representatives or invitees; or 

2.2.2.2 Any claim, loss, damage, expense or liability for infringement of any 
copyright, patent, trade secret, or any proprietary infringement of 
any copyright, patent, trade secret, or any proprietarj-or intellectual 
property right of any third party, arising from any act or omission by 
the Customer. 

Issued: Jawary ~, 201 1 Effective: ,201 1 
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SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d) 

2.2 Obligations of the Customer (Cont’d) 

2.2.3 The Customer is responsible for ensuring that Customer-provided 
equipment connec&ed to Company equipment and facilities is compatible 
with such equipment and facilities. l h e  connection, operation, testing, or 
maintenance of such equipment shall be such as not to cause damage to 
the Company-provided equipment and facilities or injury to the 
Company’s employees or other persons. Any additional protective 
equipment required to prevent such damage or injury shall be provided by 
the Company at the Customer’s expense. 

2.2.4 The Company’s services (as detailed in this tariff) may be connected to 
the services or facilities or other communications carriers only when 
authorized by, and in accordance with, the terms and conditions of the 
tariffs or contracts which are applicable to such connections. 

2.2.5 Upon reasonable notification to the Customer, and at a reasonable time, 
the Company may make such tests and inspections as may be necessary 
to determine that the Customer is complying with the requirements set 
forth in this tariff for the installation, operation, and maintenance of 
Customer-provided facilities and equipment that is connected to 
Company-owned facilities and equipment. 

2.3 Liability of the Company 

2.3.1 In view of the fact that the Customer has exclusive control over the use of 
service and facilities furnished by the Company, and because certain 
errors incident to the services and to the use of such facilities of the 
Company are unavoidable, services and facilities are furnished by the 
Company subject to the terms, conditions and limitations herein specified: 

Issued: January ~, 201 i Effective: ,2011 
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SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont‘d) 

2.3 Liability of the Company (Cont’d) 

2.3.1 (Cont’d) 

(A) The Company’s damages arising out of its negligent acts, or 
mistakes, omissions, interruptions, delays, errors, or defects during 
the course of furnishing service, shall in no event exceed an 
amount equivalent to Company’s charges for service during the 
period affected by such negligence, or in which such mistakes, 
omissions, interruptions, delays, errors, or defects occurred. Any 
mistakes, omissions, interruptions, delays, errors, or defects that 
are caused by or materially contributed to by the negligence or 
willful acts of Customer, or that arise from facilities or equipment 
used by Customer and not provided by Company, shall not result in 
the imposition of any liability upon Company. 

(B) Customer shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 
Company, its officers and directors, employees, and agents from 
and against any and all lawsuits, claims, demands, penalties, 
Icsses, fines, liabilities, damages, and expenses of any kind and 
nature (including, without limitation, liability to third parties for 
personal injury or death and for loss or damage to property, and 
loss or damage to Company property, and injury to Company 
employees), without limitation whatsoever, that in any way arise out 
of or result from Customer’s operations, installation or maintenance 
of equipment and facilities, or performance under this tariff, or that 
arises out of or in any way is connected with Customer’s provision 
of service to its end users, or any use or attempted use by 
Customer or any such end user of services provided by the 
Company hereunder; provided that this section shall not apply to 
the extent that any injury, loss, or damage is caused by the gross 
negligence or willfui misconduct on the part of the Company. 

Issued. January -, 201 1 Effective: ,2011 
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SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont'd) 

2.3 Liability of the Company (Cont'd) 

2.3.1 (Cont'd) 

The Company will not be liab,z for any act, omission to ac , 
negligence, or defect in the quality of service of any underlying 
carrier or other service provider whose facilities or services are 
used in furnishing any portion of the service received by Customer. 
Company will not be liable for any failure of performance that is 
caused by or the result of any act or omission by Customer or any 
entity other than Company, that furnishes services, facilities, or 
equipment used in connection with Company's services or facilities. 

EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY PROVIDED IN THIS TARIFF, 
COMPANY MAKES NO EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED 
REP R E S E NTAT IO N S , ANY 
WARRANTIES REGARDING MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS 
FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. 

II'J NO EVENT SHALL COMPANY BE LIABLE TO CUSTOMER 
FOR SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT, CONSEQUENTIAL, OR 
PUNITIVE DAMAGES (INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, 
LOST PROFITS OR REVENUE). 

0 R WAR RANT I ES , I N C L U D I N G 
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SECTION 2. R M E S  AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d) 

2.3 Liability of the Company (Cont’d) 

2.3.2 Limitation of Liability 

2.3.2.1 Nothing in this tariff shall be construed to limit the Company’s 
liability in cases of gross negligence or willful misconduct. 

2.3.2.2 Neither Party shall be responsible for delays or failures in 
performance, except for the obligation to make payments required 
under this tariff, resulting from acts or occurrences in the nature of 
force majeure such as fire, explosion, acts of God, war, or civil 
commotion; any law, order, regulation, or ordinance of any 
government or legal body; strikes; or delays caused by the other 
Party. In such event, the Party sffected shall, upon giving prompt 
notice to the other, be excused from such performance to the 
extent of such interference. The affected Party shall use its 
reasonable efforts to avoid or remove the cause of 
non-performance and both Parties shall proceed to perform with 
dispatch once the causes are removed or cease. 

2.4 Application for Service 

2.4.1 Minimum Contract Period 

2.4.1.1 Excepi as otherwise provided, the minimum contract period is one 
month for all services furnished. When a service is discontinued 
prior to the expiration of the minimum period, charges are 
applicable, whether the service is used or not. 

2.4.1.2 The Compmy may require a minimum contract period longer than 
one month in connection with special, non-standard types or 
arrangements of equipment, or for unusual construction, necessary 
to meet special demands for service. 

Issued: January -, 201 1 Effective: ,2011 
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SECTION 2. WLES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d) 

2.4 Application for Service (Cont’d) 

2.4.2 Cancellation of Service 

2.4.2.1 Where the applicant cancels an order for service prior to the start 
of the installation or special construction of facilities, no charge 
shall apply, except to the extent the Company incurs a service 
order or similar charge from a supplying carrier, if any, prior to the 
con st ruction . 

2.4.2.2 Where the installation of facilities, other than those provided by 
special construction, has been started prior to cancellation, the 
lower of the following charge applies; 

2.4.2.2.A 

2.4.2.2.B 

The total costs of installing and removing such facilities; or 

The monthly charges for the entire initial contract period of 
the service ordered by the Customer as provided in this tariff 
plus the full amount of any applicable installation and 
termination charges. 

2.4.2.3 

2.4.2.4 

2.4.2.5 

Where special construction of facilities has been started prior to the 
cancellation, and the Company has another requirement for the 
specially constructed facilities, no charge applies. 

The Company reserves the right to redefine its regions, add new 
regions, or remove regions from its current offering, as it deems 
appropriate in its sole discretion and will provide the Customer with 
zt least thirty (30) days’ notice of any change in the definition of the 
Company’s regions. 

In the event the Company plans to exit a current region, the 
Company shall provide Customer with thirty (30) days prior written 
notification of the Company’s intent. The Customer shall be 
allowed to immediately terminate services in the affected region 
without penalty. 

Issued: January __, 201 1 Effective: ,2011 
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I SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d) 

I 2.5 Payment for Service 

2.5.1 Company will bill Customer monthly, unless there is a contract for a longer 
billing period, with recurring charges being biiled in advance and any 
usage charges billed in arrears. All amounts due Company are payable in 
full within thirty (30) days (“Due Date”) from the date of invoice (“Bill 
Date”) . 

2.5.2 Payments are past due if not received by the Company by the Due Date. 
Any amounts past due will be subject to a late payment charge accruing 
at the rate of 1-li2% per month or the highest lawful rate, whichever is 
lower, until paid. In addition, invoices not paid within forty (40) days of the 
Bill Date and which have not been disputed in accordance with the 
procedures set forth ir, Section 2.7.1 of this tariff, may result in suspension 
of service until the overdue payment and any additional charges that may 
be imposed to restore service, have been paid. Custcrner agrees to pay 
all costs incurred by Company in collecting any unpaid amounts. Failure 
of the Customer to pay all undisputed amounts by the Due Date is a 
material breach and Company shatl notify Customer and allow five (5) 
oays for Customer to cure a monetary breach, and if default remains 
uncured, Company may terminate services hereunder for non- payment. 

2.5.3 The Customer is responsible for payment of all charges for service 
furnished to the Customer. Charges based on actual usage during a 
month will be billed monthly, unless there is a contract for a longer billing 
period, in the month following the month in which the service was used. 
All fixed monthly and nonrecurring charges for services ordered will be 
billed monthly in advance. 
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SECTlOPi 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d) 

2.5 Payment for Service (Cont’d) 

2.5.4 The Company reserves the right to require from an applicant for service 
advance payments of fixed charges and nonrecurring charges. The 
advance payment will not exceed an amount equal to the nonrecurring 
charge(s) and one month’s recurring charges for the service or facility. In 
addition, where special construction is involved, the advance payment 
may also include an amount equal to the estimated nonrecurring charges 
for the special construction. The advance payment will be applied to any 
indebtedness for the service and facilities for which the advance payment 
is maae on the Customer’s initial bill. 

Advanced payments for installation costs or special construction will be 
credited on the first bill in their entirety. 

2.6 Customer Deposits 

2.6.1 The Company may require a deposit or guarantee of payment from any 
Customer or applicant who has not established good credit with that utility. 
Deposit or guarantee of payment requirements as prescribed by the utiiity 
must be based upon standards which bear a reasonable relationship to 
the assurance of payment. 

A deposit shall not exceed an estimated two months gross bI!! or existing 
two months bill where applicable. All deposits shall be in addition to 
payment of an outstanding bill or a part of such bill as has been resolved 
to the satisfaction of the Company, except where such bill has been 
discharged in bankruptcy. The Company will not require a deposit or a 
guarzntee of payment without explaining in writing why that deposit or 
guarantee is being required and under what conditions, if any, the deposit 
will be diminished upon return. 

The Company may determine whether a Customer has established good 
credit with that utility, except as herein restricted: 
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SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d) 

2.6 Customer Deposits (Cont’d) 

2.6.1.1 

2.6.1.2 

2.6.1.3 

2.6.1.4 

2.6.1.5 

A Customer, who within the last 72 months has not had service 
disconnected for nonpayment of a biil and has not been liable for 
disconnection of service for nonpayment of a bill, and the bill is not 
in dispute, shall be deemed to have established good credit. 

The Company shall not require a deposit or a guarantee of 
payment based upon income, home ownership, residential location, 
employment tenure, nature of occupation, race, color, creed, sex, 
marital status, age, national origin, or any other criteria which does 
not bear a reasonable relationship to the assurance of payment or 
which is not authorized by this chapter. 

No utility shall use any credit reports other than those reflecting the 
purchase of utility services to determine the adequacy of a 
Customer’s credit history without the permission in writing of the 
Customer. Any credit history so used shall be mailed to the 
Customer in order to provide the Customer an opportunity to review 
the data. Refusal of a Customer to permit use of a credit rating or 
credit service other than that of a utiiity shall not affect the 
determinaticn by the utility as ta that Customer’s credit history. 

The deposit will bear simple interest computed from the date of its 
receipt by the Company to the date the deposit is refunded or 
service is terminated. In the event that a deposit is retained during 
time periods having different rates of interest, the interest accrued 
on the deposit will be credited using the interest rate applicable to 
each time period. 

The rate of interest to be paid on Customer deposits is equivalent 
to the rzte paid on 2-year U.S. treasury notes for the preceding 12 
months ending December 31 of any year. 
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SECTiON 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d) 

2.6 Customer Deposits (Cont’d) 

2.6.2 Return of Deposit 

Upon termination of service, the deposit with accrued interest shall be 
credited to the Customer’s final invoice and the balance shall be returned 
within 45 days to the Customer. 

2.6.3 Guarantee of Payment 

The Utility may accept, in lieu of deposit, a contract signed by a guarantor 
satisfactory to the Utility whereby payment of a specified sum, not 
exceeding the deposit requirement, is guaranteed. The term of such 
contract shall be for no longer than 12 months, but shall automatically 
terminate after the Customer has closed and paid the account with the 
Utility, or at the guarantor’s request upon 60 days’ written notice to the 
Utility. Upon termination of a guarantee contract or whenever the Utility 
deems same insufficient as to amount or surety, a cash deposit or a new 
or additional guarantee may be required for good cause upon reasonable 
written notice to the Customer. 

The service of any Customer who fails to comply with these requirements 
may be disconnected upon notice as prescribed in Arizona Rules. The 
Utility shall mail the guarantor copies of all disconnect notices sent to the 
customer whose account he has guaranteed unless the guarantor waives 
such notice in writing. 
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SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont'd) 

2.7 Customer Complaints and Billing Disputes 

2.7.1 In the event that Customer disputes any charges, Customer must submit 
a written claim describing the disputed amount. Customer shall submit al! 
documentation as may reasonably be required to support the claim. 
Payment may be withheld for the amounts subject to a dispute submitted 
prior to the Due Date. All disputes and claims for refunds must be 
submitted to Company within forty-five (45) days of the Bill Date. If 
Customer does not submit a claim as stated above, Customer waives all 
rights to file a claim thereafter. Company shall investigate and resolve all 
disputes within forty-five (45) days of receipt of the dispute and 
Company's resolution of such a dispute is final. Any portion of a disputed 
amount deemed payable by Company must be paid in full withir? ten ( I O )  
days of resoluiion or Customer's service may be subject to disconnection 
and late payment charges imposed on the overdue amount. 

2.7.2 Customers may register any inquiry or complaint at: 

Zayo Group, LLC 
400 Centennial Parkway, Suite 2G0, Louisville, Colorado 80Q27 
Telephone: (800) 390-6094 
Em ail : b i I I i ng @za yo. co m 
V i  eb : www .zayo .corn/ 

2.7.3 Customers unable to resolve a dispute with ?he Company may submit any 
inquiry or complaint to the: 

Arizona Corporation Commission - Consumer Services Division 
Web: www.azcc.gov 

Phoenix Office: 
1200 West Washington Street, Phoenix, Arizona 85007-2927 
Telephone: (800) 222-7000 

Tucson Office: 
400 Viest Congress Street. Tucson, Arizona 85701-1 347 
Telephone: (800) 535-0148 
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SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d) 

0:OO:OI - 1 :OG:OO 
1 :00:@1 - 2:0@:00 

2.8 Allowance for Interruptions in Service 

0% 0 Yo 
2 Yo 0 O/n 

2.8.1 The following allowances are provided for interruptions in service, as 
specified Tor particular services furnished solely by the Company which 
becsme unavailable due to a Service Outage, as defined below, for 
reasons other than an Excused Outage, as defined below, Customer will 
be entitled to a service credit off of the monthly recurring charge (”MRC”) 
for the affected circuit(s) based upon the cumulative length of time of the 
Service Outage in a given month as set forth below: 

2:OO:OI - 3:OO:OO 
3:OO:OI - 4:OO:OO 
4:OO:OI - 8:OO:OO 

~~ 

5% 0 Yo 
10% 0% 
20% 1 oo/o 

L8:OO:OI or greater I 50% 20%- ~~ 1 I 
2.8.2 For purposes of this Section, “Service Outage” means the break in 

transmission measured from the first ten (1 0) consecutive severely erred 
seconds (“SESs”) on the affected Zayo circuit until the first ten ( I O )  non- 
SESs which is known by Zayo. An SES is measured with a bit error ratio 
of greater than or equal to 1 in 1000. To be eligible for a credit under this 
Section, the Service Outage must last for more than sixty (60) consecutive 
minutes. Service credits shall be deducted from the charges payable by 
Customer hereunder and shall be expressly indicated on the next invoice 
to Customer. If the Customer reports Services or a facility or circuit to be 
unavailable but declines to release it for testing and repair, it is considered 
to be impaired, but shall not be deemed a Service Outage. 
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SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d) 

2.8 Allowance for Interruptions in Service (Cont’d) 

2.8.3 Service credits shall not apply to “Excused Outages”, which are defined as 
outages (i) caused by the negligence or acts of Customer and/or its End 
User, affiliates, agents or representatives, (ii) the fzilure or malfunction of 
equipment or systems that are owned or controlled by Customer or 
Customer’s agents or other third party (including off-net facility providers); 
(iii) a Force Majeure event; (iv) during any period in which Zayo is not 
given access to the Service Premises; or (v) a Planned Service Outage, 
including planned network testing or maintenance, and unscheduled 
emergency maintenance, alteration or implementation. 

2.8.4 Customer shall provide a written request for a service credit within sixty 
(60) days d ler  the Service Cutage occurs. If Zayo confirms the Service 
Outage qualifies for a credit hereunder, Zayo will grant the service credit 
within thirty (30) days from receipt of ssid notice. Unless otherwise 
specifically stated, Service Outages are not aggregated for purposes of 
determining the credit allowance. Zayo agrees to provide a written Service 
Outage report within three (3) business days when requested by 
Customer. The service outage report will identify the impaired Circuit(s), 
the beginning and ending time/date of the Service Outage and the root 
cause of the Service Outage. The maximum service credit in a calendar 
month for any affected circuit shall not exceed 50% of the corresponding 
MRC for the affected circuit. 
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SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d) 

2.9 

2.1 0 

2.1 I 

Taxes, Fees and Surcharges 

2.9.1 All state and local taxes and fees shall be listed as separate line items on 
the Customer’s bill. 

2.9.2 If a municipality, other political subdivision or local agency of government, 
or the Commission imposes and collects from the Company a gross 
receipts tax, occupation tax, real estate tax, license tax, permit fee, 
franchise fee, or regulatory fee, such taxes and fees shall, as allowed by 
law, be billed pro rata to the Customer receiving service from the 
Company within the territorial limits of such municipality, other political 
subdivision or local agency of government. 

2.9.3 Service shall not be sclbject to taxes for a given taxing jurisdiction if the 
Customer provides the Company with written verification, acceptable to 
the Company and to the relevant taxing jurisdiction, that the Customer has 
been granted a tax exemption. 

Returned Check Charge 

The charge for a returned check is $35.00 per occurrence. 

Special Customer Arrangements 

In cases where a Customer requests special or unique arrangements which 
may include but are not limited to engineering, conditioning, installation, 
construction, facilities, assembly, purchase or lease of facilities and/or other 
special services not offered under this tariff, the Company, may provide the 
requested services. Appropriate recurring charges and/or nonrecurring charges 
and other terms and conditions will be developed for the customer for the 
provisioning of such arrangements. 
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SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d) 

2.12 Disconnection and Termination of Service 

2.1 2.1 Disconnection of Service Without Notice 

Company shall have the right to refuse or discontinue telephosle service 
or service arrangements without advance notice, if the acts of the 
Customer or the conditions upon their premises are such as to indicate an 
intent to defraud Company or to use the Service to defraud a third party, 
including but not limited to, providing false credit information, significantly 
misstating expected service volumes, using the services for unlawful 
purposes, or using services without intent to pay. 

Company will attempt to contact the Customer by telephone prior to 
discontinuing the Service or portions thereof. If Company is unable to 
contact the Customer by telephone, a letter will be mailed to the Customer 
G ~ - I  the same date that their senlice or service arrangement is 
discontinued, explaining the reasons for such action and the Customer’s 
right to dispute such action. 

Customer is responsible for all charges attributable to Customer, even if 
incurred as a result of fraudulent o i  unauthorized use of the Service by 
third parties. Company may, but is not obligated to, detect or report 
unauthorized or fraudulent use of Service. 

Issued: January -, 201 1 Effective: ,2011 

Al73639827.1 

Peter Chevalier, Associate General Counsel 
Zayo Group, LLC 

400 Centennial Parkway, Suite 200 
Louisville, CO 80027 



Zayo Group, LLC Arizona Tariff No. 1 
Original Page 25 

SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont‘d) 

2.12 Disconnection and Termination of Service (Cont’d) 

2.12.2.Disconnection of Service Requiring Notice 

Disconnection notices issued by the Company will inform the Customer 
facing service disconnection of the total amount which the Customer 
would need to pay in order to avoid disconnection of service. It must also 
inform the Customer of the Company’s legal obligation to provide service 
to customers whose access service charges are paid, even while their toll 
service is disconnected for nonpayment of outstanding toll debt. 

2.12.2.1 The Company may disconnect service for any of the following 
reasons provided it has notified the Customer of its intent, in 
writing, to disccnnect service and has allowed the Customer a 
reasonable time of not less than thirty (30) days in which to remove 
the cause for disconnection: 

2.12.2.1 .A Non-compliance with Regulations. For violation of or non- 
compliance with Commission’s rules and regulations or for 
violation of or non-compliance with the Company’s tariffs on 
file with the Commission. 

2.12.2.1 .B Failure on Contractual Obligations. For failure of the 
Customer to fulfill his contractual obligations for service or 
facilities subject ts regulation by the Commission. 

2.12.2.1.C Refusal of Access. For failure of the Customer to permit the 
Company to have reasonable access to its equipment and 
property. 

2.12.2.1 .D Failure to meet the utility’s deposit and credit requirements. 
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SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont'd) 

2.12 Disconnection and Termination of Service (Cont'd) 

2.12.2.Disconnection of Service Requiring Notice 

2.12.2.1.E For non-payment of a bill for service, provided that the 
Company has made a reasonable attempt to effect 
collection and has given the Customer written notice of its 
intent to deny service if settlement of his account is not 
made and provided the Customer has at least five (5) days 
notice, in which to make settlement before his service is 
denied. 

2.12.2.1 .F Failure to Comply with Service Conditions. For failure of the 
Customer to furnish the service equipment, permits, 
certificates, or rights-of-way, specified by the Company as a 
condition to obtaining service, or if the equipment or 
permissions are withdrawn or terminated. 
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SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont'd) 

2.13 Unlawful Use of Service 

2.13.1 Service shalt not be used for any purpose in violation of law or for any use 
as to which the Customer has not obtained a!l required governmental 
approvals, authorizations, licenses, consents, an3 permits. The Company 
shall refuse to furnish service to an applicant or shall disconnect the 
service without notice of a Customer when: 

2.13.1.1 An order shall be issued, signed by a judge finding that probable 
cause exists to believe that the use made or to be made of the 
service is prohibited by law, or 

2.13.1.2 The Company is notified in writing by a law enforcement agency 
acting within its jurisdiction that any facility furnished by the 
Company is being used or will be used for the purpose of 
transmitting or receiving gambling information in interstate or 
foreign commerce in violation of the law. 

2.13.2 If service has been physically disconnected by law enforcement officials at 
the Customer's premises and if there is not presented to the Company the 
written finding of a judge, then upon written or verbal request of the 
subscriber, and agreement to pay restoral of service charges and other 
applicable service charges, the Company shall promptly restore such 
service. 

2.14 lnierference with or Impairment of Service 

Service shall not be used in any manner that interferes with other persons in the 
use of their service, prevents other persons from using their service, or 
otherwise impairs the quality of service to other Customers. The Company may 
require a Customer to immediately shut down its transmission of signals if said 
transmission is causing interference to others or impairing the service of others. 

Issued: January ~, 201 1 Effective: ,2011 

M73639827.1 

Peter Chevalier, Associate General Counsel 
Zayo Group, LLC 

400 Centennial Parkway, Suite 200 
Louisville, CO 80027 



Zayo Group, LLC ! 
I '  

Arizona Tariff No. 1 
Original Page 28 

SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont'd) 

2.1 5 Overcharge/Undercharge 

2.15.1 When a Customer has been overcharged, the amount shall be refunded 
or credited to the Customer. 

2.15.2 When a Customer has been undercharged, the undercharged amount 
shall be invoiced to Customer and such invoiced amount shall be payable 
over a six (6) month period. 

2.16 Notices 

2.16.1 Any notice required or permitted to be given under this tariff shall be in 
writing and delivered by hand, mail, national overnight courier service or 
by fax if confirmed by telephone to the Customer, at the address or phone 
numbers shown herein or at such other address or phone numbers as 
shall be designated from time to time. 
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SECTION 3. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES 

3.1 General 

The various types of service offered by the Company are described below. The 
Company’s services are billed at predetermined monthly rates, unless there is a 
contiact for a longer billing period. Recurring charges are billed in advance of 
the month in which the service is provided. Any optional features and 
extraordinary installation costs other than recurring and nonrecurring charges 
may apply as described herein. Customers requesting these services may 
subscribe to services on a month-to-month basis, or on an individual case basis 
as described in Section 3.6. 

3.2 Service Configurations 

There are two types of service configuration over which Company’s services are 
provided: point-to-point and multipoint service. 

3.2.1 Point-to-Point Service 

Point-to-Point Service connects two premises designated by the 
Customer, either on a directly-connected basis, or through a hub where 
multiplexing functions are performed. 

3.2.2 Multipoint Service 

Multipoint Services connect three or more premises designated by the 
Customer through a Company hub. While there is no limitation on the 
number of locations that may be connected through multipoint service, 
the quality of service may be degraded when more than three points are 
connected. Multipoint services may be provided where it is technically 
possible to provide those services. However, if the Company determines 
that the requested multipoint service is not feasible, the Customer will be 
notified and provided an opportunity to change the order within forty-five 
(45) days. 

Issued: January ~, 201 1 Effective: ,2011 

N73639827.1 

Peter Chevalier, Associate General Counsel 
Zayo Group, LLC 

400 Centennial Parkway, Suite 200 
Louisville, CO 80027 



+ 

Arizona Tariff No. 1 
Original Page 30 

Zayo Group, LLC 

I SECTION 3. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES (Cont’d) 

3.3 Service Descriptions and Technical Specifications 

The Company offers the following services: 

3.3.1 Ethernet Service 

The Company provides point-to-poi nt broadband com mu n ications 
services through I OOMbps, 1 Gbps, and 1 OGbps Ethernet circuits, 
provided between locations designated by the Customer and/or between 
such locations and a Company hub, through fiber optic cable owned or 
controlled by Company. 

3.3.2 Point-to-Point and Hubflail TDM Services 

The Company provides high-speed point-to-point and hubhail broadband 
communications services through DS3, OC3, OC12, and OC-48 TDM 
circuits, provided between locations designated by the Customer and/or 
between such locations and a Company hub, through fiber optic cable 
owned or controlled by Company. Services are typically provisioned over 
a SONET-ring network architecture. 

3.3.3 Local Service 

Business local Access Line. 
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SECTION 3. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES (Cont’d) 

3.4 Rate Categories 

There are six rate categories that may apply to the Company’s Services. 

3.4.1 Monthly Recurring Charges (“MRC”) 

Monthly Recurring Charges are charges invoiced to the Customer that 
occur each month during the term of the services ordered by the 
Customer. 

3.4.2 Nonrecurring Charges (“NRC”) 

Nonrecurring Charges are one-time charges to the Customer that do not 
occur on a recurring basis. Service installation charges, special 
construction and customer premise visits are included in Nonrecurring 
Charges. 

3.4.3 Extraordinary Charges 

From time to time, Customers may request special services not 
addressed specifically by rate elements in this Tariff, or services to 
locations that may cause Company to incur extraordinary expemes not 
contemplated in the provision of standard service offerings. These costs 
include, but are not limited to: 

Additional construction costs 

Building space rental or rights-of-way costs 

Additional equipment 

Special facilities rwting 

In these cases, the Customer will be billed additional charges on an ICB. 
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SECTION 3. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES (Cont’d) 

3.4 1 

3.5 

Rate Categories (Cont’d) 

3.4.4 Volume Discounts 

Discounts for specified dollar volumes of traffic to a specific location or 
aggregate dollar volumes may apply to Customers that subscribe to 
substantial volumes of the Company’s services. 

3.4.5 Term Discounts 

Customers will be eligible for discounts for executing agreements for 
services for one to ten years. 

Application of Rate Elements 

The rate categories described in this Tariff will be applied as follows, when 
applicable: 

3.5.1 Point-to-Point Services 

Flat rate MRC/NRC 

Optional Features and Functions 

Extraordinary Charges 

Volume Discounts 

Term Discounts 

3.5.2 Multipoint Services 

Flat rate MRC/NRC 

Optional Features and Functions 

Extraordinary Charges 

Volume Discounts 

Term Discounts 
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SECTION 3. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES (Cont’d) 

3.6 

3.7 

3.8 

Contract Rates - Special Pricing Arrangements - IC9 

3.6.1 

3.6.2 

In lieu of the rates, terms and conditions set forth in this Tariff, rates and 
charges may be established at negotiated rates on an ICB, taking into 
account the nature of the facilities and services, the costs of construction 
and operation, the volume of traffic, the length of service commitment by 
the Customer, and use of facilities by other Customers. Such 
arrangements shall be considered Special Pricing Arrangements, the term 
of which will be set forth in individual Customer contracts. Unless 
otherwise specified in the individual Customer contract, the terms, 
conditions, obligations and regulations set forth in this Tariff shall be 
incorporated into, and become a part of, said contract, and shall be 
binding on the Company and the Customer. In the event of a conflict 
between the terms and conditions of this Tariff and an individual 
Customer contract, the terms and conditions from the individual Customer 
contract shall apply. Specialized rates or charges will be made avaiiable 
to similarly-situated Customers on a non-discriminatory basis. 

In addition to any rate or charge established by the Company, the 
Customer will also be responsible for any recurring or non-recurring 
charges imposed by telephone companies incurred by or on behalf of the 
Customer in establishing and maintaining service. Such charges may be 
billed by the Company or directly by the telephone company, at the 
Company’s option. 

Taxes 

3.7.1 Sales, Use and Excise Taxes 

In addition to all recurring, non-recurring, usage or special charges, 
Customer shall also be responsible for and shall pay all applicable federal, 
state and local sales, use and excise taxes. 

Tem pora ry Promotion a I Programs 

The Company may establish temporary promotional programs wherein it may 
waive or reduce recurring or non-recurring charges, to introduce a present or 
potential Customer to a service no previously subscribed to by the Customer. 
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SECTION 4. RATES AND CHARGES 

4.1 General Regulations 

4.1.1 Except as specifically indicated, the rates set forth in this section are for 
private line services where the originatincj and terminating points are on 
Company's existing network. In ail other situations, special construction 
charges may apply in order to connect locations to Company's network. 

4.1.2 Services may be provided using one, or a combination of rate elements as 
outlined in this Tariff. 

4.2 Charges for Changes to Pending Orders, Service Rearrangements and Expedite 
Charges 

From time to time, Customers may request (i) changes to pending orders, (ii) 
rearrangements to existing service, and (iii) order completion sooner than 
standard intervals. For changes to pending orders and existing services, the 
Customer will be required to reimburse the Company for any third party costs 
incurred to provision such service changes plus a maximum of $800 per order. 
To expedite an order, the customer will be required to reimburse the Company 
for any third party costs incurred to expedite the order plus a maximum of $1,000 
per order. 

4.3 Nonrecurring Charge 

Non recurring charges will be charged on a time and materials basis. 

4.3.1 Customer Premise Visits 

For customer premise visits, Company will charge on an hourly basis, 
rounded to the next 15 minute interval with the below minimums. 

1. M-F (business hours 8am-5pm local premise time) - Maximum $120 
per hour with a 2 hour minimum 

2. M-F (out of business hours) and weekends - Maximum $150 per hour 
with a 4 hour minimum 

3. Holidays - Maximum $200 per hour with a 4 hour minimum 
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SECTION 4. RATES AND CHARGES (Cont’d) 

4.4 Special Construction 

4.4.1. Bases for Rates and Charges 

Rates and charges for special construction will be based on the casts 
incurred by the Company and may include (1) nonrecurring type charges; 
(2) recurring type charges; (3) termination liabilities; or (4) combinations 
thereof. 

4.4.2 The costs referred to in Section 4.4.1 may include one or more of the 
following items to the extent that they are applicable: 

A. 

B. 

C. 

D. 

E. 

F. 

G. 

H. 

Installed cost of the facilities, including estimated costs for the 
rearrangement of existing facilities. Cost installed includes the cost 
of: 

1. 
2. engineering, labor and supervision, 
3. transportation, and 
4. rights-of-way; 

equipment and materials provided or used, 

cost of maintenance; 

depreciation on the estimated installed cost of any facilities 
provided, based on the anticipated useful service life of the facilities 
with an appropriate allowance for the estimated net salvage; 

administration, taxes, and uncollectible revenue on the basis of 
reasonable average costs for these items; 

license preparation, processing, and related fees; 

tariff preparation, processing, and related fees; 

any other identifiable costs related to the facilities provided; or 

an amount for return and contingencies. 
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SECTION 4. RATES AND CHARGES (Cont'd) 

4.5 Rates 

4.5.7 Point-to-Point and Multipoint Services 

4.5.1 .I Metro PhGenix Recurring Charges (on-net circuit originates 
and terminates in the Phoenix market) 

DS3 Point to Point 
OC3 Point to Point 
OC12 Point to Point 
OC12 Hub 
OC48 Hub 
D S 3  Tail 
OC3 Tail 
OCl2 Tail 
100Mb Point to Point 
1000Mb Point to Point 

Maximum 
$1,040 
$2,595 
$5,973 
$4, 'lo0 
$8,200 
$500 
$1,300 
$3,000 
$1,890 
$7,290 

4.5.2 Service Elements 

4.5.2.1 Metro Phoenix Nonrecurring Charges (on-net only) 

D S 3  Point to Point 
OC3 Point to Point 
OC12 Point to Point 
OC12 Hub 
OC48 Hub 
D S 3  Tail 
OC3 Tail 
OC12 Tail 
100Mb Point to Point 
1000Mb Point to Point 

Maximum 
$1,000 
$2,000 
$3,000 
$3,000 
$5,000 
$1,000 
$2,000 
$3,000 
$2,000 
$5,000 

Issued: January ~, 201 1 Effective: ,2011 

Peter Chevalier, Associate General Counsel 
Zayo Group, LLC 

400 Centennial Parkway, Suite 200 
Louisville, CO 80027 

Al73639827.1 
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SECTION 4. RATES AND CHARGES (Cont’d) 

4.5 Rates (Cont’d) 

4.5.3 Local Service Offerings 

Service Establishment Charge: 

Maximum 
New Lines $140.00 

Recurring Service Charges (per month, per line) 

Business 
Maximum 
$47.00 

Issued:+-January ~, 201 1 Effective: ,2011 

Peter Chevalier, Associate General Counsel 
Zayo Group, LLC 

400 Centennial Parkway, Suite 200 
Louisville, CO 80027 

N73639827.1 
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Peter Chevalier, Associate General Counsel 
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Grant t’hsrnton 

Report of Independent Certified 
Public Accountants 

Audit * Tax - Advisory 

Grant Thornton LLP 
707 17th Street, Suite 32M) 
Denver, CO 80202-3336 
T 303.813.4000 
F 303.839.5711 
www.GranlThomton.com 

To the Members of 
Zayo Group, LLC and Subsidiaries 

\%‘e have audted the accompanying consohdated balance sheets of &yo Group, LLC (a 
Delaware corporation) and subsidiaries (collectively, the “Compaiij-”) as of June 30,2010 and 
2009, and the related consohdated statements of operations, member’s eqmty, and cash flows 
for each of the three years 111 the period ended June 30,2010. These financial statements are the 
responsibdity of the Company’s management Our responsibdity is to express an opinion on 
these financial smteinents based on our audrts. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America established by the Americm Institute of Certified Public Accountants. 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the consolidated financid svatements are free of material misstatement. An audit 
includes coilsideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures iii the financid statements, assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable 
basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of Zapo Group, LLC and subsidaries as of June 30, 
2010 and 2009, and the results of their operations ;tnd their cash flou7s for each of the three 
years in the period ended June 30,2010 in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

Denver, Colorado 
September 10,201 0 

Grant Thwnton LLP 
U S. member fnm of Grant Thornton Internatronal LId 

http://www.GranlThomton.com


3AYO GROUP, LLC AND SUBSIDIARZE 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
(in thousands) 

June 30, 
2010 2009 

Cash and cash equibalents $ 89,161 $ 38,781 
I Restricted cash. current 

Iradereceiv~bles, nut ofdllo\\ancr.of 91,093 mdSI,I51 3soflune 10,2010and 2009, 
rcspcctivdy 12,721 4,755 
Due fromrelated parties 871 30 

- .. , . - . 
Deferred incoiiir. t ucs  7,050 
Restricted cash, nnn-iurrmt 215 
Debt issuance cosk, i x t  9,560 3,536 
Other assets 4,144 3,072 

. .  
Current liabilities 

Accounts payable 10,502 $ 6,279 

Current porlion of capital k o s e  ohli+mms 1,673 1,959 
Cunwi porrioii Img-tznn dcht 1,350 
Defrncd revcnue, current portion , 8,146 2,602 
Liabilitics ddissoritinusli cycr.iti,ms, currcnt 2,602 

'Iota1 rurrent liabilities 46,464 26,431 ' 

Capiial lease oblisations, net olcurrcnt poltion 1 1.033 13,204 

Ilefened revenue, uct ofciirrci~t portion 22,648 18,724 
lung-term debt, ~ict  ntcunc.i~t portioii 247,080 134,975 

Stock-based compensation liability 2 1,623 4,590 

Member's eouit, . .  
Member's intmst 217,129 2 17,473 
Accurnul.itcd deficit (3.903) (4.454) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated fmancial statements 
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I ’  ZAYO GROUP, LLC AND SUBSIDIARH 

I .  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

(in thousands) 

I Years ended June 30, 
2010 2009 2008 

Reveiiue S 224,045 $ 150,804 !I 77,569 

Operating costs and cxpenscs 

Operating costs, excluding depreciation and amortlzation 73,537 48,797 24,328 
I 

I 

ODeratine income 17 135 514 

Other income (expense) 
Interest cxperise ( 1  8,692) ( 1  5,248) (6,287) 
Other income 10,607 249 35 1 

Earnmgd(1oss) from continuing operations before income 
taxes 3.359 (1  1.396) (5 -4 02) 

Provision/(benefit) for income taxes 6 293 , - > -  , \ - -  , - .~ 

1,oss fioin co~itinuuig opernfwiis (2,034) (9,290) (4,703) 

Eanungs from discontwued operations, net of income taxes 3,395 7,043 2,750 

Net earnings/(loss) 461 $ (2,247) $ (1,953) 

I The accompanying notes are a integral pari of these consolidated financial statements. 
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. 
EAYO GROUP, LLC AND SUBSIDLARE 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF MEMBER'S EQUITY 
(in thousands) 

Total 
Member's Accumulated Member's 

interest deficit equity 

Balance at July 1,2007 3 6,737 S (253) $ 6,543 
Capital contributed (cash) 166,450 166,450 

Balance at June 30,2008 179,878 (2,207) 177,671 

Capital contributed (cash) 35,546 35,546- 
Stock-based comvensation 2.049 2.049 - 

Net loss (2,247) (2,247) 

Balance at June 30,2009 2 17,473 (4,454) 2 13,O 19' 

Capital contributed (cash) 39,800 39,800 
Capital contiibutions (non-cash) 1.200 1200 
Stock-based compensation 1,195 1,195 
Spin-off of Onvoy Voice Services (42,539) (42,539) 

Balance at June 30,2010 S 217,129 16 (3,993) S 213,136 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements 
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LAY0 GROUP, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIE 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
(in thousands) 

June 30, 
2010 2009 2008 

Loss 00 disposal of assets 66 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements 

Continued 
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ZAYO GROUP, LLC AND SUBSIDLARL 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
(in thousands) 

Cash f l o w s  from financinr activities: 
Lquity contributions 39 no0 35,546 166.450 

F‘rineipJI repa\ni~nt, un ticbt ohliyarions ( 1  66,193) (10,677) 
Proceeds from brroninq\ 176,948 47,000 100,002 

Principal rep.iyincnts on c~pita! 1c.iw oblipatiuns (2,132j (2267) (877) 
Ilc.tlLteil cJLh (230) 
IXlcrred findncine COSIS (12,353) (1,681) (4,&15) 

260,700 Net cath provided by finanrinp activities 136,010 67,’!21 

(‘a\h flows fioin discontinued operation\: 
Operatine activtties 10,144 11,932 1,143 
lnve\tine .ictivit IC‘S (781) (1,033) (36,762) 
Finmeins actit ities 

hrt c .14  PI o*idetl/(utrd) b l  chcontinued operations - 10,899 -, 

Nct incrure in c3\h and c.~sIi q u i \  dents 50,436 33,583 4,090 

(liicre.:s)/ decruw i n  c ~ d i  and La\h equi\Jlcnt> ut Ji\wntinued uprratiuns (58 )  641 (1.068) 
Cash and caLh equivalents, begmnmg of ycar 38,781 4.554 1,552 

(’ash and rash equi\alcnt\, end of w ~ r  $ 89,161 $ 3 8 . m  S 9 -  

Sirppleniental diwlo\urr of cash flows information: 
Cas11 paid lor 1111cred S 6,215 S IO,&!> 5 5,116 
Cdsh pa::! for income 13xrs 257 32 6 5 

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash, investing and financing activities: 

The Company had approximately $7,032, $3,665 and $5,012 of accrued construction liabilities relating to its various 
deveiopment projects as of June 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The Company has adjusted the total 
purcliases of property and equipment by these amounts to reflect the cash amounts paid in the respective periods. In 
addition, the Company entered into capital leases of approximately $324, $1,650 and $1,180 during the year ended 
June 30,201 0,2009 and 2008, respectively. The Conipany has offset the total purchases of property and equipment 
by these mounts. 

Subsequent to the spin-off of Onvoy Voice Services (“Onvoy”) (See Note 4 - Spin-o$of Onvoy Voice Services 
Segment) the Company utilized $3,001 of net operating losses (“NOL”) of Onvoy which is now a subsidiary of the 
Company’s parent - Coinrnunications Infrastructure Investments, LLC (“CII”). The Company has accounted for the 
benefit realized from the usage of the NOLs of $1,200 as a non-cash equity contribution from its Parent. 

During fiscal year 2008 CII contributed to the Company through Holdings property from Voicepipe 
Communications, Inc. valued at $3,250. 

Refer to Note 3 - Acyztisitions, of the Company’s consolidated fmancial statements for details of the Conipany’s 
recent acquisitions and Note 4 - Spin-ofs of Onvoy Voice Semzces Segment, for details of the Company’s 
discontinued operations. 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements 
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JAY0 GROUP, LLC AND SUBSIDLARE, 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(1) ORGANIZATION AND DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS 

Zayo Group, LLC, a Delaware Limited Liability Company (“LLC”), formerly CII Holdco, Inc., and, prior to that, 
Zayo Bandwidth, Inc., was fonned on May 4,2007, and is the operating parent company of a number of subsidiaries 
engaged in telecomniunication services. Zayo Group, LLC and its subsidiaries are col!ectively referred to as “Zayo 
Group” or the “Company”. Headquartered in Louisville, Colorado, the Company operates an integrated 
metropolitan and nationwide fiber optic infrastructure to offer: 

Converged and data services 

Private line services consisting of local and intercity dedicated facilities. 

Colocation services and intra building transport services. 

Zayo Group, LLC is wliolly owned by Zayo Group Holdings, Inc., (“Holdings”) which in turn is wholly owned by 
Comiunications Infrastructure Investments, LLC (“CII”). Zayo Group Holdings, Inc. has no operations and was 
formed to pledge its equity interest in Zayo Group, LLC, to the Company’s lenders. 

(2) BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

a. Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying consolidated frnancial statements include all the accounts of the Company and its 
wholly owned subsidiaries. All intercompany accounts and trmsactions have been eliminated in 
consolidation. Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year 
presentation. The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“GAAP”). 

b. Spin-off of operating segment 

On March 12, 2010, the Company completed a spin-off of one of its operating segments, Onvoy Voice 
Services (“Onvoy”). The Company distributed all assets and liabilities of Onvoy to Holdings. Consistent 
with the discontinued operations reporting provisions of the Financial Accounting Standards Board 
(“FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 280-20, Disconlimed Operations, the Company 
determined that it had discontinued all significant cash flows and continuing involvement with respect to 
Onvoy’s operations and therefore consider these to be discontinued operations. Therefore, for the periods 
presented the results of the operations of Onvoy have been aggregated and are presented in a single caption 
entitled “Earnings from discontinued operations, net of income taxes” on the accompanying consolidated 
statements of operations. The Company has not allocated any general corporate overhead to amounts 
presented in discontinued operations, nor has it elected to allocate interest costs. Assets and liabilities 
associated with Onvoy have been segregated from continuing operations and presented as assets and 
liabilities of discontinued operations on the accompanying June 30, 2009 consolidated balance sheet. Also 
see Note 4 - Spin-offof Onvoy Voice Senice Segnient for furtlier information. 

Unless otherwise noted, dollar amounts and disclosures throughout the Compary’s Notes to the 
Consolidated Ficancial Statements relate to the Company’s continuing operations and :re presented in 
thousands of dollars. 

’7 
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ZAYO GROUP, LLC AND SUBSIDlARR 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

c. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of the Company's consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States requires the Company's management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosures of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the fmmcial statements and the reported ammnts of revenue and expense 
during the reporting period. Significant estimates are used when establishing allowances for doubtful 
accounts, reserves for disputed line cost billings, determining useful lives for depreciation and 
amortization, assessing the need for impairment charges, allocating purchase price among the fair vaIues of 
assets acquired and liabilities assumed, accounting for income taxes, stock-based compensation liability 
and various other items. The Company evaluates these estimates and judgments on an ongoing basis and 
bases its estimates on historical experience, current conditions and various other assumptions that are 
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The results of these estimates form &e basis for making 
judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities as well as identifylng md assessing the 
accounting treatment with respect to commitments and contingencies. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates under different assumptions or conditions. 

d. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash 

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less to be 
cash and cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are stated at cost, which approximates fair value. Restricted 
cash consists of cash balances held by various financial institutions as collateral for letters of credit and 
surety bonds. These balances are reclassified to cash and cash equivalents when the underlying obligation 
is satisfied, or in accordance with the governing agreement. Restricted cash balances expected to become 
unrestricted during the next twelve months are recorded as current assets. 

e. Trade Receivables 

Trade receivables are recorded at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest. Amounts collected on trade 
receivables are included in net cash provided by operating activities in the consolidated statements of cash 
flows. The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses inherent in its trade 
receivable portfolio. In establishing the required allowance, management considers historical losses 
adjusted to take into account current market conditions and the customer's financial condition, the amount 
of receivables in dispute, and the age of receivables and current payment patterns. Account balances are 
charged off against the allowance after all means of collection have been exhausted and the potential for 
recovery is considered remote. 

f. Property and Equipment 

The Company's property and equipment inciudes assets in service and under construction or development. 

Property and equipment is recorded at historical cost or acquisition fair value (net of reductions for the 
allocation of gain on bargain purchase for acquisitions recorded prior to July 1, 2009). Costs associated 
directly with network construction, service installations <and development of business support systems 
including employee related costs, are capitalized. Depreciation is calcuIated on a straight-line basis over the 
assets' estimated useful lives ftom the date placed into service, which are determined based on historical 
usage with consideration given to technological changes, trends in the industry and other economic factors 
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Z4YO GROUP, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIl 

* NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STGTEMICNTS 

that could impact the network architecture and asset utilization. Assets held for sale are stated at the lower 
of the carrying value or fair market value less costs to sell and are not depreciated. 

Equipment acquired under capital leases are recorded at the lower of the fair value of the asset or the net 
present value of the minimuni lease payments at the inception of the lease (net of reductions for the 
allocation of gain on bargain purchase for acquisitions recorded prior to July 1, 2009). Amortization of 
equipment held under capital leases is included in depreciation and amortization expense, and is calculated 
on a straigfit-line basis over the estimated usefil lives of the assets, or the related lease term, whichever is 
shorter. 

In accordance with ASC 360-10-35 (fornierly FASB Statement No 144), the Company reviews long-lived 
assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of its 
assets may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized when the assets’ carrying value exceeds 
both the assets’ estimated undiscounted future cash flows and the assets’ estimated fair value. Measurement 
of the impairment loss is then based on the estimated fair value of the assets. Co~siderable judgment is 
required to project such fkture cash flows and, if required, to esiiinate the fair value ofthe long-lived assets 
and the amount of the impairment. 

g. Goodwill and Purchased Intangibles 

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net identifiable assets 
acquired in a business combination. Goodwill is reviewed for impairment at least annually in April and 
when a triggering event occurs between impairment test dates, in accordxice with the provisions of ASC 
350 (formerly FASB Statement No. 142). Goodwill and Other Iiifangible Assets. The goodwill impainnent 
test is a two-step test. Under the fKst step, the fair value of the reporting unit is compared with its carrying 
value (including goodwill). If the fair value of the reporting unit is less than its carrying value, an indication 
of goodwill impairment exists for the reporting unit and the enterprise must perform step two of the 
impairment test (measurement). Ur?der step two, an impairment loss is recognized for any excess of the 
carrying amount of the reporting unit’s goodwill over the implied fair vaiue of that goodwill. The implied 
fair value of goodwill is determined by allocating the fair value of the reporting unit in a manner similar to 
a purchase price allocation, in accordance with ASC 805-10 (Formerly FASB Statement No. 141), Business 
Combinations. The residual fair value after this allocation is the implied fair value of the reporting unit 
goodwill. Fair value of the reporting unit is determined using a discounted cash flow analysis. If the fair 
value of the reporting unit exceeds its carrying value, step two does not need to be performed. 

Intangible assets with estimable usefd lives are amortized over their respective estimated usehl lives and 
reviewed for iiipairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of 
the asset may not be recoverable. No impairment charge was recorded during the years ended June 30, 
201 0.2009 or 2008. 

h. Derivative Financial Instruments 

The Company utilizes interest rate swaps to mitigate its exposure to interest rate risk. Derivative 
instruments are recorded in the balance sheet as either assets or liabilities, measured at fair vahe. Changes 
in fair value are recognized in earnings. The Company entered into interest rate swaps to convert a portion 
of its floating rate debt to fixed rate debt and did not elect to apply hedge accounting. The interest rate 
differentials to be paid or received under such derivatives and the changes in the fair value of the 
instruments are recognized and recorded as adjustments to interest expense. The principle objectives nf the 
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ZAYO GROUP, LLC AND SUBSIDIARII 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

derivative instruments are to minimize the interest rate risks associated with financing activities. The 
Conipany does not use fmancial instruments for trading purposes. The Company has open interest rate 
swap contracts which were entered into in connection with obtaining the Company’s term loans. The term 
loans were paid in full from the proceeds of the Company’s high yield bond offering in March 2010. The 
interest rate swaps associated with the term loans were not cancelled however the contracts terminate in 
September 2010. See Note 8 - Long-term Debt, for m h e r  discussion of the Company’s debt obligations 
and Note 12 - Fuir Murkel Meusurernenfs, for a discussion of the fair market value of the interest rate 
swaps. 

i. Revenue Recognition 

The Company’s revenue was generated from the following products and services: 

Year ended June 30, 

2010 2009 2008 

Percentage Percentage Percentage 
Amounts (1) Amounts (1) Amounts (1) 

Converged 
and data 
scrviccs $33,245 14.8% $26,043 17.3% $12,’)46 16.7% 
Private line 

_____ $224,045 100% $1 50,804 100% - $77,569 100% 

(I)  Represents percentage of revenue 
( 2 )  Colocation services business was acquired in September 2009 

In accordance with ASC 605-1 0 Revenue Recognition, the Company recognizes revenues derived fkom 
leasing fiber optic telecommunications infrastructure and the provision of telecommunications and co- 
location services when the service has been provided and when there is persuasive evidence of an 
arrangemeGt, the fee is fmed or determinable and collection of the receivable is reasonably assured. Taxes 
collected from customers and remitted to governmental authority are reported on a net basis and are 
excluded fiom revenue. 

Most revenue is billed in advance on a fixed rate basis. The remainder of revenue is billed in arrears on a 
transactional basis detennhed by customer usage. Fees billed in connection with customer installations and 
other up-fi-ont charges are deferred and recognized as revenue ratably over the contract life. 
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* TAYO GROUP, LLC AND SUBSIDLARIE 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

j. Operating Costs and Accrued Liabilities 

The Company leases certain network facilities, primarily circuits, f?om other local exchange camers to 
augment its owned infrastructure for which it is generally billed a fued monthly fee. The Company also 
uses the facilities of other carriers for which it is billed on a usage basis. 

The Company recognizes the cost of these facilities or services when it is incurred in accordance with 
contractual requirements. The Company disputes incorrect billings. The most prevalent types of disputes 
include disputes for circuits that are not disconnected on a timely basis and usage bills with incorrect or 
inadequate call detail records. Depending on the type and complexity of the issues involved, it may take 
several quarters to resolve disputes. 

In detemiining the amount of such operating expenses and related accrued liabilities to reflect in its 
consolidated financial statements, the Company considers the adequacy of documentation of disconnect 
notices, compliance with prevailing contractual requirements for submitting such disconnect notices and 
disputes to the provider of the facilities, and compliance with its interconnection agreements with these 
carriers. Significant judgment is required in estimating the ultimate outcome of the dispute resolution 
process, as well as any other amounts that may be incurred to conclude the negotiations or settle any 
litigation. 

k Stock-based Compensation 

The Conipany accounts for stock-based compensation in accordance ASC 71 8 (formerly FASB Statement 
No. 123R), Conyensation - Stock Compensation. The conunon units granted in the Company’s ultimate 
Parent company, CII, are considered stock-based compensation with terms that require the awards to be 
classified as liabilities. As such, the Company accounts foi these awards as a liability and re-measures the 
liability at each reporting date. These awards vest over a period of four years or Mly vest subsequent to a 
liquidation event. 

1. Government Grants 

The Conipany receives grant moneys from the Federal Recovery Act Broadband Opportunity Program. 
The Company accounts for grant moneys received as a deduction from the cost of the asset in arriving at its 
book value. The grant is thus recognized in earnings over the usefd life of a depreciable asset by way of a 
reduced depreciation charge. 

m. Income Taxes 

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with ASC 740 (formerly SFAS No. 109 Accoimtiizg 
for Income Tuxes). Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the fiiture tax consequences 
attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities 
and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates 
expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be 
recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in 
earnings in the period that includes the enactment dare. 

The Company records interest related to unrecognized tax benefits and penalties in income tax expense. 
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ZAYO GROUP, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIE. 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

n. Pair Value of Financial Instruments 

The Company adopted ASC 820-10 (formerly FASB No. 157, Fair Vulue Measurerizeizts), for its financial 
assets and liabilities effective June 30, 2009. This pronouncement defines fair value, establishes a 
framework for nieasuring fair value, and requires expanded disclosures about fair value 
measurements. ASC 820-10 emphasizes that fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity- 
specific nieasuenient, and defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or transfer a 
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. ASC 820-10 
discusses valuation techniques, such as the market approach (comparable market prices), the income 
approach (present value of future income or cash flow) and the cost approach (cost to replace the service 
capacity of an asset or replacement cost), which are each based upon observable and unobservable 
inputs. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained fiom independent sources, while unobservable 
inputs reflect the Company’s market assumptions. 

Fair Value Hierarchy 

ASC 820-10 establishes a fair value hierarchy that requires an entity to maximize the use of observable 
inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. A financial instrument’s 
categorization within the fair value hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to 
the fair value measurement. GAAP establishes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair 
value: 

Level I 

Inputs to the valuation methodoiogy are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active 
markets that the Company has the ability to access. 

Level 2 

Inputs to the valuation methodology include: 

Quoted prices for similar assets or 1iabiIities in active markets; 

Quoted prices for idestical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive niarkets; 

Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability; 

Inputs that are derived principally fiom or corroborated by observable market data by 
correlation or other means. 

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must be observable for 
substantially the full term of the asset or liability. 

Level 3 

inputs to the valuation meCiodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement. 

ASC 820- 10 defines fair value as the price that would be received from selling an asset or paid to transfer a 
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants ai the measurement date. When determining 
the fair value measurenients for assets and liabilities required to be recorded at fair value, the Company 
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,AYO GROUP, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIE, 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

considers the principal or most advantageous market in which it would transact and considers assumptions 
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, such as inherent risk, transfer 
restrictions, and risk of nonperformance. 

The Company’s financial instrunients consist of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, accounts 
receivable, accounts payable, interest rate swaps and long-term debt. The Company records its stock- 
based compensation liability at fair value 

0. Concentration of Credit Risk 

Financial instruments which potentially subject the Company to concentration of credit risk consist 
principally of temporary cash investments and accounts receivable. The Company does not enter into 
financial instnments for trading or speculative purposes. The Conipany’s cash and cash equivalents are 
held in commercial bank accounts in the United States of America. Account balances generally exceed 
federally insured limits, however the Company limits its cash investments to high quality financial 
institutions in order to minimize its credit risk. The Company’s Eade receivables, which are unsecured, are 
geogrzphically dispersed. During fiscal year 2010 the Company had one customer which represented 12 
percent of the Conipany’s total revenue. No customers represented greater than 10 percent of total revenue 
during 2009 and 2008. As of June 30,2010 and 2009 the Company did not have a single customer with a 
trade receivable balance exceeding 10 percer,t of the Company’s consolidated net trade receivable balance. 

p. Recently Issiied Accounting Standards 

In June 2009, the FASB issued ASC 105 (fonnerly FASB Statement No. 168), Generally Accepted 
Accozintzng Principles, establishing the FASB Accounting Standards Codi9cation (ASC) as the source of 
authoritative generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) to be applied by nongovernmental entities. 
ASC 105 is effective for annual and interim periods ending after September 15,2009, and the Company has 
updated its references to GAAP in this report in accordance with the provisions of this pronouncement. The 
implementation ul’ ASC 105 did not have an effect on the Company’s fmancial position or results of 
operati ons . 

In February 201 0, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2010-09, Szrbseqzient Events, 
wvbich updated ASC 855, Subsequent Events (“ASC 855”). FASB ASU 2010-09 clarifies the date through 
which the Company is required to evaluate subsequent events. Conipanies are required to evaluate 
subsequent events through the date that the financial statements are available to be issued. The Company 
has adopted this standard effective June 30,2010. 

In January 201 0, the FASB issued ASU 2010-06, Improving Disclosures about Fair Value Measurements. 
ASU 201 0-06 requires a reporting entity to disclose separately the amounts of significant transfers in and 
out of Level 1 and Level 2 and describe the reasons for the transfers. A reporting entity should separately 
disclose information about purchases, sales, issuances and settlements for Level 3 reconciliation 
disclosures. The new disclostires and clarifications of existing disclosures are effective for financial 
statements issued interim or annual financial periods ending after December 15, 2009, with the excep?ion 
for the reconciliation disclosures for Level 3, which are effective for financial statements issued with 
interini or annual fmancial periods ending after December 15, 2010. The adoption of the new accounting 
standards gpdate did not have an impact on the Company’s consolidated results of operations, financial 
condition or financial disclosures. 
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In June 2009, the FASB issued ASU 2009-17, Consolidations (ASC Topic 860), a new accounting standard 
that changes the consolidation rules as they relate to variable interest entities. The new standard makes 
significant changes to the model for determining who should consolidate a variable interest entity, and also 
addresses how often this assessment should be performed. The standard becomes effective for Zayo on July 
1,2010. The adoption of the new accounting standards update is not expected to have a material impact on 
the Company’s consolidated results of operations, financial condition or financial disclosures. 

In October 2009, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update Number 2009-13, Revenue Recognition 
(ASC 605) Multiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangements a consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task 
Force. This ASU establishes a new selling price hierarchy to use when allocating the sales price of a 
multiple element arrangement between delivered and undelivered elements. This ASU is generally 
expected to result in revenue recognition for more delivered elements than under current rules. The 
Company is required to adopt this ASU prospectively for new or materially modified agreements beginning 
January 1, 201 1. The Company is evaluating the effect of this ASU, but does not expect its adoption to 
have a material effect on its consolidated financial statements. 

(3) ACQUISITIONS 
The Company adopted the revised guidance for accounting for business combinations in accordance with ASC 805- 
10. These revisions apply to business combinations for acquisitions consummated on or after July 1 ,  2009. These 
revisions had several significant changes to existing accounting practices for business combinations. Most notably, 
(i) acquisition-related transaction costs, such as legal and professional fees, are expensed rather than accounted for 
as part of the acquisition cost; (ii) acquired in-process research and development is capitalized rather than expensed 
at the acquisition date; (iii) contingent consideration is recorded at fair value at the acquisition date rather than the 
points in time that payment becomes probable; and (iv) bargain purchases are recognized by the acquirer in earnings 
rather than as a reduction to certain assets acquired. The standard defines a bargain purchase as a business 
combination in which the total acquisition-date fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired exceeds the fair 
value of the consideration transferred plus any non-controlling interest in the acquiree, 

The adoptitjn of this guidance has and will continue to impact the results of operations and financial position of the 
Company to the extent that the Company makes acquisitions. 

During the thee year period ended June 30, 2010, the Company has consummated the acquisition of ten entities. 
The consummation of the acquisitions was executed as part of the Company’s business strategy of expanding 
through acquisitions. The acquisition of these companies will allow the Company to increase the scale at which it 
operates, which in turn affords the Company the ability to increase its operating leverage, extend its network reach, 
and broaden its customer base. 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the operations and financial position of the acquired 
entities from their respective acquisition dates. 
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Acquisition during fiscal year 2010 

Fibernet Nehvorks Telecoin Crotrp, Inc. (“Fibemet ’3 

On September 9, 2009 the Company acquired all of the outstanding equity interest in Fibernet. Fibemet is a 
communications service provider focused on providing complex interconnection services enabling the exchange of 
voice, video and data traffic between global networks. Fibernet owns and opzrates integrated colocation facilities 
and diverse transport routes in the two gateway markets of New York/New Jersey, Los Angeles, Chicago, Miami 
and San Francisco. FiberNet’s network infrastructure and facilities are designed to provide comprehensive 
broadband interconnectivity for the world’s largest network operators, including leading domestic and international 
telecommunications carriers, service providers and enterprises. 

The following table presents the allocation of the purchase price to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, and 
based on their estimated fair values. Acquisition-related costs associated with the Fibemet acquisition of $698 have 
been charged to selling, general and administrative expenses during the year emied Tune 30, 2010. 

Fibernet 

Acquisition date September 9,2009 

Current liabilities I 1,534 
Deferred rcveiiue 7,257 
Total 1i;tbllities 3 S S l l i i i d  18,79 1 
Net assel3 113,164 
Excess of net assets over purclmc consideration (bargain purchase) 9,08 1 
Purchase considcralion 104,083 

Cash acquircd 7,5 I2 
Net c;isli mid s 96.571 

During the year ended June 30, 2010, the Company recognized a gain on bargain purchase associated with the 
Fibernet acquisition. The gain of S9,081 is included in the other income caption on the consolidated statements of 
operations. The bargain purchase is primarily the result of recording of deferred income tax assets for the Net 
Operating Loss carryforwards (“NOLs’3 of Fibernet, in view of the Company’s evaluation that these deferred 
income tax assets will more likely than not be reaiized. Upon the determination that the Company was going to 
recognize a gain related to the bargain purchase, the Company reassessed its valuation assnlptions utilized as par$ 
of the acquisition accounting No adjustments to the acquisition accounting valuations were identified as a result of 
nianagement ’s reassessment. 
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Acquisition during fiscal year 2009 

Columbia Fiber Solutions (“CFS’Y and Northwest Telephone, Inc. CA, LLC (‘‘NTI CA ’7 
On September 30, 2008 the Company acquired a11 of the outstanding equity interests in CFS. CFS is a provider of 
leased dark fiber services and fiber-based Ethernet services over a transparent LAN (TLS) infrastructure in the 
Inland Northwest. On May 26, 2009, the Company acquired all of the outstanding equity interest in NTI CA. NTI 
CA is a local exchange carrier and inter exchange carrier which provides carrier access services in rural and 
underserved markets in California. 

The following table presents the allocation, of the purchase price to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, 
based on their estimated fair values: 

CFS NTI CA 
Acquisition date September 30,2008 May 26,2009 . 

Cmelri assets $ 46 I 6 1 

Goodwill 4,170 
Other assets 101 
Total assets acauired 12.815 194 

Current liabilities 500 179 - -  

Deferred rcvenuc I54 

Total liabilities assumed 654 179 

Less cash acquired 70 

The full amount of the goodwill associated with the CFS acquisition was allocated to the Zayo Bandwidth business 
segment. 
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Acquisitions during fiscal pear 2008 

Memphis PPL Indiana Onvoy Voicepipe Citvnet Northwest 

August 24. Sepbernber November 7, November 7. February 15, 
Acquisibon date July 31,2007 2007 2a,2w7 2007 2007 2008 May30.2Kt8 

Other assets 13 88 113 ... ._ 

I otai assels acquired 13,612 63,913 37,468 110.565 4,286 106.765 9,461 

Current Iiab,liDes 3,833 4,220 3.485 13,261 364 1.989 1023 

Caoital lease obliaations 616 10 433 1407 1 688 1 594 
- 2  

i ;  
Long-tern debt 303 

Deferred revenue 2.909 10.849 3.051 227 2.520 689 

Defwrpd inmrne taxes 13,255 445 852 

Other liabilities 50 3.831 73 

rotat Iiabtlities assumed 4,439 17.612 14,334 35.108 1.036 - 6,270 4.158 

Purchase consideration 9.173 46,301 23.134 75.457 3.250 100.495 5,303 -- 
Less cash acquired 533 5.495 450 1,292 122 

Less units issued 3,250 
Net a s h  paid (received) $ 9.173 $ 46.301 $ 22,601 $ 69,962 $ (450) ’ S 99,203 $ 5.181 

From the acquisitions consummated in fiscal year 2008, the Zayo Bandwidth and Zayo Enterprise Networks 
business segments were allocate goodwill of $63,861 and $2,541, respectively. $344 of the acquired goodwill was 
allocated to the OVS business segment. 

DurLng the year ended June 30, 2009, additional purchase price in the amount of $8, $i5 and $35 was recorded in 
connection with the Onvoy, Voicepipe and Citynet acquisitions, respectively, due to additional acquisition related 
expenses incurred. The purchase price of the Northwest acquisition was reduced by $618 due to the seller not being 
able to fulfill some of tlie closing conditions resulting in the Company receiving purchase consideration held in 
escrow. 

A portion of the consideration in the Memphis, Onvoy, Citynet and Northwest acquisitions was paid into escrow 
accounts, to be disbursed upon the settlement of various purchase agreement terns including net working capital 
adjustments, severance payments and claims for indemnification. As of June 30,2010,2009 and 2008, $100, $7,335 
and S10,067 was in escrow, respectively. 

In connection with the various acquisitions, the previous owners entered into various agreements, including 
indefeasible rights-of-use agreements with other telecommunication service providers to lease them fiber and other 
infrastructure. In accordance ASC 805-1 0 Business Coinbziiatzons the estimated value of deferred revenu, I= was 
calculated based on its estimated fair value at the acquisition date. The Conipany determined that approximately 
$7,257, $154 and S20,245 of deferred revenile acquired during the years ended June 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008, 
respectively, met the standards of A X  805-10 as representing assumed legal obligations, the balance of the 
defeired revenue, mostly customer prepayments with no remaining obligatiom was not recorded. This deferred 
revenue is expected to be recognized over the next five to twenty years. 
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GOOdWI 11 

The goodwill arising from these acquisitions consists largely of the synergies and economies of scale expected from 
combining the operations of the acquired entities and the Company. Goodwill of $4,170, $5,606 and $52,967 
million from the CFS, Indiana and Citynet acquisitions, respectively, are deductible for tax purposes. The goodwill 
associated with all other acquisitions is not deductible for tax purposes. 

Pro Forma Results (Unazrdited) 

The unaudited pro forma results presented below include the effects of the Company’s 2009 acquisition of Fibernet 
as if it had been consummated as of July 1,  2008. The pro-forma loss for fiscal years 2010 and 2009 include the 
additional depreciation and amortization resulting from the adjustments to the value of fured assets and intangible 
assets resulting from purchase accounting, and interest expense associated with debt used to fimd the acquisition. 
The pro-forma results for fiscal year 2010 also includes an adjustment to reduce the historical FiberNet’s stock- 
based compensation related to the acceleration of stock-based compensation upon the change of control of Fibernet 
and a reduction to FiberNet’s selling, general and administrative expenses related to transaction costs incurred by 
FiberNet related to the acquisition and severance paid to FiberNet’s executives upon a change of control. However, 
the pro fonna results do not include any anticipated synergies or other expected benefits of the acquisition. 
Accordingly, the unaudited pro forma financial information below is not necessarily indicative of either future 
results of operations or results that might have been achieved had the acquisition been consummated as of July 1, 
2009. 

Year ended June 30, 
(unaudited) 2010 2009 
Revenue $ 236,11 I S 212,580 
Loss from continuing operations (3,313) (1 3.265) 

As a result of the numerous acquisitions which occurred during fiscal year 2008 and the time which has elapsed 
since those acquisitions, the Company does not have access to all of the required information necessary to prepare 
pro forma revenue and earnings/(loss) estimates for fiscal year 2008. 

(4) SPIN-OFF OF ONVOY VOICE SERVICES SEGMENT 

During the third quarter of fiscal year 2010, management determined that the services provided by one of the 
Company’s operating segments - Onvoy Voice Services (“Onvoy”), did not fit within the Company’s current 
business model of providing telecom and internet infrastructure services, and the Coinpany therefore spun-off 
Onvoy to Holdings - the parenf of the Company. 

Consistent with the discoptinued operations reporting provisions of ASC 205-20, Discontinued Operations, the 
Company determined that it has discontinued all significant cash flows and continuing involvement with respect to 
the Onvoy operations effective March 12, 2010. Therefore, for the periods presented the results of the Onvoy 
operations have been aggregated in a single caption entitled “Earnings from discontinued operations, net of income 
taxes” on the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. The Company has not allocated any general 
corporate overhead to aniounts piesented in discontinued operations, iior has it elected to allocate interest costs. 
Assets and liabilities associated with Onvoy have been segregated iiom continuing operations and presented as 
assets and liabilities of discontinued operations on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Tum 20- 2009. 
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Earnings from discontinued operations, net of income taxes in the accompanying consolidated statements of 
operations are coniprised of the following: 

Years ended June 30, 
2010 

Earnings before income taxes .R 6077 s 1 1  687 % 4181 - . -  - - - 7 -  - 1 , - - -  ./ 
Income tax expense 2,642 4,644 1,43 1 

Earnings from discontinued operations, net of tax s 3,395 $ 7,043 $ 2,750 

The following is a detail of the assets and liabilities associated with Onvoy classified as assets and liabilities of 
discontinued operations on the acconipanying consolidated balance sheet as of June 30,2009: 

Deferred tax asset and other 21 324 
7 -  - ~. 

Total assets $ 52,207 
Current liabilities 2 602 

Total liabilities 4,969 

The Company continues to have ongoing contractual relationships with Onvoy, which are based on agreements 
which were entered into at estimated inarket rates among the relevant Onvoy and Zayo parties. Subsequent to the 
spin-off the Company has contractual relationships to provide Oiivoy with certalr data and colocation services and 
Onvoy has contractual relationships to provide the Company with certain voice services. Prior io March 12, 2010 
these transactions were eliminated upon consolidation. The following table represents the revenue and expense 
transactions the Coinpany incurred with Onvoy during the years ended June 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008 which were 
elimnated upon consolidation. 

Year ended June 30, 

2010 2009 2008 
Zavn Grnun. LLC r , - -  - ~. - 

Revenue from Onvoy Voice Services $ 2,485 5 1,570 S 967 

(” - Certain intercompany transactions between the Company and Onvoy have historicajly Seen internally 
accounted for as a reduction to expenses rather than revenues. Pilor to the spin-off these transactions eliminated 
upon consolidation. 
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Subsequent to the spin-off the revenue and expenses associated with transactions with Onvoy are recorded in the 
results from continuing operations. The Company recognized revenue and incurred expenses from Onvoy in the 
amount of $1,436 and $564 during the period March 12, 2010 through June 30, 2010. As of the spin-off date the 
Company had a receivable balance fiom Onvoy in the amount of $841. 

The Company has determined that the continuing cash flows to and from Onvoy are not direct cash flows of the 
disposed segment and as such the requirements of ASC 205-20-50 Disclosures, as it relates to discontinued 
operations presentation have been met. 

(5) PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

Property and equipment, including assets held under capital leases, was comprised of the following: 

June 30, Estimated useful 
lives (in years) 2010 2009 

Land N/A $209 E209 
Buildings improvements and site 

Computer hardware 3 to 5 3 292 2 165 

-. Piber oDtic network l A l  1 7 1  ;1a RII 1 .A,' I 1  ,,,,.,, I 

Construction ~ in progress N/A 40,443 17,102 
T0t;il 359,336 244,002 

Less accuinulatcd deprccialioii (57,425) (28,379) 

Property and equipment, net $301,911 $216,583 

Total depreciation expense, including depreciation of assets held under capital leases, for the years ended June 30, 
2010,2009 and 2008 was $29,121, $19,047 and $7,307 respectively. 

Included in property and equipment are assets under capital leases of $17,092 and S16,768 as of June 30, 2010 and 
2009, respectively. Depreciation expense related to these assets during the year ended June 30,2010, 2009 and 2008 
was S 1,293, S1,253 and $593, respectively. Accumulated depreciation associated with assets under capital leases 
was $3,037 and $1,744 as ofJune 30,2010 and 2009, respectively. 

As of June 30, 2010 the CornpqI has received $70 in grant money fiom the Federal Recovery Act Broadkmd 
Opportunity Program for reimbursement of property and equipment expenditures. The Company has accounted for 
these hnds as a reduction of the cost of its fiber optic network. The Company anticipates die receipt of an 
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additional S24,934 in grant money related to grant agreements entered into under the Federal Recovery Act 
Broadband Opporhinity Program, as of June 30,201 0. 

(6) GOODWILL 

The Company's goodwill balance at June 30, 201 0 and June 30,2009 was $68,75 I and was allocated as follows to 
the Company's business units: 

Zayo Bandwidth s 66,548 
Zayo Enterprise Networks 

Total 

2,203 
$ 68,751 

(7) INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

Identifiable acquisition-related intangible assets as of June 30,2010 and June 30,2009 were as follows: 

Gross Carrying Accumulated 
Amount Amortization Net 

June 30,2010 
Customer relationships $ 78,738 S (19.182) S 59.556 
Non-compete Agrecniaits 8,835 (8,623) 212 
Tradcnames 500 (417) 83 
'rota1 !$ 8 8 , m  s ( 2 8 , r n  h 5 9 , m  

June 30,2009 
Customer re1 a ti onsbi~s 37.556 (9.96 1 27.595 

The amortization of intangible assets for the years ended June 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008 was $12,063, $10,520 and 
$4,6 15, respectively. Estimated future amortization of intangible assets is as follows: 

Year ending June 30, 
201 I 

2013 9,981 

s 59,851 
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Non-compete agreements are being amortized on a straight-line basis over the expected tern1 of the contracts 
ranging froin two to three years. Customer relationships are being amortized on a straight-line basis over six to ten 
years. The trademark asset ii-om the Fibemet acquisition has a limited life and is being amortized over one year. 

(8) LONG-TERM DEBT 

In March2010, the Company co-issued, with one of its subsidiaries - Zayo Capital Inc., (at an issue price of 
98.779%) $250 million of Senior Secured Notes (the “Notes”). The Notes bear interest at 10.25 % annually and are 
due on March 15,2017. The net proceeds from this debt issuance were approximately $239,060 after deducting the 
discount on the Notes of $3,052 and debt issuance costs of approximately $7,888. The Notes are being accreted to 
their par value over the term of the Notes as additional interest expense. The effective interest rate of the Company’s 
Notes is 10.7 percent. 

The Notes are secured and backed by substantially all of the assets of the Company. 

A portion of the proceeds from the NGtes were used to pay off all of the Company’s term loans. Long-tenn debt 
consisted of the following as of June 30,201 0 and June 30,2009: 

Year ended June 30, 
2010 2009 

Each of the term loans and the Revolver were paid off in klarch 201 0 with proceeds from the issuance of the Notes. 
The interest rates reflected for the term loans and the Revolver represents the interest rates for these loans at June 30, 
2009. 

In September 2009 the Company entered into a $30 million term loan to finance the Fibernet acquisition. This loan 
was paid off in March 2010 with the proceeds from the Notes. 

In March 2010 the Conipany also entered into a revolving line-of-credit with Sun Trust Bank (“the Revolver”). 
During the term of the Revolver, the Company can borrow, repay and re-borrow against the Revolver in an amount 
up to $75,000 (adjusted for letter of credit usage). The Revolver matures on March 1, 2014. Loans under the 
Revolver bear interest at a rate equal to the hlgher of either (1) the rate which the administrative agent announces as 
its prime Iending rate, (ii) the Federal Funds Rate plus one-half of oEe percent per annum or (iii) the Eurodolhr 
Rate. 

As of June 30, 2010, no amounts were outstanding under the Revolver. Standby letters of credit were outstanding in 
the amomt of 35,945 as of June 30,2010, resulting in S69,055 being available on the Revolver as of June 30,2010. 
Outstanding letters of credit backed by the Revolver accriie interest at a rate ranging from 3.5 to 4.25 percent per 
annum based upon the Company’s leverage ratio. As of Junc 30,2010 the interest rate was 4 percent. 
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Debt isstiance costs 

Debt issuance costs have been capitalized on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and are being amortized 
using the effective interest rate method over the term of the borrowing agreements, unless terminated earlier, at 
which time the unamortized costs are immediately expensed. The unamortized debt issuance costs of $5,881 
associated with the term loans (Tranche A through D) and the Revolver maturing in 2013 were expensed in March 
201 0 upon h e  settlement of these credit agreements. Debt issuance costs associated with the Senior Secured Notes 
issued in March 2010 were $7,888. Debt issuaxe costs associated with the Revolver entered into in March 2010 
were $2,148. The balance of debt issuance costs as of June 30, 2010 and 2009 was $9,560 (net of accumulated 
amortization of $526) and $4,712 (net of accumulated amortization of $1,614), respectively. Interest expense 
associated with the amortization of debt issuance costs was $1,624, $1,114 and $500 for the years ended June 30, 
201 0,2009 and 2008, respectively. 

Debt covenants 

The Company’s credit agreement associated with the Notes contains two financial covenants: ( I )  a maximum 
leverage ratio and (2) a minimum fixed charge coverage ratio. 

Leverage ratio: The Company must not exceed a consolidated leverage ratio (fimded debt to EBITDA), as 
determined under the credit agreement, of 4 . 2 5 ~  for any trailing four-quarter period ending on March 31, 2010 
or later. 

Fired charge coverage ratio: The Company must niaintain a consolidated fixed charge coverage ratio, as 
determined under the credit agreement, of at least 1 . 0 ~  for the periods ending September 30 and December 31, 
2010; l . lx  for the periods ending March 31 and June 30,201 1; 1 . 1 5 ~  for the periods ending September 30 and 
December 31,201 1 and March 31 and June 30,2012; and 1 . 2 5 ~  for the periods ending September 30,2012 and 
each fiscal quarter thereafter. 

The Company’s credit agreement contains customary representations and warranties, affirmative and negative 
covenants, and customary events of default, including among others, non-payment of principal, interest or other 
amounts when due, inaccuracy of representations and warranties, breach of covenants, cross default t3 indebtedmss 
in excess of $10.0 million, insolvency or inability to pay debts, bankruptcy, or a change of control. 

The Company was in compliance with all covenants associated with its Notes as of June 30,2010. 

Interest rate derivatives 

On June 30, 2008. the Company entered into an interest rate swap agreement on a notional value of $60,000 with a 
maturity date of September 13, 2010. There was no up-front cost for this agreement. The contract states that the 
Company pays 3.69% fixed for the tenn of the agreement. The counterparty either pays to the Company or receives 
from the Company the difference between actual LIBOR and the fixed rate. 
On March 23,2009, the Company entered into another interest rate swap agreement on a notional value of $40,000 
with a maturity date of September 13,2010. There was no up-front cost for this agreement. The contract states that 
the Company pays 1.42% fixed for the term of the agreement. The counterparty either pays to the Company or 
receives from the Company the difference between actual LIBOR and the fEed rate. 

Any change in fair value of the interest rate swaps are recorded as an increase or decrease in interest expense in the 
consolidated statements ef operations for the applicable period. During the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 
$744 and $3,143, respectively, were recorded as an increase in interest expense for the change in the fair value of the 
interest rate swaps. The Company made payments on the swaps of $2,463 and $859 during the years ended June 30, 
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2010 and 2009, respectiveIy, which are also recorded as interest expense. The liability associated with the swaps 
was $566 and $2,284 as of June 30,2010 and 2009, respectively. 

(9) INCOME TAXES 

The Company, a Limited Liability Corporation, is taxed at its ultimate parent IeveI - CII. The parent is a holding 
company with no operations and therefore all income tax balmces are pushed down to the Company. 

The Company's provision for income taxes is summarized as follows: 

Year ended June 30, 
~- 

2010 2009 2008 

Federal income tuxes - current $ -  s 

State incorne taxes - currcnt 872 (200) 107 

State income taxes - deferred 695 /1744\ (1  02) - _  - ,-, . I  , . --,, 
Provision for state income taxes 1,567 (444) 4 -_____ - 

Total provision for income taxes $ 6,293 .$ (2,106) $ (699) 

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the aniounts used for income tax purposes. 

A reconciliation of the actual income tax provision and the tax computed by applying the U.S. federal rate (34%) to 
the earnings/(loss) before income taxes for each of the years in the three-year period ended June 30,2OiO follows: 

Year ended June 30, 

2010 200') 2008 

Expected provision/(benefit) at stattitory rate of 34% $ 1,142 $ (3,873) s (1,837) 
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On a consolidated basis, $217, $326 and $5 of income taxes was paid to federal and state jurisdictions during the 
years ended June 30,2010,2009 and 2008. 

The tax effect of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred taxes assets and deferred 
tax liabilities are as follows: 

I Year ended June 30, 

2010 2009 I 

$ 2209 
I 

Allowance for doubtful accounts 1,402 76 

Dcferrcd income tax liabilities 

Net deferred income tax assets $ 11,110 $ (6,47@) 

As of June 30, 2010, the Company had $102,036 of net operatmg loss (“NOLs”) carry forwards. The Company 
acquired S5,060 of NOLs in the Northwest Telephone acquisition and $94,655 of NOLs in the FiberNet acquisition. 
Each of these acquisitions, however, was a “change in ownership” within the meaning of Section 382 of the Internal 
Revenue Code and, as a result, such NOL’s are subject to an annual liniitation, and thus the Company is limited in 
its ability to use such NOLs to reduce its income tax exposure. The current annual NOL usage limitation related to 
the Company’s acquired NOLs is $7,456. Additionally the Company generated $2,321 of NOLs for the years ended 
June 30,2009 and 2008 which are also available to offset future taxable income. 

From the period of the respective acquisitions through June 30,2010, the Company has not utilized any of its own or 
acquired NOLs; however the Company has used approximately $10,290 of NOLs which were generated by Onvoy - 
See Note 1 1  Eqtr$,, for a discussion of the tax sharing agreement between the Company and Onvoy. The Company 
utilized $3,001 of Onvoy’s NOL’s subsequent to the spin-off date of March i2, 2010. This amount has been 
reflected on the statement of member’s interest. 

As of June 30,2010 nianagement believes it is more-likely-than-not that the Coixpmy will not be able to utilize $1 .0 
mllion of the NOLs acquired from the FiberNet acquisition; as such the Conipany lias recorded a $0.4 million 
valuation allowance against such NOLs to reflect the pofiion of NOLs that the Company would not be able to use. 
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The Company is subject to audit by various taxing authorities, and these audits may result in proposed assessments 
where the ultimate resolution results in the Company owning additional taxes. The Company is required to establish 
reserves under ASC 740-10 (formerly FASB Interpretation No. 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Tuxes), 
when the Company believes there is uncertainty with respect to certain positions and the Company may not succeed 
in realizing the tax benefits. The Company adopted ASC 740-10-25 during the current year. In accordance with 
ASC 740-10-25 the Company recognizes the effect of income tax positions only if those positions are more likely 
than not of being sustained. Recognized income tax positions are measured at the largest amount that is greater than 
50% llkeljj of being realized. Changes in recognition or measurement are reflected in the period in which the change 
in judgment occurs. Prior to the adoption, the Company recognized the effect of income tax positions only if such 
positions were probable of being sustained. The application of income tax law is inherently complex, as such; it 
requires many subjective assumptions and judgments regarding income tax exposures. Interpretations of and 
guidance surrounding income tax laws and regulations change over time; as such, changes in these subjective 
assumptions and judgments can materially affect amounts recognized in the balance sheets and statements of 
operations. At the adoption date of July 1,2009, the Company had no unrecognized tax benefits which would affect 
the effective tax rate if recognized. At June 30,2010, there were no unrecognized tax benefits. As of June 30,2010, 
there was no accrued interest or penalties related to uncertain tax positions. 

(1 0) ACCRUED LIABILITIES 

Accrued liabilities jncluded in current linbilities consisted of the following: 

Year ended June 30, 
2010 2009 

Other accruals 7 609 4 380 

(11) EQUITY 

Zayo Group, LLC was initially fonned on May 4,2007 and is a wholly owned subsidiary of Zayo Group Holdings, 
Inc., which in turn is wholly owned by Communications Infrastructure Investments, LLC (“CII”). CII was organized 
on November 6, 2006 and subsequently capitalized on May 7, 2007 with capital contributiens from various 
institutional and founder investors. The cash proceeds from the capitalization of CII were contributed to the 
Company and are reflected in the Company’s member’s equity. 

During the years ended June 30,2010,2009 and 2008, CII contributed $39,800, $35,546 and $166,450, respectively 
in capital to the Company through Holdings. Additionally, during fiscal year 2008 CII contributed to the Company 
through Holdings property from Voicepipe Communications, Inc. valued at $3,250. 

During fiscal year 2008, CII issued 6,400,000 Class A preferred units in CII to the two founders of the C o ~ p n y .  
The Class A prekxed units issued to the two Company founders vest according to the followkg schedule: 10% in 
the 24th month, 10% in the 30th month, 10% in the 36th month, 10% in the 42nd month and the remaining 60% in 
tlie 48th month. Stock-based compensation expense recognized in connection with these executive Class A 
issuances for the years ended June 30,2010, 2009 and 2008 totaLd $1,150, $1,628, and $3,381, respectively. %he 
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remaining stock-based compensation expense of $241 will be recognized in fiscal 201 I .  CII has also issued 465,000 
Class A preferred units to three of the Company’s executives in fiscal 20W. The Class A preferred units issued to 
two of the executives vested dun‘ng the year ended June 30, 2009 and the remaining units became l l l y  vested in 
February 2010. Stock-based compensation expense recognized for these grants for the years ended June 30, 2010 
and 2009 totaled $45 and $421, respectively. 

As these awards have been issued by CII to employees of the Company as compensation, the expense has been 
recorded by the Compariy in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations in accordance with ASC 718 - 
Compensation - Stock Compensation. 

Onvoy Voice Services (“OVS”) was spun-off fiom Zayo Group, LLC on March 12, 2010 to its parent - Holdings 
(see Note 4). At the time of the spin-oft the book value of OVS was $39,401. As a result of the spin-off the 
Company’s member’s interest account was initially reduced by $39,401. Subsequent to the spin-off date, the 
Company entered into a tax sharing agreement with OVS and CII - the taxable entity. As part of the agreement 
management of the Company and OVS allocated the deferred tax assets and liabilities of CII to the Company and 
OVS based 011 the source of the asset or liabiiity generating the benefit. NOLs generated by entities acquired by 
Zayo Group entities and which the assets and liabilities of such acquisition remain at one of Zayo Group’s 
subsidiaries were allocated to Zayo Group. The agreement provided for the past and future settlement of due- 
to/due-from balances related to the allocation of deferred tax assets and liabilities between the two entities as an 
increase or decrease to the respective entities member’s equity. As a result of the tax sharing agreement and non- 
cash Settlement of the inter-company balances as of the spin-off date, the net book value of the OVS business 
segment was increased by $3,138 resulting in a non-cash decrease to the nieniber’s account of the Company. 
Subsequent to the spin-off date the Company utilized $3,001 of Onvoy’s NOLs resulting in a non-cash capital 
contribution from CII, the taxable entity and parent of the Company, in the amount of $1,200. 

(12) STOCK COMPENSATION 
The Company has been given authorization by CII to issue 125,000,000 of CII’s common units as awards ro 
eniployees and directors. CII has three classes of common units with different liquidation preferences - Class A, B 
and C units. Common units are issued to employees and to independent directors and are allocated by the Chief 
Executive Officer and the Board of Managers on the terms and conditions specified in the employee equity 
agreement. At June 30,2010,70,975,130 of common units were issued and outstanding. 

As these awards have been issued by CII to employees and directors of the Company the related compensation 
expense has been pushed down and recorded by the Company in the accompanying consolidated statements of 
operations in accordance with ASC 7 18 - Compensalion - Stock Compensation. 

The common units are considered to be stock-based con~pensation with terms which require the awards to be 
classified as liabilities. As such, the Company accounts for these awards as a liability and re-measures the liability 
at each reporting date until the date of settlement, 

The Coinmon units vest according to the following schedule: U4th in the 12th month and 1/48th in each of the next 
36 months or immediately five months after the consummation of a sale of the Company. As of June 30,2010 and 
June 30, 2009, the value of the Class A common units was determined to be $0.49 and $0.16 per unit, respectively. 
As of June 30, 2010 and June 30, 2009 the value of the Class B common units was determined to be $0.28 and $0 
per unit, respectively. As of June 30, 2010 and June 30,2009 the value of Class C common uuits was determined to 
be $0.03 and SO per unit, respectively. 
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The liability associated with the common units was $21,623 and $4,590 as of June 30,2010 and 2009, respectively. 
The stock-based compensation expenses associated with the common units was $17,033, $4,590 and $0 for the years 
ended June 30,2010,2009 and 2008, respectively. 

The holders of common units are not entitled to receive dividends or distributions, except at the discretion of the 
Board of Directors. Upon a liquidation of CII, or upon a non-liquidating distribution, the holders of common units 
share in the proceeds after the CII preferred unit holders receive their unreturned capital contributions and tbeir 
priority return (6% per annum). After the preferred unreturned capital contributions and the priority retun are 
satisfied, the remaining proceeds are allocated on a scale ranging from 85% to the Class A preferred unit holders and 
15% to the common unit holders and 80% to the Class A preferred unit holders and 20% to the common unit holders 
depending upon the return multiple to the Class A preferred unit holders up to the amount of the Class A gain 
percentage. Once the amount of proceeds related to the Class A percentage gain has been distributed, then the 
Class B gain percentages are distributed in a similar method as the Class A gains. 

The following table represents the activity as it relates to common unit issuances and forfeitures during the years 
ended June 30,2010,2009 and 2008. 

A Common B Common C Common Totals 
Units IJnits units Units 

Ralancc at JUIIC 30, 2007 

Common units issued 45,954,072 45,954,072 

Balance at June 30 2008 4.5 233 655 45 23’3 655 

Common units issued 6,199,665 6 199 665 

Balancc at June 20, 2009 48,22 1,058 38,22 1,058 

Common units issued 19,879,500 3,630,2 18 23,509,718 

Balance at June 30,2010 47,675,4 12 19,669,500 3,630,2 18 70,975,130 
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The following table represents the activity as it relates to common units vested during the years ended June 30, 
2010,2009 and 2008. 

Year ended June 30, 

2008 2009 2010 Totals 

Total Vested 15,846,600 14,496,850 16,956,000 47,299,450 

(13) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 

The Company’s financial instmments consist of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, accounts receivable, 
accounts payable, interest rate swaps, long-term debt and stock-based compensation. The carrying vi!ues of cash 
and cash equivalents, restricted cash, trade receivable and accounts payable approximated their fair values at June 
30, 2010 and 2009 because of the short maturity of these insmients. The interest rate swaps are recorded in the 
consolidated balance sheets at fair value. The carrying value of the Company’s long-term debt reflects the 
original amounts borrowed, net 3f unamortized discounts and was $247,080 as of June 30, 201 0. Based on current 
market interest rates for debt of similar terms and average maturities and based on recent transactions, the fair value 
of the long-term debt as of June 30,201 0, is estimated to be $252,500 coinpared to its carrying value of $247,080. 
The Company records its stock-based compensation liability at its estimated value. 

GAAP defimes fair value as the price that would be received from selling an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
ordcrly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. When determining the fair value 
measurements for assets and liabilities required to be recorded at fair value, the Company considers the principal or 
most advantageous market in which it would transact and considers assumptions that market participants would use 
when pricing the asset or liability, such as inherent risk, transfer restrictions, and risk of nonperformance. 

Financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring and non-recurring basis are summarized below: 

As of June 30, 
Level 2010 2009 

Liabiltftes Recorded at Fair Vahie in rhe I.’inanciul 
Sta 1etnent.x 

financial statements $ 22,189 S 6,874 

Statements: 
Long-term debt, including the current portion 5 2.17,080 $ 136,325 

The interest rate swaps are valued using discounted cash flow techniques that use observable market kputs, such as 
LBOR-based yield curves, forward rates, md credit ratings. 
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The stock-based compensation liability is valued using both an income and market based approach. The income 
based approach is based on an analysis of discounted cash flows. The niarket based approach is primarily based on 
an analysis of prices paid by investors and acquirers of interests of comparable companies in the public and private 
markets. 

Changes in the fair niarket value of the interest rate swaps resulted in an increase of $744 and $3,143 in interest 
expense during the years ended June 30,2010 and 2009, respectively. 

Changes in the estimated fair value of common units resulted in an increase of $17,033, $4,369 and $0 in the stock- 
based compensation liability during the years ended June 30,2010,2009 and 2008, respectively. 

(14) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Capital leases 

Fuhire contractual payments under the terms of the Company's capital lease obligations were as follcws: 

As of 
June 30,2010 

201 1 s 2,572 
2012 1,745 

Year endiug June 30, 

201 3 1 In9 - , I" I  ~. . 

2014 1,670 
201s 1,627 
Thereafter 8,792 
Toral minirnuni Icasc payments 18,115 
Less amounts rcprescnting interest (5,409) 
Less currcnt portion (1,673) 
Capital lease obligations, less currcnt portion $ 1 1,033 

The weighted average interest rate on capital lease obligations was 12.1% and 12.4% as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, 
respectively. 

Operating leases 

The Company leases office space, warehouse space, network assets, switching a d  transport sites, points of presence 
and equipment under non-catxeiable operating leases. Lease expense was $30,439, $15,186 and $6,983 for the years 
ended June 30,2010,2009 and 2008, respectively. 
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Minimum contractual lease payments due under the Company’s long-term operating leases are as follows: 

As of 

201 1 22.688 
2012 19,257 
201 3 17 177 

201 5 14 406 
Thereafter 86,347 

s 175.335 

At June 30, 2010, the Company had commitments of approximately S26,847 for constnxtion materials and 
purchases of property and equipnient all of which are expected to be acquired in the next twelve months. 

Contingencies 

In the normal course of business, the Company is party to various outstanding legal proceedings, claims, 
coninii2nents and contingent liabilities. In the opinion of management, the ultimate disposition of these matters will 
not have a materially adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows. 

Outstanding letters of credit 

As of June 30,2010, the Company had $5,945 in outstanding letters of credit primarily to collateralize surety bonds 
securing the Company’s performance under various contracts. 

Acquisitions 

AGL Networks 

On March 14, 2010, the Company entered into a defmitive agreement to purchase AGL Networks, LLC (“AGL 
Networks”). The Company closed on this transaction on July 1,2010 at which time the Company acquired 100% of 
the ownership interest of AGL Networks which operates a network of approximately 786 route miles and over 
190,000 fiber miles. The purchase price of this acquisition, after post-close adjustments, was $72,979. The 
acquisition was financed with cash on hand. 

AGL Networks provides Bandwidth Infrastructure services to customers primarily in Georgia, Arizona, and North 
Carolina. 

The unaudited pro fornia results presented below include the effect of the AGL acquisition as if the acquisition was 
consummated as of July 1, 2008. The pro-forma loss for fiscal years 2010 and 2009 include the additional 
depreciation and amortization resulting from the adjustrents to the vdue of fured assets and intangible assets 
resulting fiom purchase accounting. The pro forma results do not include any anticipzted synergies or other 
expected benefits of the acquisition. Accordingly, the unaudited pro fonna financial informstion bdow is not 
necessariljj ir,dicative of either future results of operations or results that might have been achieved had the 
acquisition been consummated as oflidy 1,2008. 
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(Unaudited) 2010 2009 

American Fiber Systems 

On June 24, 2010, the Company entered into a definitive agreement to acquire American Fiber Systems Holding 
Corporation (“AFS”) for a purchase price of $1 15,500, including $1 10,000 in cash and a $5,500 promissory note. 
The purchase price is based upon the valuation of both the business and assets directly owned by A F S  and their 
ownership interest in US Carrier Telecom Holdings, LLC. The purchase price is subject to adjustments in the event 
certain AFS financial measures deviate from those detailed in the definitive agreement. AFS is a provider of lit and 
dark Bandwidth Infrastructure services in nine metropolitan markets: Atlanta, Georgia, Boise, Idaho, Cleveland, 
Ohio, Kansas City, Missouri, Las Vegas, Nevada, Minneapolis, Minnesota, Nashville, Tennesses, Reno, Nevada and 
Salt Lake City, Utah. AFS’s services and customers are similar to those of Zayo Bandwidth, Zayo Enterprise 
Networks and Zayo Fiber Solutions and, as a result, its contracts and assets will be assigned to the appropriate 
business units in order to retain Zayo’s current operating structure. American Fiber Systems owns and operates 
apprnximately 1,200 routcs miles and over 160,000 fiber miles of fiber networks and has 620 on-net buildings in 
these markets. 

Other Commitments 

TI? February 2010, the Company was awarded a Federal stimulus project in Indiana. The Indiana Stimulus Froject 
involves the expendihire of approximately $31.4 nlillion of capital expenditures, of which S25.1 nlillion is to be 
h d e d  by a government grant and approximately $6.3 niillion is to be funded by the Company. The Company 
expects to receive $2.5 million in up-front customer payments. In connection with this project, 626 route miles of 
fiber are to be constructed and lit. The Company began construction on this project in Aprii of 2010 and began 
receiving grant funds in May 2010. As of h n e  30,201 0, the Cornplluy has been reimbursed for $96 of expenses and 
$70 of capital expenditures related to the Indiana Stimulus Project. 

(15) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Subsequent to the spin-off of Onvoy Voice Services (See Note 4 - Spin-ofof Omoy Voice Services Segment), the 
Company and Onvoy will continue to have certain contractual relationships. Prior to the spin-off, transactions 
between the Company and Onvoy have been eliminated upon consolidation. Subsequent to the spin-off these 
transactions are included in the operating results of the Company. As of June 30, 2010, the Conipany has a 
receivable from an affiliate in the amount of S871. $30 of this amount relates to receivables from CII for various 
legal costs that have been paid by the Company on CII’s behalf. The remaining b&nce relates to amounts owed to 
the Company from Onvoy Voice Services related to the services provided to Onvoy, net of amounts payable to 
Onvoy for services it provided to the Conipany discussed in Note 4. 

Subsequent to the spin-off, the revenue and expenses associaied with transactions with Onvoy are recorded in the 
results from continuing operations. The Company recognized revenue from Onvoy in the amount of SI ,436 ckx3ng 
the period March 12,2010 through June 30,2010. The Company purchased services from Onvoy during ’Utle same 
period in the amount of $564. 
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(16) SEGMENT REPORTING 

ASC 280-10-50 defines an operating segment as a component of an entity that has all of the following 
characteristics: 

It engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses. 

Its operating results are regularly reviewed by the public entity‘s chief operating decision maker to make 
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance. 

Its discrete financial information is available. 

The Company operates its business as four business segments which are defined by the product sets they offer and 
customers they target. Zayo Bandwidth (‘‘BW3 offers bandwidth infrastructure services to the Company’s 200 
largest users, Zayo Enterprise Networks (“ZEN”) provides bandwidth infrastructure to regional and enterprise 
customers and converged and data communications services and Zcolo provides colocation services and intra 
building tr=sport services. 

In anticipation of the close of the AGL Networks acquisition (See Note 13 - Commitments and Conringencies), Zayo 
has established a fourth business unit, Zayo Fiber Solutions (“ZFS’). Zayo Fiber Solutions is dedicated to 
marketing and suppoiting dark fiber related services to a broad set of customers. Althougli ZFS did not have 
operation or hold long term assets as of June 30, 2010, upon the acquisition of AGL on July I ,  2010 all of the 
Company’s dark fiber assets were transferred to the ZFS business unit. In preparation of establishing this new 
business segment the Company incurred certain selling, general and administrative costs associated with the new 
segment. 

Revenues fsr all of the Company’s products are included in one of these four business segments. The results of 
operations for each business segment include an allocation of certain corporate overhead costs. The allocation is 
based on a percentage determined by management that represents management’s estimate of the relative burden each 
sebgnent bears on corporate overhead costs.. IdentifiabIe assets for each business segment are reconciled to total 
consolidated assets including unallocated corporate assets and intercompany eliminations. Unallocated corporate 
assets consist primarily of cash, deferred tax assets and deferred debt issuance costs. 
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The following tables summarize significant financial information of each of the segments: 

Rcvcnue $ *, !75,348 $ 33,953 $ 22,850 $ - $  - S 232,151 
Intersegment revenue (5,612) (708) (1.786) (8.1 06) 

Revcnuc from external customers 169,736 33,245 21,064 224,045 
I Depreciation and amortization 32,915 3,765 4,504 41,184 

Interest exDense (1 1301 11641 - 1173981 (18697) 
\ I  , \ I  \ I  I \ 1 -, 

Loss on cxtinguishrncnts of'dcbt - (5,881) (5,881) 

(I )  Other income includes a gain of $9,08 1 on the bargain purchase of Fibernet. See Note 3 -Acquisitions. 

For the year ended June 30,2009 
BW Z E O l O  ZFS Cornorate Total 

Kevcnue $ 128,695 $ 26,135 $ - s  - $  - F 154,830 
Intersement revenues (3.934) 192) (4 0261 u \ I  , \ I  , ,---, 
Rcvcnues from cxtcmal 
custo~nc'rs 124,761 26,043 150,804 
Deorcciation and a n m  ti/ation 26.287 7.280 29.567 
Opera tin:: income/(loss) 17,153 (3,195) - (i0,356) 3,602 
Interest expense - (14,063) (15,248) 

Total assets (2) 302.577 26 685 93 900 423 167 > -  - - _  ,- - 1  - ~. 

Capital expcnditurcs 60:829 1.278 62,107 
_u__ 

(') Total assets of corporate include $52,207 of assets of discontinued operations 
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- 

will be used to fund a portion of the AFS acquisition. 

J 

Revenue $ 66,149 S 12,9446 $ - $ - $  - $ 79,095 

Detxeciation and amortization 10.374 1 548 1 1  91)) - 7 -  - 1 .,zu.- 

Openting income/(loss) 6,034 (1,139) - (4,361) 534 

TOBI assets (3) 275.761 12.684 50 094 319 4:9 _ _  ,-. ’ ..--,.<, 
Capital expenditures 221729 22,729 

(3) Total assets of corporate include $69,936 of assets of discontinued operations. 

(17) SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
Management performed an evaluation of the Company’s activity through September 10, 2010. the date the 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued, 

In July 2010, the Company was awarded from the federal Recovery Act Broadband Opportunity Program a $13.4 
million grant to constnict 286 miles of fiber network in Anoka County, Minnesota, outside of Minneapolis. 

On August 24,2010 the Company made a capital call to its investors for the remainder of the investor’s $35 million 
capita! conmitment to the Company. The Company expects to receive the funds in September. The invested capital 
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(18) QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED) 

The following table presents the unaudited quarterly results for the year-ended June 30,2010: 
~ 

2010 Quarter Ended 
December March June 

September 30 31 31 30 Total 

Revenue $ 45,503 $ 58,227 ('I $ 58,912 $ 61;403 $ 224,045 

Opemting cobts and c x p ~ s e 5  
Opiratinp L O ~ ~ S ,  excluding depreciation 

Total operatina costs and expenses 41.190 49 854 60 731 54 051 m h  7713 - ,-- ~ ,.- ~ , , ~  -. .,.._" 
Operating income/(loss) 4,313 8,373 (1,811) 6,450 17,335 

Other mcome (cxpense) 

Loss on extin.guishment of debt 
I-,--., 

(13,966) Total other expense, net (3,565) (3,241) (9,329) 2,169 

Eamings/(Io~s) froni continuing operations 
bcforc income taxes 748 5,132 (1 1,139) 8,619 3,359 

I'rmisiodfienefit) tbr ineonie taxe5 1.1 12 2,5 I3  525 2,143 6,293 

Net eamngs/(loss) $ 1,599 $ 4.055 $ (10,785) $ 5,593 $ 461 

('I The Conipany realized an increase in revenue beginning September 9, 2009 as a result of the acquisition of 
Fibernet. As a result of the acquisition the Company incurred additional operating and selling, generd and 
admiiiistrative expenses attributed to the additional revenues associated with the acquisition. 

(2)  Stock-based compensation expense increased significantly during the quarters ended March 31, 2010 and June 
30, 2010 as a result of an increase in the value of the common units granted to the Company's employees and 
additional units vesting during these quarters. See Note 12 - Stock Comnpensafaon. 

(') Interest expense increased during the quarter ended June 30, 2010 primarily as a result of the bond offering 
which closed cn March 1 1 ,  2010. Interest expense incieased as a result of the higher interest rates on the bonds as 
compared to the senior debt which was repaid on March 2 1, 2010 and as a result of the larger debt balance during 
the quarter. As a result of paying off the senior notes with the proceeds from the bond offering, the Company wrote 
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off $5,881 in unamortized debt issuance costs during the quarter ended March 31, 2010. See Note 8 Long Term 
Debt. 

(4) During the year ended June 30,2010 the Company recognized a gain on bargain purchase of $9,081 associated 
with the Fibernet acquisition. See Note 3 -Acquisitions. 
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The following table presents the unaudited quarterly results for the year-ended June 30,2009: 

2009 Quarter Ended 

30 31 March 31 June 30 Total 
September December 

Revenue $ 34,515 $ 37,446 $ 38,399 $ 40,444 ’$ 150,804 

Operating costs and expenses 

I Operatmg costs, excluding depreciation 
and amortization 12.360 12.319 1 1.898 12 220 48 I91 - > - -  

Selling, pcue-ral and cldmmistmtivc 
expenses 13,921 14,996 15,565 17,937 62,419 
Stock-based compensation 403 547 403 5 06s h 418 - > - - -  - 3  - 

Depreciation and amortlzation 6,2 12 7,003 7,498 8,854 29,567 
Total operating costs and 
expenses 32,896 34,865 35,364 44,076 147.201 

Operating income/( loss) 1,619 2,581 3,035 (3,632) 3.603 

Other income (expense) \ .  
Interest expense (3.242) (5,661) (3,455) (2,890) ( 1  5,248) 
Other income 39 105 81 24 249 
Total other expense, net (3,203) (5,s 5 6) (3,374) (2,866) (14,999) 

Eanungs/(loss) from continuing 
0pcm:ioIis before incoine taxes (1,584) (2,975) (339) (6,4 98) ( I 1,396) 

Provision/@enefit) for income taxes 82 (368) 519 (2,339) (2,106) 

I:nmings/(loss) from continuing opera tic~ns (1,666) (2,667) (85 8) (4,159) (9,29Cj 
Eariuiigs/(loss) tiom dixoiitinurd 
operations, net of income taxes 2,536 2.282 2.321 (96) 7.043 

. I  

Net earnings/(loss) $ 870 $ (325) S 1,163 $ (4,255) $ (2,247) 
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EXHIBIT B 

Management Biographies 

Zayo Group, LLC (“Zayo”) possesses the managerial qualifications to provide its proposed 
telecommunications services in Arizona. The senior management of Zayo and its subsidiaries has 
extensive experience in telecommunications service provision, and its highly-qualified technical 
staff will ensure that Zayc’s operations will meet high standards for service quality and reliability. 
Descriptions of the telecommunications and managerial experience of Zayo’s management are 
provided as follows: 

Dan Caruso 
Co-Founder, President and CEO 

Dan is currently President and CEO of the Zayo Group (www.zayo.com) and Chairman of Envysion 
(www.envysion.com). As part of his Zayo Group responsibilities, Dan also oversees Onvoy Voice 
Services (www.onvoy.com). He is a board member of GTS Central Europe (www.gtsce.com) and, 
until recently, sat on the board of New Global Telecom (www.ngt.com). NGT was sold to Comcast 
in February 20 IO. 

Between 2004 and 2006, Dan was President and CEO of ICG Comniunications. In 2004, he led a 
buyout of ICG and took i t  private. ICG, at the time, had about $100M of debt and was burning their 
remaining $30M of cash at a rate of $8M a month. Columbia Capital and M/C Venture Partners, 
who backed the buyout, invested a total oi  $8.7M. In 2006, ICG was sold to Level 3 for $170M, 
resulting in a total distribution to the buyout group and management of over $225M and a total 
return on investment of 25x. 

Dan was one of the founding executives of Level(3) Communications; from inception in 1997 
through -2000, Dan was responsible for Level 3’s engineering, construction, and operations 
organizations; between 2001 and 2003, most of Level 3’s lines of business and marketing functions 
were his responsibility. Prior to Level 3, Dan was a member of the MFS Communications senior 
management team. He began his career at Illinois Bell/Ameritech. 

Dan has an MBA from the University of Chicago and a BS in Mechanical Engineering from 
University of Illinois. He is a board member in Colorado Uplift, a charity that helps Denver’s inner 
city youth stay focused on school and personal development. 

Ken desGarennes 
Chief Financial Officer 

Ken desGarennes has 13 years of experience in technology and communications, most recently as 
the CFO of Wire One Communications. Wire One, the largest international provider of 
videoconferencing solutions in the market, was created through the acquisition and integration of 
three videoconferencing properties. In addition to leading the acquisition and integration efforts, 
Ken was responsible for raising debt and building a world class finance organization. 

Prior to joining Wire One, Ken was a Senior Director at the Gores Group, a technology focused 
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private equity firm. While at the Gores Group, Ken led the financial due diligence and negotiations 
on numerous acquisitions in both the telecom and technology market. Ken started his career as a 
commercial banking officer with First Union Bank before moving to Accenture where he worked 
for 6 years in a corporate development role. 

Ken received his BS in finance from the University of Maryland in College Park. 

Scott Beer 
General Counsel 

Scott Beer has 17 years of experience in the legal field, with an emphasis on telecomniunications. 
He most recently worked for Level 3 Communications as VP of Carrier Relations, responsible for 
vendor relations covering $1.8 billion in network expenses. Prior to Level 3’s acquisition of ICG 
Communications, Scott was VP and General Counscl of ICG, overseeing all legal and regulatory 
matters for the company. Scott started with TCG as Director of Government Affairs handling all 
state and federal regulatory matters and providing legal support to new product development. 

Before starting with ICG, Scott was in house counsel at MCI WorldCom supporting the Mass 
Markets Finance Department for thrce years. He began his legal career as an associate attorney for a 
Denver law firm, where he was a commercial litigator and represented several large communication 
companies. 

Scott holds a Juris Doctorate from Detroit College of Law at Michigan State University. He earned 
his B.A. from Michigan State in Communications and Prc-law. 

David Howson 
President, Zayo Bandwidth 

David has 17 years telecommunications experience and was most recently President of zColo, a 
Zayo Group company. Prior to zColo, David served as Senior Vicc President of Customer Service 
Management at Level 3 Communications. In this role David oversaw customer and network 
operations of all of Level 3’s services including colocation, his responsibilities included customer 
scrvice, security, network monitoring and maintenance. He was also responsible for the design and 
build of more than 15 Colocation Centers totaling more than 300,000 sq f t  of space. Prior to that, 
David held a number of leadership roles where he was responsible for access management, M&A 
integrations, network and infrastructure planning and developrncnt, and network and facilj ty 
construction in Asia, Europe, and North America. David earned his Engineering Degree with 
Honors from Oxford. 
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TARIFF FORMAT 

A. Page Numbering - Page numbers appear in the upper right comer of the page. Pages are 
numbered sequentially. However, new pages are occasionally added to the tariff. When a 
new page is added between pages already in effect, a decimal is added. For example, a 
new page added between Page 14 and 15 would be 14.1. 

B. Page Revision Numbers - Revision numbers also appear in the upper right comer of 
each page. These numbers are used to determine the most current page version on file 
with the Commission. For example, the qfh revised Page 14 cancels the 3rd revised Page 
14. 

Paragraph Numbering Sequence - There are various levels of paragraph coding. Each 
level of coding is subservient to its next higher level: 

C. 

2 
2. I 
2.1.1 
2.1-1.1 

D. Check Sheets - When a tariff filing is made with the Commission, an updated Check 
Sheet accompanies the tariff filing. The Check Sheet lists the pages contained in the 
tariff, with a cross-reference to the current revision number. When new pages are added, 
the Check Sheet is changed to reflect the revision. An asterisk designates all revisions 
made in a given filing (*). There will be no other symbols used on this page if these are 
the only changes made to it (ie., the format, etc. remain the same, just revised revision 
levels on some pages.) The tariff user should refer to the latest Check Sheet to find out if 
a particular page is the most current on file with the Commission. 
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Explanation of Symbols 

(C)  - To signify changed administrative regulation 

(D) - To signify a discontinued rate, administrative regulation or test 

(I) - To signify an increase in a rate 

(M) - To signify text or rates relocated without change 

(N) - To signify a new rate, regulation or other text or new test 

(R) - To signify a reduction in a rate 

(T) - To signify a change in text but no change in rate 
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DEFINITIONS 

“Access Line” refers to facilities and transmission path used to create a telecommunications 
connection from a network device to the serving center and composing the local loop. 

“Applicant” refers to an individual, partnership, corporation, association, or govemmznt agency 
who applies to the Company for any new or additional telephone service. 

“Business Hours” refers to the time after 8:OO A.M. and before 5:OO P.M., Monday through 
Friday excluding holidays 

“Carrier,” “Company” or “Utility” refers to Zayo Group, LLC. 

“Central office” refers to a switching unit that provides central office telecommunications 
services to the general public having the necessary equipment and operating arrangements 
for terminating Access Lines and trunks or trunks only. 

“Commission” refers to the Arizona Corporation Commission. 

“Customer” refers to any person, firm, corporation, or governmental entity who has applied for 
and is granted service or who is responsibIe for payment of service. 

“Delinquent or Delinquency” refers to an account for which payment has not been paid in full on 
or before the last day for timely payment. 

“Facility” refers to one or all of the elements of a physical plant used to provide 
telecommunications services. 

“Grade of Service” refers to the type of service furnished to a Customer with respect to the 
functionality and capabilities of the service offering. 
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DEFTNlTIONS (Cont’d) 

”Grandfathered Service” applies to an obsolete and/or outdated service the Utility no longer 
wishes to provide. The grandfathering of a service is the Utility’s method of managing a 
tariff for this service prior to ultimately discontinuing the service, or change existing tariff 
regulations without discontinuing certain rights, privileges or conditions of the service to 
existing customers. 

“ICB” refers to pricing arrangements made on an individual case basis. 

“Local Access Transport Area (“LATA”)” refers to a geographic area established for the 
provision and administration of communications service. A LATA encompasses 
designated exchanges, which are grouped to serve common social, economic and other 
purposes. 

“On-Net” refers to services where all originating and terminating points are on Company owned 
or operated facilities. 

“Service” refers to any telecommunications service(s) provided by the Company under this 
tariff. 

”Subscriber” refers to the firm, company, corporation, or other entity that contracts for service 
under this tariff and that is responsible for the payment of charges as well as compliance 
with the Company’s regulations pursuant to this tariff. 

“Switching” refers to the machines that switch telephone calls from/to other telephones or trunks. 

“Tariffs” refer to the tariffs, price lists, and generally applicable terms and conditions on file with 
a state or federal regulatory authority or publicly available on the Company’s website in 
accordance with the regulations of a state or federal regulatory authority. 
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SECTION 1. APPLICATION OF TARIFF 

1. I .  1 This tariff governs the services provided by Zayo Group, LLC that originate and 
terminate within the State of Arizona. Specific services and rates are described 
elsewhere in this tariff. 

The Company installs operdtes, and maintains the communications services 
provided herein in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth under this 
tariff. The Company may act as the Customer's agent for ordering access 
connection facilities provided by other carriers or entities when authorized by the 
Customer, to allow connection of a Customer's location to the Company's 
network. The Customer shall be responsible for all charges due for such service 
arrangement. 

1.1.2 

1.1.4 The Company's services are available to large enterprise, government and 
wholesale Customers only. The Company's obligation to furnish, or to continue 
to furnish, telecommunications service is subject to availability and dependent 
upon its ability to obtain, retain, and maintain, without unreasonable expense, 
suitable rights of way and facilities required to furnish and maintain that service. 

Issued: January -, 201 1 Effective: ,2011 

Peter Chevalier, Associate General Counsel 
Zayo Group, LLC 

400 Centennial Parkway, Suite 200 
Louisville, CO 80027 

Al73639827.1 
N73639827.4 



Zayo Group, LLC : .  Arizona Tariff No. 1 
Original Page 9 

SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS 

2.1 Undertaking of the Company 

This tariff contains the regulations, rates and charges applicable to resold and facilities- 
based competitive telecommunications services provided by the Company in the State of 
Arizona. 

2.2 Obligations of the Customer 

2.2.1 The Customer shall be responsible for: 

2.2.1.1 

2.2.1.2 

2.2.1.3 

2.2.1.4 

The payment of all applicable charges pursuant to this tariff. 

Reimbursing the Company for damage to, or loss of, the Company’s 
facilities or equipment caused by the acts or omissions of the Customer; or 
the noncompliance by the Customer, with these regulations, or by fire or 
theft or other casualty on the Customer’s premises unless caused by the 
negligence or willful misconduct of the employees or agents of the 
Company. 

Providing at no charge, as specified from time to time by the Company, 
any needed space and power to operate the Company’s facilities and 
equipment installed on the Customer’s premises. 

Complying with all laws and regulations regarding the working conditions 
on the premises at which the Company’s employees and agents shall be 
installing or maintaining the Company’s facilities and equipment. The 
Customer may be required to install and maintain the Company’s facilities 
and equipment within a hazardous area if, in the Company’s opinion, 
injury or damage to the Company’s employees or property might result 
from installation or maintenance by the Company. The Customer shall be 
responsible for identifying, monitoring, removing and disposing of any 
hazardous material prior to any construction or installation work. 
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SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d) 

I 2.2 Obligations of the Customer (Cont’d) 

2.2.1.5 Complying with all laws and regulations applicable to, and obtaining all 
consents, approvals, licenses and permits as may be required with respect 
to, the location of the Company’s facilities and equipment in any 
Customer premises for the purpose of instalIing, inspecting, maintaining, 
repairing, or upon termination of service as stated herein, removing the 
facilities or equipment of the Company. 

2.2.1.6 Making Company facilities and equipment available periodically for 
maintenance purposes at a time agreeable to both the Company and the 
Customer. No allowance for interruptions in service will be made for the 
period during which service is interrupted for such purposes. 

2.2.2 With respect to any service or facility provided by the Company, the Customer 
shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Company from all claims, actions, 
damages, liabilities, costs and expenses for: 

2.2.2.1 Any loss, destruction or damage to property of the Company or any third 
party, or injury to persons, including, but not limited to, employees or 
invitees of either the Company or the Customer, to the extent caused by or 
resulting from the negligent or intentional act or omission of the 
Customer, its employees, agents, representatives or invitees; or 

2.2.2.2 Any claim, loss, damage, expense or liability for infringement of any 
copyright, patent, trade secret, or any proprietary infringement of any 
copyright, patent, trade secret, or any proprietary or intellectual property 
right of any third party, arising from any act or omission by the Customer. 
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SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d) 

2.2 Obligations of the Customer (Cont’d) 

2.2.3 The Customer is responsible for ensuring that Customer-provided equipment 
comected to Company equipment and facilities is compatible with such 
equipment and facilities. The connection, operation, testing, or maintenance of 
such equipment shall be such as not to cause damage to the Company-provided 
equipment and facilities or injury to the Company’s employees or other persons. 
Any additional protective equipment required to prevent such damage or injury 
shall be provided by the Company at the Customer’s expense. 

2.2.4 The Company’s services (as detailed in this tariff) may be connected to the 
services or facilities or other communications carriers only when authorized by, 
and in accordance with, the terms and conditions of the tariffs or contracts which 
are applicable to such connections. 

2.2.5 Upon reasonable notification to the Customer, and at a reasonable time, the 
Company may make such tests and inspections as may be necessary to determine 
that the Customer is complying with the requirements set forth in this tariff for the 
installation, operation, and maintenance of Customer-provided facilities and 
equipment that is connected to Company-owned facilities and equipment. 

2.3 Liability of the Company 

2.3.1 In view of the fact that the Customer has exclusive control over the use of service 
and facilities furnished by the Company, and because certain errors incident to the 
services and to the use of such facilities of the Company are unavoidable, services 
and facilities are furnished by the Company subject to the terms, conditions and 
limitations herein specified: 

Issued: January -, 201 1 Effective: ,2011 

Peter Chevalier, Associate General Counsel 
Zayo Group, LLC 

400 Centennial Parkway, Suite 200 
Louisville, CO 80027 

N73639827.1 
fJ73639827.4 



Zayo Group, LLC Arizona Tariff No. 1 
Original Page 12 

SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont'd) 

2.3 Liability of the Company (Cont'd) 

2.3.1 (Cont'd) 

(A) The Company's damages arising out of its negligznt acts, or mistakes, 
omissions, interruptions, delays, errors, or defects during the course of 
furnishing service, shall in no event exceed an amount equivalent to 
Company's charges for service during the period affected by such 
negligence, or in which such mistakes, omissions, interruptions, delays, 
errors, or defects occurred. Any mistakes, omissions, interruptions, delays, 
errors, or defects that are caused by or materially contributed to by the 
negligence or willful acts of Customer, or that arise from facilities or 

equipment used by Customer and not provided by Company, shall 
not result in the imposition of any liability upon Company. 

(B) Customer shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the Company, its 
officers and directors, employees, and agents from and against any and all 
lawsuits, claims, demands, penalties, losses, fines, liabilities, damages, and 
expenses of any kind and nature (including, without limitation, liability to 
third parties for personal injury or death and for loss or damage to 
property, and loss or damage to Company property, and injury to Company 
employees), without limitation whatsoever, that in any way arise out of or 
result from Customer's operations, installation or maintenance of 
equipment and facilities, or performance under this tariff, or that arises out 
of or in any way is connected with Customer's provision of service to its 
end users, or any use or attempted use by Customer or any such end user 
of services provided by the Company hereunder; provided that this section 
shall not apply to the extent that any injury, loss, or damage is caused by 
the gross negligence or willful misconduct on the part of the Company. 
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SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d) 

2.3 Liability of the Company (Cont’d) 

2.3.1 (Cont’d) 

The Company will not be liable for any act, omission to actpegligence, or 
defect in the quality of service of any underlying carrier or other service 
provider whose facilities or services are used in furnishing any portion of 
the service received by Customer. Company will not be liable for any 
failure of performance that is caused by or the result of any act or omission 
by Customer or any entity other than Company, that furnishes services, 
facilities, or equipment used in connection with Company’s services or 
facilities. 

EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY PROVIDED IN THIS TARIFF, COMPANY 
MAKES NO EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED REPRESENTATIONS, OR 
WARRANTIES, INCLUDING ANY WARRANTIES REGARDING 
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. 

IN NO EVENT SHALL COMPANY BE LIABLE TO CUSTOMER FOR 
SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT, CONSEQUENTIAL, OR 
PUNITIVE DAMAGES (INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, LOST 
PROFITS OR REVENUE). 
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SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d) 

2.3 Liability of the Company (Cont’d) 

2.3.2 Limitation of Liability 

2.3.2.1 Nothing in this tariff shall be construed to limit the Company’s liability in 
cases of gross negligence or willful misconduct. 

2.3.2.2 Neither Party shall be responsible for delays or failures in performance, 
except for the obligation to make payments required under this tariff, 
resulting from acts or occurrences in the nature of force majeure such as 
fire, explosion, acts of God, war, or civil commotion; any law, order, 
regulation, or ordinance of any government or legal body; strikes; or 
delays caused by the other Party. In such event, the Party affected shall, 
upon giving prompt notice to the other, be excused from such performance 
to the extent of such interference. The affected Party shall use its 
reasonable efforts to avoid or remove the cause of non-performance and 
both Parties shall proceed to perform with dispatch once the causes are 
removed or cease. 
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SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d) 

2.3 Liability of the Company (Cont’d) 

2.3.3 Emergency Calling 

Access to 91 1 and E91 I service is offered solely as an aid in handling assistance 
calls in connection with fire, police, medical, and other emergencies. The 
Company is not responsible, in the absence of gross negligence or willful 
misconduct, for any losses, claims, demands, suits, or any liability, whether 
suffered, made, instituted, or asserted by the Customer or by any other party or 
person, for any personal injury to or death of any person or persons, and for any 
loss, damage, or destruction of any property, whether owned by the Customer or 
others, caused or claimed to have been caused by the installation, operation, 
failure to operate, maintenance, removal, presence, condition, location, or use of 
such facilities. By dialing 91 1 , the Customer agrees to release, indemnify, 
defend, and hold harmless the Company from any and all loss or claims, 
whatsoever, whether suffered, made, instituted, or asserted by the destruction of 
any property, whether owned by the Customer or others. Notwithstanding any 
provision to the contrary, in no event shall the Company be liable for any special, 
incidental, consequential, exemplary, or punitive damages of any nature 
whatsoever. 

The Company is not responsible for any infringement or invasion of the right of 
privacy of any person or persons, caused, or claimed to have been caused, 
directly or indirectly, by the installation, operation, failure to 
operate, maintenance, removal, presence, condition, occasion or use of the 91 I 
service features and the equipment associated therewith, including, but not 
limited to, the identification of the telephone number, address or name associated 
with the telephone used by the party or parties accessing the 91 1 service. 
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SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d) 

2.4 Application for Service 

2.4.1 Minimum Contract Period 

2.4.1.1 Except as otherwise provided, the minimum contract period is one month 
for all services furnished. When a service is discontinued prior to the 
expiration of the minimum period, charges are applicable, whether the 
service is used or not. 

The Company may require a minimum contract period longer than one 
month in connection with special, non-standard types or arrangements of 
equipment, or for unusual construction, necessary to meet special demands 
for service. 

2.4.1.2 
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SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d) 

2.4 Application for Service (Cont’d) 

2.4.2 Cancellation of Service 

2.4.2.1 \%ere the zpplicant cancels an order for sewice prior to the start of the 
installation or special construction of facilities, no charge shall apply, 
except to the extent the Company incurs a service order or similar charge 
from a supplying carrier, if any, prior to the construction. 

2.4.2.2 Where the installation of facilities, other than those provided by special 
construction, has been started prior to cancellation, the lower of the 
following charge applies; 

2.4.2.2.A The total costs of installing and removing such facilities; or 

2.4.2.2.B The monthly charges for the entire initial contract period of the 
service ordered by the Customer as provided in this tariff plus the 
full amount of any applicable installation and termination charges. 

2.4.2.3 Where special construction of facilities has been started prior to the 
cancellation, and the Company has another requirement for the specially 
constructed facilities, no charge applies. 

2.4.2.4 The Company reserves the right to redefine its regions, add new regions, 
or remove regions from its current offering, as it deems appropriate in its 
sole discretion and will provide the Customer with at least thirty (30) days’ 
notice of any change in the definition of the Company’s regions. 

2.4.2.5 In the event the Company plans to exit a current region, the Company shall 
provide Customer with thirty (30) days prior written notification of the 
Company’s intent. The Customer shall be allowed to immediately 
terminate services in the affected region without penalty. 
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SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d) 

2.5 Payment for Service 

2.5.1 Company will bill Customer monthly, unless there is a contract for a longer 
billing period, with recurring charges being billed in advance and any usage 
charges billed in arrears. All amounts due Company are payable in full within 
thirty (30) days (“Due Date”) from the date of invoice (“Bill Date”). 

2.5.2 Payments are past due if not received by the Company by the Due Date. Any 
amounts past due will be subject to a late payment charge accruing at the rate of 1- 
1/2% per month or the highest lawful rate, whichever is lower, until paid. In 
addition, invoices not paid within forty (40) days of the Bill Date and which have 
not been disputed in accordance with the procedures set forth in Section 2.7.1 of 
this tariff, may result in suspension of service until the overdue payment and any 
additional charges that may be imposed to restore service, have been paid. 
Customer agrees to pay all costs incurred by Company in collecting any unpaid 
amounts. Failure of the Customer to pay all undisputed amounts by the Due Date 
is a material breach and Company shall notify Customer and allow five (5) days 
for Customer to cure a monetary breach, and if default remains uncured, Company 
may terminate services hereunder for non- payment. 

2.5.3 The Customer is responsible for payment of all charges for service furnished to 
the Customer. Charges based on actual usage during a month will be billed 
monthly, unless there is a contract for a longer billing period, in the month 
following the month in which the service was used. All fixed monthly and 
nonrecurring charges for services ordered will be billed monthly in advance. 
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SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d) 

2.5 Payment for Service (Cont’d) 

2.5.4 The Company reserves the right to require from an applicant for service advance 
payments of fixed charges and nonrecurring charges. The advance payment will 
not exceed an amount equal to the nonrecurring chargets) and one nionth’s 
recurring charges for the service or facility. In addition, where special 
construction is involved, the advance payment may also include an amount equal 
to the estimated nonrecurring charges for the special construction. The advance 
payment will be applied to any indebtedness for the service and facilities for 
which the advance payment is made on the Customer’s initial bill. 

Advanced payments for installation costs or special construction will be credited 
on the first bill in their entirety. 

2.6 Customer Deposits 

2.6.1 The Company may require a deposit or guarantee of payment from any Customer 
or applicant who has not established good credit with that utility. Deposit or 
guarantee of payment requirements as prescribed by the utility must be based 
upon standards which bear a reasonable relationship to the assurance of payment- 

A deposit shall not exceed an estimated two months gross bill or existing two 
months bill where applicable. All deposits shall be in addition to payment of an 
outstanding bill or a part of such bill as has been resolved to the satisfaction of the 
Company, except where such bill has been discharged in bankruptcy. The 
Company will not require a deposit or a guarantee of payment without explaining 
in writing why that deposit or guarantee is being required and under what 
conditions, if any, the deposit will be diminished upon return. 

The Company may determine whether a Customer has established good credit 
with that utility, except as herein restricted: 
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SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d) 

2.6 Customer Deposits (Cont’d) 

2.6.1.1 A Customer, who within the last 12 months has not had service 
disconnected for noapayment of a bill and has not been liable for 
disconnection of service for nonpayment of a bill, and the bill is not in 
dispute, shall be deemed to have established good credit. 

2.6.1.2 The Company shall not require a deposit or a guarantee of payment based 
upon income, home ownership, residential location, employment tenure, 
nature of occupation, race, color, creed, sex, marital status, age, national 
origin, or any other criteria which does not bear a reasonable relationship 
to the assurance of payment or which is not authorized by this chapter. 

2.6.1.3 No utility shall use any credit reports other than those reflecting the 
purchase of utility services to determine the adequacy of a Customer’s 
credit history without the permission in writing of the Customer. Any 
credit history so used shall be mailed to the Customer in order to provide 
the Customer an opportunity to review the data. Refusal of a Customer to 
permit use of a credit rating or credit service other than that of a utility 
shall not affect the determination by the utility as to that Customer’s credit 
history. 

2.6.1.4 The deposit will bear simple interest computed from the date of its receipt 
by the Company to the date the deposit is refunded or service is 
terminated. In the event that a deposit is retained during time periods 
having different rates of interest, the interest accrued on the deposit will be 
credited using the interest rate applicable to each time period. 

2.6.1.5 The rate of interest to be paid on Customer deposits is equivalent to the 
rate paid on 2-year U.S. treasury notes for the preceding 12 months ending 
December 3 1 of any year. 
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SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d) 

2.6 Customer Deposits (Cont’d) 

2.6.2 Return of Deposit 

Upon termination of service, the deposit with accrued interest shall be credited to 
the Customer’s final invoice and the balance shall be returned within 45 days to 
the Customer. 

2.6.3 Guarantee of Payment 

The Utility may accept, in lieu of deposit, a contract signed by a guarantor 
satisfactory to the Utility whereby payment of a specified sum, not exceeding the 
deposit requirement, is guaranteed. The term of such contract shalI be for no 
longer than 12 months, but shalI automatically terminate after the Customer has 
closed and paid the account with the Utility, or at the guarantor’s request upon 60 
days’ written notice to the Utility. Upon termination of a guarantee contract or 
whenever the Utility deems same insufficient as to amount or surety, a cash 
deposit or a new or additional guarantee may be required for good cause upon 
reasonable written notice to the Customer. 

The service of any Customer who fails to comply with these requirements may be 
disconnected upon notice as prescribed in Arizona Rules. The Utility shall mail 
the guarantor copies of all disconnect notices sent to the customer whose account 
he has guaranteed unless the guarantor waives such notice in writing. 
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SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d) 

2.7 Customer Complaints and Billing Disputes 

2.7.1 In the event that Customer disputes any charges, Customer must submit a written 
claim describing the disputed amount. Customer shall submit all documentation 
as may reasonably be required to support the claim. Payment may be withheld for 
the amounts subject to a dispute submitted prior to the Due Date. All disputes and 
claims for refunds must be submitted to Company within forty-five (45) days of 
the Bill Date. If Customer does not submit a claim as stated above, Customer 
waives all rights to file a claim thereafter. Company shall investigate and resolve 
all disputes within forty-five (45) days of receipt of the dispute and Company’s 
resolution of such a dispute is final. Any portion of a disputed amount deemed 
payable by Company must be paid in full within ten (IO) days of resolution or 
Customer’s service may be subject to disconnection and late payment charges 
imposed on the overdue amount. 

2.7.2 Customers may register any inquiry or complaint at: 

Zayo Group, LLC 
400 Centennial Parkway, Suite 200, Louisville, Colorado 80027 
Telephone: (800) 390-6094 
Email: billing@zayo.com 
Web: www.zayo.com/ 

2.7.3 Customers unable to resolve a dispute with the Company may submit any inquiry 
or complaint to the: 

Arizona Corporation Commission - Consumer Services Division 
Web : www.azcc .gov 

Phoenix Office: 
1200 West Washington Street, Phoenix, Arizona 85007-2927 
Telephone: (800) 222-7000 

Tucson Of$ce: 
400 West Congress Street. Tucson, Arizona 85701 -1 347 
Telephone: (800) 53 5-0 148 
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SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d) 

0:00:01 - 1:oo:oo 
1:00:01 - 2:oo:oo 
2:OO:Ol - 3:OO:OO 
3:OO:Ol - 4:OO:OO 

2.8 Allowance for Interruptions in Service 

0% 0% 
2% 0% 
5 y o  0% 
10% 0% 

2.8.1 The following allowances are provided for interruptions in service, as specified 
for particular services furnished solely by the Company which become 
unavailable due to a Service Outage, as defined below, for reasons other than an 
Excused Outage, as defined below, Customer will be entitled to a service credit 
off of the monthly recurring charge (“MRC”) for the affected circuit(s) based 
upon the cumulative length of time of the Service Outage in a given month as set 
forth below: 

I4:OO:Ol -8:OO:OO I 20% I 10% I 

2.8.2 For purposes of this Section, “Service Outage” means the break in transmission 
measured from the first ten (10) consecutive severely erred seconds (“SESs”) on 
the affected Zayo circuit until the first ten (10) non-SESs which is known by 
Zayo. An SES is measured with a bit error ratio of greater than or equal to 1 in 
1000. To be eligible for a credit under this Section, the Service Outage must last 
for more than sixty (60) consecutive minutes. Service credits shall be deducted 
from the charges payable by Customer hereunder and shall be expressly indicated 
on the next invoice to Customer. If the Customer reports Services or a facility or 
circuit to be unavailable but declines to release it for testing and repair, it is 
considered to be impaired, but shall not be deemed a Service Outage. 
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SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d) 

2.8 Allowance for Interruptions in Service (Cont’d) 

2.5.3 

2.8.4 

Service credits shall not apply to “Excused Outages”, which are defined as 
outages (i) caused by the negligence or acts of Customer andor its End User, 
affiliates, agents or representatives, (ii) the failure or malfunction of equipment or 
systems that are owned or controlled by Customer or Customer’s agents or other 
third party (including off-net facility providers); (iii) a Force Majeure event; (iv) 
during any period in which Zayo is not given access to the Service Premises; or 
(v) a Planned Service Outage, including planned network testing or maintenance, 
and unscheduled emergency maintenance, alteration or implementation. 

Customer shall provide a written request for a service credit within sixty (60) days 
after the Service Outage occurs. If Zayo confirms the Service Outage qualifies for 
a credit hereunder, Zayo will grant the service credit within thirty (30) days from 
receipt of said notice. Unless otherwise specifically stated, Service Outages are 
not aggregated for purposes of determining the credit allowance. Zayo agrees to 
provide a written Service Outage report within three (3) business days when 
requested by Customer. The service outage report will identify the impaired 
Circuit(s), the beginning and ending time/date of the Service Outage and the root 
cause of the Service Outage. The maximum service credit in a calendar month for 
any affected circuit shall not exceed 50% of the corresponding MRC for the 
affected circuit. 
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SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d) 

2.9 Taxes, Fees and Surcharges 

2.9.1 All state and local taxes and fees shall be listed as separate line items on the 
Customer’s Sill. 

2.9.2 If a municipality, other political subdivision or local agency of government, or the 
Commission imposes and collects from the Company a gross receipts tax, 
occupation tax, real estate tax, license tax, permit fee, franchise fee, or regulatory 
fee, such taxes and fees shall, as allowed by law, be billed pro rata to the 
Customer receiving service from the Company within the territorial limits of such 
municipality, other political subdivision or local agency of government. 

2.9.3 Service shall not be subject to taxes for a given taxing jurisdiction if the Customer 
provides the Company with written verification, acceptable to the Company and 
to the relevant taxing jurisdiction, that the Customer has been granted a tax 
exemption. 

2.10 Returned Check Charge 

The charge for a returned check is $35.00 per occurrence. 

2.1 1 Special Customer Arrangements 

In cases where a Customer requests special or unique arrangements which may include 
but are not limited to engineering, conditioning, installation, construction, facilities, 
assembly, purchase or lease of facilities and/or other special services not offered under 
this tariff, the Company, may provide the requested services. Appropriate recurring 
charges and/or nonrecurring charges and other terms and conditions will be developed 
for the customer for the provisioning of such arrangements. 
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SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d) 

2.12 Disconnection and Termination of Service 

2.12.1 Disconnection of Service Without Notice 

Company shall have the right to refuse or discontinue telephone service or service 
arrangements without advance notice, if the acts of the Customer or the conditions 
upon their premises are such as to indicate an intent to defraud Company or to use 
the Service to defraud a third party, including but not limited to, providing false 
credit information, significantly misstating expected service volumes, using the 
services for unlawful purposes, or using services without intent to pay. 

Company will attempt to contact the Customer by telephone prior to discontinuing 
the Service or portions thereof. If Company is unable to contact the Customer by 
telephone, a letter will be mailed to the Customer on the same date that their 
service or service arrangement is discontinued, explaining the reasons for such 
action and the Customer’s right to dispute such action. 

Customer is responsible for all charges attributable to Customer, even if incurred 
as a result of fraudulent or unauthorized use of the Service by third parties. 
Company may, but is not obligated to, detect or report unauthorized or fraudulent 
use of Service. 
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SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d) 

2.1 2 Disconnection and Termination of Service (Cont’d) 

2.12.2.Disconnection of Service Requiring Notice 

Disconnection notices issued by the Conipany will inform the Customer facing 
service disconnection of the total amount which the Customer would need to pay 
in order to avoid disconnection of service. It must also inform the Customer of 
the Company’s legal obligation to provide service to customers whose access 
service charges are paid, even while their toll service is disconnected for 
nonpayment of outstanding toll debt. 

2.12.2.1 The Company may disconnect service for any of the following reasons 
provided it has notified the Customer of its intent, in writing, to disconnect 
service and has allowed the Customer a reasonable time of not less than 
thirty (30) days in which to remove the cause for disconnection: 

2.12.2.1 .A Non-compliance with Regulations. For violation of or non- 
compliance with Commission’s rules and regulations or for 
violation of or non-compliance with the Company’s tariffs on file 
with the Commission. 

2.12.2.1 .B Failure on Contractual Obligations. For failure of the Customer to 
fulfill his contractual obligations for service or facilities subject to 
regulation by the Commission. 

2.12.2.1.C Refusal of Access. For failure of the Customer to permit the 
Company to have reasonable access to its equipment and property. 

2.12.2.1 .D Failure to meet the utility’s deposit and credit requirements. 
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SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d) 

I 2.12 Disconnection and Termination of Service (Cont’d) 

I 2.12.2.Disconnection of Service Requiring Notice 

2.12.2.1.E For non-payment of a bill for service, provided that the Company 
has made a reasonable attempt to effect collection and has given 
the Customer written notice of its intent to deny service if 
settlement of his account is not made and provided the Customer 
has at least five (5 )  days notice, in which to make settlement before 
his service is denied. 

2.12.2.1.F Failure to Comply with Service Conditions., For failure of the 
Customer to furnish the service equipment, permits, certificates, or 
rights-of-way, specified by the Company as a condition to 
obtaining service, or if the equipment or permissions are 
withdrawn or terminated. 
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SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d) 

2.13 Unlawful Use of Service 

2.13.1 Service shall not be used for any purpose in violation of law or for any use as to 
which the Customer has not obtained all required governmental approvals, 
authorizations, licenses, consents, and permits. The Company shall refuse to 
furnish service to an applicant or shall disconnect the service without notice of a 
Customer when: 

2.13.1.1 An order shall be issued, signed by a judge finding that probable cause 
exists to believe that the use made or to be made of the service is 
prohibited by law, or 

2.13.1.2 The Company is notified in writing by a law enforcement agency acting 
within its jurisdiction that any facility furnished by the Company is being 
used or will be used for the purpose of transmitting or receiving gambling 
information in interstate or foreign commerce in violation of the law. 

2.13.2 If service has been physically disconnected by law enforcement officials at the 
Customer’s premises and if there is not presented to the Company the written 
finding of a judge, then upon written or verbal request of the subscriber, and 
agreement to pay restoral of service charges and other applicable service charges, 
the Company shall promptly restore such service. 

2.14 Interference with or Impairment of Service 

Service shall not be used in any manner that interferes with other persons in the use of 
their service, prevents other persons from using their service, or otherwise impairs the 
quality of service to other Customers. The Company may require a Customer to 
immediately shut down its transmission of signals if said transmission is causing 
interference to others or impairing the service of others. 
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SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d) 

2.15 OverchargeIUndercharge 

2.1 5.1 When a Customer has been overcharged, the amount shall be refunded or credited 
to the Customer. 

2.15.2 When a Customer has been undercharged, the undercharged amount shall be 
invoiced to Customer and such invoiced amount shall be payable over a six (6) 
month period. 

2.16 Notices 

2.16.1 Any notice required or permitted to be given under this tariff shall be in writing 
and delivered by hand, mail, national overnight courier service or by fax if 
confirmed by telephone to the Customer, at the address or phone numbers shown 
herein or at such other address or phone numbers as shall be designated from time 
to time. 
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SECTION 3. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES 

3.1 General 

The various types of service offered by the Company are described below. The 
Company’s services ai-e billed at predetermined monthly rates, unless there is a contract 
for a longer billing period. Recurring charges are billed in advance of the month in which 
the service is provided. Any optional features and extraordinary installation costs other 
than recurring and nonrecurring charges may apply as described herein. Customers 
requesting these services may subscribe to services on a month-to-month basis, or on an 
individual case basis as described in Section 3.6. 

3.2 Service Configurations 

There are two types of service configuration over which Company’s services Ethernet and 
TDM are provided: point-to-point and multipoint service. 

3.2.1 

3.2.2 

Point-to-Point Service 

Point-to-Point Service connects two premises designated by the Customer, either 
on a directly-connected basis, or through a hub where multiplexing functions are 
performed. 

Multipoint Service 

Multipoint Services connect three or more premises designated by the Customer 
through a Company hub. While there is no limitation on the number of locations 
that may be connected through multipoint service, the quality of service may be 
degraded when more than three points are connected. Multipoint services may be 
provided where it is technically possible to provide those services. However, if 
the Company determines that the requested multipoint service is not feasible, the 
Customer will be notified and provided an opportunity to change the order within 
forty-five (45) days. 
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SECTION 3. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES (Cont’d) 

3.3 Service Descriptions and Technical Specifications 

The Company offers the following services: 

3.3.1 Ethernet Service 

The Company provides point-to-point broadband communications services 
through 1 OOMbps, 1 Gbps, and 1 OGbps Ethernet circuits, provided between 
locations designated by the Customer and/or between such locations and a 
Company hub, through fiber optic cable owned or controlled by Company. 

3.3.2 Point-to-Point and Hub/Tail TDM Services 

The Company provides high-speed point-to-point and hubhail broadband 
communications services through DS3, OC3, OC12, and OC-48 TDM circuits, 
provided between locations designated by the Customer and/or between such 
locations and a Company hub, through fiber optic cable owned or controlled by 
Company. Services are typically provisioned over a SONET-ring network 
architecture. 
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SECTION 3. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES (Cont’d) 

3.3 Service Descriptions and Technical Specifications (Cont’d) 

3.3.3 Primary Rate ISDN (PRI) Service 

Primary Rate Interface Service (PRI) provides an ISDN based, DSl access io the 
telecommunications network and includes the flexibility of integration of multiple 
voice and/or data transmission channels on the same line. The service will provide 
connectivity between ISDN compatible CPE and a serving central office. The 
basic channel structure for PRI Service is twenty-three 64 Kbps B-Channels and 
one 64 Kbps D-Channel. The customer has the option to activate up to 23 B- 
Channels on the first PRI Service arrangement and up to 24 channels on 
additional PRI Service arrangements. A Digital Data Only option and an Inward 
Data Option are also available. The 23 B-Channels can be used to connect the 
customer’s CPE to the Public Switched Telephone Network, e.g., outward, inward 
and 2-way network access. Calling Number Delivery, Called Number Delivery, 
and Hunting functionality are inherent to this service. Telephone numbers for use 
on PRI Service are available. One Primary Directory Listing will be furnished at 
no charge for each PRI service B-Channel. Additional listings can be obtained. 
PRI Service provides capability for the transmission of digital signals only. Clear 
Channel Capability and Extended Superframe Format are inherent to the service. 

PRI Service also includes access to emergency services (e.g., 911 and E911), 
Operator Services, Directory Assistance and Telephone Relay Service. 
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SECTION 3. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES (Cont’d) 

3.3 Service Descriptions and Technical Specifications (Cont’d) 

3.3.4 DID Trunk Service 

DID Trunk Service provides a Customer with a single, voice-grade telephonic 
communications channel that can be used to receive incoming calls one call at a 
time. DID Trunk Service transmits the dialed digits for all incoming calls 
allowing the Customer’s PBX or similar equipment to route the calls directly to 
individual stations corresponding to each individual DID number. DID Service 
requires some transport service and can be added to PRI, Point to Point TDM, or 
Ethernet. 
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SECTION 3. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES (Cont’d) 

3.3 Service Descriptions and Technical Specifications (Cont’d) 

3.3.5 Calling Features for PRI and DID Service 

The following calling features are available with PRI and DID Services: 

3-Way Calling - This feature allows the customer to connect a third 
party call to an existing call. 

Call Forward Busy - This feature allows the customer to designate a 
telephone number to which their calls will be forwarded to in the event 
that their number is already in use. The Customer assumes financial 
responsibility for all calling charges generated by the use of this feature. 

Call Forward No Answer - This feature allows the customer to 
designate a telephone number to which their calls are forwarded to 
after a predetermined time with no answer. The Customer assumes 
financial responsibility for all calling charges generated by the use of 
this feature. 

Call Forward Variable - This feature enables a customer to program their 
telephone to forward their calls to another telephone number. The 
Customer assumes financial responsibility for all calling charges 
generated by the use of this feature. 

Caller ID - This feature permits the display of a caller’s telephone 
number on a Customer Premise Equipment display unit. Calling party 
information may indicate the directory number of the calling party or 
show that the number of the calling party is private or unavailable. 
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SECTION 3. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES (Cont'd) 

3.3 Service Descriptions and Technical Specifications (Cont'd) 

3.3.5 Calling Features for PRI and DID Service 

Caller ID W-ith Name - This feature permits the display of a listed name 
associated with telephone number from which the call is  being made. 
The name and number will be delivered to a customer-provided display 
device. 

Call Waiting/ Cancel Call Waiting - The Call Waiting feature enables a 
customer already on a call to be notified of another call by the sound of a 
Call Waiting tone. The customer depresses the switchhook to answer the 
new call, placing the original call on hold. The Cancel Call Waiting 
feature enables a customer to deactivate the Call Waiting feature. There 
is no additional charge for the Cancel Call Waiting feature. 

Call Return - This feature redials the number of the most recent 
incoming call to the Customer's telephone number. This feature is 
activated when the user dials *69. The number of the most recent 
incoming call will then be dialed for up to 30 minutes and the user will be 
signaled with a special ring if  the called number becomes 
available. The user will be charged each time this feature is activated, 
regardless of whether the called party answers. Calls completed with 
this feature will be subject to all appropriate local, local toll 
and/or long distance charges. This feature cannot be activated 
when the number of the most recent incoming call has call or line 
blocking or is otherwise unavailable. The following limitations apply to 
the Call Return function: 

3-Way Calling: Call Return will only work for the first party called, 
not for the second. 
Call Return will not work to call a customer who has Call 
Forwarding Variable, or to call a toll-free, 900 or private 
number. 
Repeat Dialing cannot be used right after Call Return is used, unless 
the user dials an outgoing call. 
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‘ SECTION 3. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES (Cont’d) 

I 3.3 Service Descriptions and Technical Specifications (Cont’d) 

~ 3.3.6 Intralatahterlata Toll Presubscription 

IntraLATNlnterLATA toll presubscription is a procedure whereby a 
Customer may select and designate an IntraLATA and/or InterLATA Toll 
Provider (“ITP”) to access IntraLATA and/or InterLATA toll calls in Arizona 
without dialing an access code. The end user may designate an ITP for 
IntraLATA toll, a different carrier for InterLATA toll, or the same carrier for 
both. This ITP is referred to as the Customer preferred IntraLATNInterLATA toll 
provider. 

Selection of an ITP by a Customer is subject to the terms and conditions in 
Section 3.3.7. 

3.3.7 Presubscription Charge Application 

3.3.7.1 Initial Free Presubscription Choice for Customers 

New customers (including an existing customer who orders an additional 
line) who subscribe to PRI service will be asked to select a primary ITP 
when they place an order for PRI Service. If a customer cannot decide 
upon either an IntraLATA and/or an InterLATA toll carrier at the time, the 
customer will be assigned a “No-PIC” and will have to dial an access code 
to make IntraLATA and/or InterLATA toll calls until such time as the 
customer has notified the Company that it has selected a primary ITP. 

Initial free selections available to Customers are: 

1 .  Designating an ITP as their primary carrier, thereby requiring no 
access code to access that ITP’s service. Other carriers are accessed by 
dialing 101 -XXXX or other required codes. 

2. Choosing no carrier as a primary carrier thus requiring 101-XXXX 
code dialing to access all ITPs. This choice can be made by directly 
contacting the Company. 
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SECTION 3. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES (Cont'd) 

3.3 Service Descriptions and Technical Specifications (Cont'd) 

3.3.8 Directory Listing Service 

Ths Conipany will provide Customer a single directory listing to PRTDID 
subscribers consisting of the Customer's name, Customer's street address, and 
Customer's telephone number which is designated as the Customer's main billing 
number, in the telephone directory published by the dominant exchange service 
provider in the Customer's exchange area. 

The Company may limit the length of any listing in the directory by the use of 
abbreviations when in its sole discretion, the clearness of the listing or the 
identification of the Customer is not impaired thereby. 

The Company may, in its sole discretion, refuse a listing (i) that does not 
constitute Customer's legally authorized or adopted name, (ii) that contains 
obscenities in the name, (iii) that is likely to mislead or deceive calling persons as 
to the identify of the listed party, (iv) that is a contrived name used for advertising 
purposes or used to secure a preferential position in the directory, or (v) that is 
more elaborate than reasonably necessary to identify the listed party. The 
Company will notify the Customer prior to withdrawing any listing which is found 
to be in violation of this subpart. 

In order for Iistings to appear in a directory, a Customer must furnish the listing to 
the Company in time to meet the directory publishing schedule. 

3.3.9 Directory Assistance Service 

Company will connect PRI Service Customers to Directory Assistance (DA) for a 
fee as set forth in Section 4.5. A credit allowance for DA will be provided upon 
request if the Customer experiences poor transmission quality, is cut-off, receives 
an incorrect telephone number, or misdiais the intended DA number (NPA+555- 
1212). 
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SECTION 3. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES (Cont’d) 

3.3 Service Descriptions and Technical Specifications (Cont’d) 

3.3.1 0 Operator Services 

Operator services are obtained by dialing “O”, which will be answered by an 
operator. Calls placed dialing “00” will be answered by the operator of the 
designated long distance interexchange carrier. Charges for operator services 
provided by Company’s underlying operator service provider will be billed on a 
pass through basis on the customer’s monthly billing statement from Company. 

Customers may receive bills directly from other operator service providers whose 
services the customer may use. 

Third Number Billed Calling: inbound and outbound operator assisted calling, in 
which the calling party identifies a third telephone number against which the call 
charges will be billed. The operator will validate that the owner of the third 
number agrees to pay for the call prior to the call being completed. 

Collect CallinP: Customer will have the ability to originate an outbound collect 
call. Customer will be able to accept an inbound collect call. 

Person to Person: operator assisted calling, in which the calling party identifies by 
name the specific person that wish to speak with and the operator will get that 
specific person on the call prior to the call being completed. 

3 -3.1 1 Intercept Services 

Customers may request intercept service whenever the Customer’s telephone 
number is changed. The Company shall provide the caller with information on 
how to obtain the new number with the intercept recording. 
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SECTION 3. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES (Cont’d) 

3.4 Rate Categories 

There are six rate categories that may apply to the Company’s Services. 

3.4.1 

3.4.2 

3.4.3 

Monthly Recurring Charges (“MRC”) 

Monthly Recurring Charges are charges invoiced to the Customer that occur each 
month during the term of the services ordered by the Customer. 

Nonrecurring Charges (“NRC”) 

Nonrecurring Charges are one-time charges to the Customer that do not occur on a 
recurring basis. Service installation charges, special construction and customer 
premise visits are included in Nonrecurring Charges. 

Extraordinary Charges 

From time to time, Customers may request special services not addressed 
specifically by rate elements in this Tariff, or services to locations that may cause 
Company to incur extraordinary expenses not contemplated in the provision of 
standard service offerings. These costs include, but are not limited to: 

Additional construction costs 

Building space rental or rights-of-way costs 

Additional equipment 

Special facilities routing 

In these cases, the Customer will be billed additional charges on an ICB. 
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SECTION 3. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES (Cont’d) 

3.4 Rate Categories (Cont’d) 

3.4.4 

3.4.5 

3.4.6 

Volume Discounts 

Discounts for specified dollar volumes of traffic to a specific location or aggregate 
dollar volumes may apply to Customers that subscribe to substantial volumes of 
the Company’s services. 

Term Discounts 

Customers will be eligible for discounts for executing agreements for services for 
one to ten years. 

Usage 

Customers purchasing Business Local Exchange Service may incur usage charges 
on a per call or per minute basis. 
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SECTION 3. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES (Cont’d) 

3.5 Application of Rate Elements 

The rate categories described in this Tariff will be applied as follows, when applicable: 

3.5.1 Point-to-Point Services 

Flat rate MRC/NRC 

Optional Features and Functions 
Extraordinary Charges 
Volume Discounts 
Term Discounts 

3.5.2 Multipoint Services 

Flat rate MRC/NRC 

Optional Features and Functions 
Extraordinary Charges 
Volume Discounts 
Term Discounts 

3.5.3 PRI/DID Services 

Flat rate MRCNRC per line 

Optional Features and Functions 
Usage 
Extraordinary Charges 
Volume Discounts 
Term Discounts 
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SECTION 3. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES (Cont'd) 

3.6 Contract Rates - Special Pricing Arrangements - ICB 

3.6.1 In lieu of the rates, terms and conditions set forth in this Tariff, rates and charges 
rxay be established at negotiated rates on an ICB, taking into account the nature of 
the facilities and services, the costs of construction and operation, the volume of 
traffic, the length of service commitment by the Customer, and use of facilities by 
other Customers. Such arrangements shall be considered Special Pricing 
Arrangements, the term of which will be set forth in individual Customer 
contracts. Unless otherwise specified in the individual Customer contract, the 
terms, conditions, obligations and regulations set forth in this Tariff shall be 
incorporated into, and become a part of, said contract, and shall be binding on the 
Company and the Customer. In the event of a conflict between the terms and 
conditions of this Tariff and an individual Customer contract, the terms and 
conditions from the individual Customer contract shall apply. Specialized rates or 
charges will be made available to similarly-situated Customers on a non- 
discriminatory basis. 

3.6.2 In addition to any rate or charge established by the Company, the Customer will 
also be responsible for any recurring or non-recurring charges imposed by 
telephone companies incurred by or on behalf of the Customer in establishing and 
maintaining service. Such charges may be billed by the Company or directly by 
the telephone company, at the Company's option. 

3.7 Taxes 

3.7.1 Sales, Use and Excise Taxes 

In addition to all recurring, non-recurring, usage or special charges, Customer 
shall also be responsible for and shall pay all applicable federal, state and local 
sales, use and excise taxes. 

3.8 Temporary Promotional Programs 

The Company may establish temporary promotional programs wherein it may waive or 
reduce recurring or non-recurring charges, to introduce a present or potential Customer to 
a service no previously subscribed to by the Customer. 
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SECTION 4. RATES AND CHARGES 

4.1 General Regulations 

4.1.1 Except as specifically indicated, the rates set forth in this section are for services 
where the originating and termiiiaiing points are on Company’s existing network. 
In all other situations, special construction charges may apply in order to connect 
locations to Company’s network. 

4.1.2 Services may be provided using one, or a combination of rate elements as outlined 
in this Tariff. 

4.2 Charges for Changes to Pending Orders, Service Rearrangements and Expedite Charges 

From time to time, Customers may request (i) changes to pending orders, (ii) 
rearrangements to existing service, and (iii) order completion sooner than standard 
intervals. For changes to pending orders and existing services, the Customer will be 
required to reimburse the Company for any third party costs incurred to provision such 
service changes plus a maximum amount per service or line as outlined below. To 
expedite an order, the customer will be required to reimburse the Company for any third 
party costs incurred to expedite the order plus a maximum amount per service or line as 
outlined below. 

Ethernet Services 

Change Fee - $800 per service 

Expedite Fee - $1000 per service 

TDM Services 

Change Fee - $800 per service 

Expedite Fee - $1000 per service 

PRI & DID Services 

Change Fee - $50 per line 

Expedite Fee - $500 per line 
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SECTION 4. RATES AND CHARGES (Cont’d) 

4.3 Nonrecurring Charge 

Non recurring charges will be charged on a time and materials basis. 

4.3.1 Cxstomer Premise Visits 

For customer premise visits, Company will charge on an hourly basis, rounded to 
the next 15 minute interval with the below minimums. 

1. M-F (business hours 8am-5pm local premise time) - Maximum $120 per hour 
with a 2 hour minimum 

2. M-F (out of business hours) and weekends - Maximum $150 per hour with a 4 
hour minimum 

3. Holidays - Maximum $200 per hour with a 4 hour minimum 
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SECTION 4. RATES AND CHARGES (Cont’d) 

4.4 Special Construction 

4.4.1. Bases for Rates and Charges 

Rates and charges for special construction will be based on the costs incurred by 
the Company and may include (1) nonrecurring type charges; (2) recurring type 
charges; (3) termination liabilities; or (4) combinations thereof. 

The costs referred to in Section 4.4.1 may include one or more of the following 
items to the extent that they are applicable: 

4.4.2 

A. 

B. 

C. 

D. 

E. 

F. 

G. 

H. 

Installed cost of the facilities, including estimated costs for the 
rearrangement of existing facilities. Cost installed includes the cost of: 

equipment and materials provided or used, 1. 
2. engineering, labor and supervision, 
3 .  transportation, and 
4. rights-of-way; 

cost of maintenance; 

depreciation on the estimated installed cost of any facilities provided, 
based on the anticipated useful service life of the facilities with an 
appropriate allowance for the estimated net salvage; 

administration, taxes, and uncollectible revenue on the basis of reasonable 
average costs for these items; 

license preparation, processing, and related fees; 

tariff preparation, processing, and related fees; 

any other identifiable costs related to the facilities provided; or 

an amount for return and contingencies. 
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SECTION 4. RATES AND CHARGES (Cont’d) 

4.5 Rates 

4.5.1 Point-to-Point and Multipoint Services 

4.5.1.1 Metro Phoenix Recurring Charges (on-net circuit originates and 
terminates in the Phoenix market) 

DS3 Point to Point 
OC3 Point to Point 
OC12 Point to Point 
OC12 Hub 
OC48 Hub 
DS3 Tail 
OC3 Tail 
OC 12 Tail 
1 OOMb Point to Point 
I OOOMb Point to Point 

Maximum 
$1,040 
$2,595 

$4,100 
$8,200 
$500 
$1,300 
$3,000 
$1,890 
$7,290 

$5,973 

4.5.2 Service Elements 

4.5.2.1 Metro Phoenix Nonrecurring Charges (on-net only) 

DS3 Point to Point 
OC3 Point to Point 
OC 12 Point to Point 
OC12 Hub 
OC48 Hub 
DS3 Tail 
OC3 Tail 
OC 12 Tail 
1 OOMb Point to Point 
1 OOOMb Point to Point 

Maximum 
$1,000 
$2,000 
$3,000 
$3,000 
$5,000 
$1,000 
$2,000 

$2,000 
$3,000 

$5,000 
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SECTION 4. RATES AND CHARGES (Cont’d) 

4.5 Rates (Cont’d) 

4.5.3 Primary Rate Interface Service 

Maximum non-recurring and monthiy rates per PRI Service apply as follows: 

Month to 
Month 
VoiceData 
Digital Data 
Inward Data 

12 Months 
Voicemata 
Digital Data 
Inward Data 

24 Months 
Voice/Data 
Digital Data 
Inward Data 

36 Months 
VoiceData 
Digital Data 
InwardData 

Non- 
Recurring 
$1,000.00 

$750.00 

$750.00 

$750.00 

Monthly Recurring 

$850.00 

$750.00 

$675.00 

$600.00 

,2011 Issued: January -, 201 1 Effective: 

Peter Chevalier, Associate General Counsel 
Zayo Group, LLC 

400 Centennial Parkway, Suite 200 
Louisville. CO 80027 

N13639821.1 
N73639821.4 



l -  

~ 

Zayo Group, LLC Arizona Tariff No. I 
Original Page 49 

~ 

SECTION 4. RATES AND CHARGES (Cont’d) 

1 4.5 Rates (Cont’d) 

4.5.4 DID Trunk Service 

Maximum Non-Recurring 

Service Order Charge $34.50 
Line Connection Charge, per trunk $20.35 
Central Office Trunk per trunk $24.50 

Maximum Monthly Recurring 

Maximum Non- Measured Message 
Recurring 

DID Trunk Termination $250.00 $42.50 $52.50 

4.5.5 CaIling Features for PRI and DID Service 

3-Way Calling 
Call Forward Busy 
Call Forward No Answer 
Call Forward Variable 
Caller ID 
Caller ID With Name 
Call Waiting/ Cancel Call Waiting 
Call Return 

3-Way Calling 
Call Return 

Maximum Charges 
Non-Recurring 
$1 5.00 
$15.00 
$15.00 
$15.00 
$15.00 
$15.00 
$1 5.00 
$15.00 

Maximum 
Per Use Charge 
$6.00 
$6.00 
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SECTION 4. RATES AND CHARGES (Cont’d) 

4.5 Rates (Cont’d) 

4.5.5 Directory Listings 

~ 

Gne directory listing is included with PIII/DID Services. 

Each additional directory listing is subject to a maximum non-recurring charge of 
$25.00 and maximum monthly recurring charge of $8.00. 

4.5.6 Directory Assistance 

Customer Dialed DA 

Operator Dialed DA 

4.5.7 Operator Service 

Operator Station-to-Station 

Person-to-Person 

4.5.8 Miscellaneous Charges 

PIC Change 

Intercept Services 

Direct Cut Through 
Cut Through With Referral 

Maximum 
Non-Recurring Charge 
$3 .OO 

$4.00 

Maximum 
Non-Recurring CharPe 
$7.00 

$9.00 

Maximum 
Non-Recurring Charge 
$8.00 

$15.00 
$17.00 
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RE: IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION OF ZAYO GROUP, LLC FOR 
APPROVAL OF A CERTIFICATE OF CONVENIENCE AND NECESSITY FOR 
FACILITIES-BASED LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICES ANDF RESOLD AND 
FACILITIES-BASED INTRALATA AND INTRALATA PRIVATE LINE 
SERVICES. (DOCKET NO. T-20783A-11-0024) 

~ _ _ - _ _  

Attached is the Staff Report for the above referenced application. The Applicant is 
. . -  applying for approval to provide the following services: 

0 Facilities Based Local Exchange Services 
0 Resold and Facilities-Based IntraLATA and InterLATA Private Line Services 

Staff is recommending approval of the application with conditions. 

SM0:AFF:kdh 

Originator: Armando Fimbres 

Attachment: Original and Thirteen Copies 



SERVICE LIST FOR ZAYO GROUP, LLC 
DOCKET NO. T-20783A-11-0024 

Mr. Michael T. Hallam 
Lewis & Roca 
40 North Central Avenue, Suite 1900 
Phoenix, Arizona 85004 

Ms. Jean L. Kiddoo 
Mr. Brett P. Ferenchak 
Bingham McCutchen LLP 
2020 K Street N.W. 
Washington, DC 20006 



STAFF REPORT 

UTILITIES DIVISION 
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1. INTRODUCTION 

On January 24,201 1 Zayo Group, LLC (“Zayo” or “Company” or “Applicant”) filed an 
application for a Certificate of Convenience and Necessity (“CC&N”) to provide facilities-based 
local exchange services and resold and facilities-based intraLATA and interLATA private line 
services on a statewide basis in the State of Arizona. The Applicant petitioned the Arizona 
Corporation Commission (“ACC” or “Commission”) for a determination that its proposed 
services should be classified as competitive. 

On March 8,20 1 1, Zayo responded to Staff’s First Set of Data Request sent via email on 
February 15,201 1. Zayo’s response included a revised Tariff No. 1. Following an additional 
change, Zayo filed a revised tariff on March 15,201 1. 

During the course of Staffs review in this matter, several discussions were held and 
emails were exchanged to clarify the linkage between Zayo’s CC&N application and a related 
application’ filed by Zayo and its affiliates, Zayo Bandwidth, LLC (“ZB”), and Zayo Fiber 

I Solutions, LLC (“ZFS”). 

Staffs review of this application addresses the overall fitness of the Applicant to receive 
a CC&N. Staffs analysis also considers whether the Applicant’s services should be classified as 
competitive, if the Applicant’s initial rates are just and reasonable and if the Applicant’s CC&N 
should be approved with conditions. 

2. REQUESTED SERVICES 

.. 

Zayo’s CC&N application requests statewide authority to provide local exchange and 
private line services to business customers. Zayo states in its application that services will not be 
provided to residential customers. 

! The revised Tariff No. 1 filed on March 15, 201 1 clarified that its services will be 
available to large enterprise (business), government and wholesale customers only. Zayo 
proposes to serve its target market with Primary Rate Interface (“PRI”) services, Direct Inward 
Dialing (“DID”) services and high capacity private lines services. Zayo will not be providing 
stand-alone local exchange service to businesses. 

I 
3. TECHNICAL CAPABILITY TO PROVIDE THE REQUESTED SERVICES 

Communications Infrastructure Investments, LLC is the ultimate parent of Zayo, the 
direct parent of ZB and ZFS. In Arizona, ZB is authorized to provide facilities-based local 
exchange and long distance pursuant to authority granted by Decision No. 71781 issued in 

’ Docket No. T-20783A-11-0097, In the matter of the application of Zayo Group, LLC, Zayo Bandwidth, LLC and 
Zayo Fiber Solutions, LLC for approval to complete certain Pro Forma Intra-Corporate Transactions, filed February 
25,201 1. 

I 
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Docket No. T-20694A-09-0379 on July 12, 2010. In Arizona, ZFS is authorized to provide 
competitive private line telecommunications services pursuant to authority granted by Decision 
No. 71485 issued in Docket No. T- 20667A-09-0179 on February 23,2010. 

Zayo has requested approval to merge’ the operations of ZB and ZFS pursuant to A.R.S. 
0 40-285(A) and A.A.C. R14-2-1107 and R14-2-1904 et seq. With approval of the Commission, 
the proposed merger will provide Zayo with the combined technical expertise of ZB and ZFS. 

Zayo is also the direct parent of American Fiber Systems (“AFS”). AFS is currently 
authorized to provide facilities-based and resold local exchange, exchange access and 
interexchange telecommunications services pursuant to authority granted by the Commission in 
Decision No. 63936, dated August 6,2001. 

Many of the officers of Zayo are the same officers currently providing management 
oversight of ZB, ZFS and AFS. Therefore, the telecommunications experience of many Zayo 
officers has also been considered in prior applications, most recently in the approval of ZB and 
ZFS CC&Ns in 2010. The Zayo officers listed in Exhibit B of Zayo’s CC&N application have 
over 60 years of combined telecommunications experience, some with regional bell operating 
companies (“RBOCs’’) and major competitive local exchange carriers (“CLECs”). 

Zayo states that its subsidiaries, collectively, are authorized to provide in the District of 
Columbia and the states of Arizona, California, Colorado, Delaware, Georgia, Idaho, Illinois, 
Indiana, Kansas, Kentucky, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, Missouri, Nevada, New Jersey, 
New York, North Carolina, Ohio, Oregon, Pennsylvania, Tennessee, Texas, Utah, Virginia, 
Washington and West Virginia. Additionally, Zayo states that it has not been denied the 
authority to offer telecommunications services in any state. 

Staff believes that Zayo possesses the technical capabilities necessary to provide the 
services proposed in this CC&N application. 

4. FINANCIAL CAPABILITY TO PROVIDE THE REQUESTED SERVICES 

Zayo was formed on May 4,2007. With its CC&N application, Zayo submitted audited 
financials for years ending June 30,2008; June 30,2009; and June 30,2010. For the year ending 
June 30, 2010, Zayo reported Total Assets of $564,381,000; Shareholder Equity of 
$213,136,000; and Net Income of $461,000, 

The Applicant lists conditions under which advance payments may be required for 
services in its proposed Tariff No. 1, Section 2.6. Staff believes that advances, deposits, and/or 
prepayments received from the Applicant’s customers should be protected by the procurement of 
either a performance bond or an Irrevocable Sight Draft Letter of Credit (“ISDLC”). The 

i 
I 

Docket No. T-20783A-11-0097, In the matter of the application of Zayo Group, LLC, Zayo Bandwidth, LLC and 
Zayo Fiber Solutions, LLC for approval to complete certain Pro Forma Intra-Corporate Transactions, filed February 
25,2011 
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default of its obligations arising from its Certificate. The Commission may use the bond or 
Letter of Credit funds, as appropriate, to protect the Applicant’s customer and the public interest 
and take any and all actions the Commission deems necessary, in its discretion, including, but 
not limited to returning prepayments or deposits collected from the Applicant’s customers. 
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Applicant should be granted the discretion to procure either the performance bond or the ISDLC. 
Since the Applicant is requesting a CC&N for more than one kind of service, the amount of a 
performance bond or the ISDLC for multiple services is an aggregate of the minimum bond or 
the ISDLC amount for each type of telecommunications service requested by the Applicant. The 
Commission’s current performance bond or ISDLC requirements are $10,000 for resold long 
distance (for those resellers who collect deposits, advances or prepayments), $25,000 for resold 
local exchange, $100,000 for facilities-based long distance and $100,000 for facilities-based 
local exchange services. Based on the services the Applicant is requesting authority to provide, 
the minimum recommended performance bond or ISDLC should be $100,000. The performance 
bond or ISDLC coverage needs to increase in increments equal to 50 percent of the total 
minimum performance bond or ISDLC amount when the total amount of the deposits is within 
10 percent of the total minimum performance bond or ISDLC amount. Further, measures should 
be taken to ensure that the Applicant shall not discontinue service to its customers without first 
complying with Arizona Administrative Code (“A.A.C.”) R14-2- 1 107. 

Staff recommends that the Applicant procure a performance bond or the ISDLC equal to 
$100,000. The minimum performance bond or the ISDLC amount of $100,000 should be 
increased if at any time it would be insufficient to cover advances, deposits, and/or prepayments 
collected from the Applicant’s customers. The performance bond or the ISDLC amount should 
be increased in increments of $50,000. This increase should occur when the total amount of the 
advances, deposits, and prepayments is within $10,000 of the performance bond or the JSDLC 
amount. If the Applicant desires to discontinue service, it must file an application with the 
Commission pursuant to A.A.C. R14-2-1107. Additionally, the Applicant must notify each of its 
customers and the Commission 60 days prior to filing an application to discontinue service. 
Failure to meet this requirement should result in forfeiture of the Applicant’s performance bond 
or the ISDLC. 

Staff further recommends that proof of the above mentioned performance bond or an 
ISDLC be docketed within 90 days of the effective date of a Decision in this matter or 10 days 
before the first customer is served, whichever comes first. Staff also recommends that the 
company notify Staff through a compliance filing when it begins serving customers. The 
original bond or Letter of Credit should be filed with the Commission’s Business Office and 
copies of the bond or Letter of Credit with Docket Control, as a compliance item in this docket. 

‘i , 
i I  

1 

The Applicant would initially be providing service in areas where an incumbent local 
exchange carrier (“ILEC”), along with various competitive local exchange carriers (“CLECs”) 

I 
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and interexchange carriers are providing telephone service. Therefore, the Applicant would have 
to compete with those providers in order to obtain subscribers to its services. The Applicant 
would be a new entrant and would face competition from both an incumbent provider and other 
competitive providers in offering service to its potential customers. Therefore, the Applicant 
would generally not be able to exert market power. Thus, the competitive process should result 
in rates that are just and reasonable. 

Both an actual rate and a maximum rate may be listed for each competitive service 
offered. The rate charged for a service may not be less than the Company’s total service long- 
run incremental cost of providing the service pursuant to A.A.C. R14-2-1109. 

The rates proposed by this filing are for competitive services. In general, rates for 
competitive services are not set according to rate of return regulation. In section (B-4) of its 
application the Company states that its projected net book value at the end of the first twelve 
months of operation is $22,500,000 in Arizona jurisdictional assets. The assets will largely be 
the result of the approval that Zayo anticipates from a Commission decision in its pending 
transaction3. Additionally, Zayo states in section (B-4)’ that projected revenues of $100,000 are 
anticipated for the first twelve months of operation. 

Zayo submitted Tariff No. 1 with its application and submitted a revised Tariff No. 1 on 
March 15, 201 1. Staff has reviewed these rates and believes they are comparable to the rates 
charged by competitive local carriers and local incumbent carriers operating in the State of 
Arizona. The rate to be ultimately charged by the Company will be heavily influenced by the 
market. Therefore, while Staff considered the fair value rate base information submitted by the 
Company, the fair value rate base information provided should not be given substantial weight in 
this analysis. 

6. LOCAL EXCHANGE CARRIER SPECIFIC ISSUES 

Issues related to the provision of that Local Exchange service are discussed below. I 
1 

6.1 NUMBER PORTABILITY I 
I 

I The Commission has adopted rules to address number portability in a Competitive 
telecommunications services market. Local exchange competition may not be vigorous if 
customers, especially business customers, must change their telephone numbers to take 
advantage of a competitive local exchange carrier’s service offerings. Consistent with federal 
laws, federal rules and A.A.C. R14-2-1308(A), the Applicant shall make number portability 
available to facilitate the ability of a customer to switch between authorized local carriers within 
a given wire center without changing their telephone number and without impairment to quality, 
functionality, reliability or convenience of use. 

, 

~ 

Docket No. T-20783A-114097, In the matter of the application of Zayo Group, LLC, Zayo Bandwidth, LLC and 
Zayo Fiber Solutions, LLC for approval to complete certain Pro Forma Intra-Corporate Transactions, filed February 
25,201 1 
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6.2 PROVISION OF BASIC TELEPHONE SERVICE AND UNIVERSAL SERVICE 

In response to Staff‘s First Set of Data Request, Zayo confirmed its intentions to provide 
services directly to local exchange users. 

The Commission has adopted rules to address universal telephone service in Arizona. 
A.A.C. R14-2- 1204(A) indicates that all telecommunications service providers that interconnect 
into the public switched network shall provide funding for the Arizona Universal Service Fund 
(“AUSF”). The Applicant will make the necessary monthly payments required by A.A.C. R14- 
2-1 204(B). 

6.3 QUALITY OF SERVICE 

Staff believes that the Applicant should be ordered to abide by the quality of service 
standards that were approved by the Commission for Qwest ( W a  USWC) in Docket No. T- 
0105 1B-93-0183 (Decision No. 59421). Because the penalties developed in that docket were 
initiated because Qwest’s level of service was not satisfactory and the Applicant does not have a 
similar history of service quality problems, Staff does not recommend that those penalties apply 
to the Applicant. In the competitive market that the Applicant wishes to enter, the Applicant 
generally will have no market power and will be forced to provide a satisfactory level of service 
or risk losing its customers. Therefore, Staff believes that it is unnecessary to subject the 
Applicant to those penalties at this time. 

6.4 ACCESS TO ALTERNATIVE LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE PROVIDERS 

Staff expects that there will be new entrant providers of local exchange service who will 
install the plant necessary to provide telephone service to, for example, a residential subdivision 
or an industrial park much like existing local exchange companies do today. There may be areas 
where the Applicant installs the only local exchange service facilities. In the interest of 
providing Competitive alternatives to the Applicant’s local exchange service customers, Staff 
recommends that the Applicant be prohibited from barring access to alternative local exchange 
service providers who wish to serve such areas. This way, an alternative local exchange service 
provider may serve a customer if the customer so desires. Access to other providers should be 
provided pursuant to the provisions of the 1996 Telecommunications Act, the rules promulgated 
there under and Commission rules on interconnection and unbundling. 

6.5 91 1 SERVICE 

. .... 

The Commission has adopted rules to address 91 1 and E91 1 services in a competitive 
telecommunications services market. The Applicant has certified that in accordance with A.A.C. 
R14-2-1201(6)(d) and Federal Communications Commission 47 CFR Sections 64.3001 and 
64.3002, it will provide all customers with 911 and E911 service, where available, or will 
coordinate with ILECs and emergency service providers to provide 91 1 and E91 1 service. 

I 
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6.6 CUSTOM LOCAL AREA SIGNALING SERVICES 

Consistent with past Commission decisions, the Applicant may offer Caller ID provided 
that per call and line blocking, with the capability to toggle between blocking and unblocking the 
transmission of the telephone number, are provided as options to which customers could 
subscribe with no charge. Also, Last Call Return service that will not return calls to telephone 
numbers that have the privacy indicator activated, indicating that the number has been blocked, 
must be offered. 

7. REVIEW OF COMPLAINT INFORMATION 

The Applicant states that it has neither had an application for service denied, nor had its 
authority to provide service revoked in any state. There are, and have been, no formal complaint 
proceedings involving the Applicant. There have not been any civil or criminal proceedings 
against the Applicant. Consumer Services reports no complaint history within Arizona. 

The Applicant indicated that none of its officers, directors or partners have been involved 
in any civil or criminal investigations, or any formal or informal complaints. The Applicant also 
indicated that none of its officers, directors or partners have been convicted of any criminal acts 
in the past ten (10) years. Staffs research did not reveal any issues related to the top officers in 
Zayo. 

8. COMPETITIVE SERVICES ANALYSIS 

The Applicant has petitioned the Commission for a determination that the services it is 
seeking to provide should be classified as competitive. 

8.1 COMPETITIVE SERVICES ANALYSIS FOR LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICES 

8.1.1 A description of the general economic conditions that exist, which makes the 
relevant market for the service one that, is competitive. 

The local exchange market that the Applicant seeks to enter is one in which a number of 
CLECs have been authorized to provide local exchange service. Nevertheless, ILECs 
hold a virtual monopoly in the local exchange service market. At locations where ILECs 
provide local exchange service, the Applicant will be entering the market as an 
alternative provider of local exchange service and, as such, the Applicant will have to 
compete with those companies in order to obtain customers. In areas where ILECs do not 
serve customers, the Applicant may have to convince developers to allow it to provide 
service to their developments. 
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8.1.2 

8.1.3 

8.1.4 

8.1.5 

8.1.6 

The number of alternative providers of the service. 

Qwest and various independent LECs are the primary providers of local exchange service 
in the State. Several CLECs and local exchange resellers are also providing local 
exchange service. 

The estimated market share held by each alternative provider of the service. 

Since Qwest and the independent LECs are the primary providers of local exchange 
service in the State, they have a large share of the market. Since the CLECs and local 
exchange resellers have only recently been authorized to offer service they have limited 
market share. 

The names and addresses of any alternative providers of the service that are also 
affiliates of the Applicant, as defined in A.A.C. R14-2-801. 

Currently, Zayo has three affiliates in Arizona as indicated in section 3 of this report - 
Zayo Bandwidth, LLC, Zayo Fiber Solutions, LLC and American Fiber Systems. With 
Commission approval requested in a pending application4 before the Commission, the 
CC&Ns of Zayo Bandwidth, LLC and Zayo Fiber Solutions, LLC will be canceled. 

The ability of alternative providers to make functionally equivalent or substitute 
services readily available at competitive rates, terms and conditions. 

ILECs have the ability to offer the same services that the Applicant has requested in their 
respective service territories. Similarly many of the CLECs and local exchange resellers 
also offer substantially similar services. 

Other indicators of market power, which may include growth and shifts in market 
share, ease of entry and exit, and any affiliation between and among alternative 
providers of the service(s). 

The local exchange service market is: 

a. One in which ILECs own networks that reach nearly every residence and business 
in their service territories and which provide them with a virtual monopoly over 
local exchange service. New entrants are also beginning to enter this market. 

b. One in which new entrants will be dependent upon ILECs: 

1, To terminate traffic to customers. 

Docket No, T-20783A-11-0097, In the matter of the application of Zayo Group, LLC, Zayo Bandwidth, LLC and 
Zayo Fiber Solutions, LLC for approval to complete certain Pro Forma Intra-Corporate Transactions, filed February 
25,201 1 
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2. 

3. For interconnection. 

To provide essential local exchange service elements until the entrant’s own 
network has been built. 

c. One in which ILECs have had an existing relationship with their customers that 
the new entrants will have to overcome if they want to compete in the market and 
one in which new entrants do not have a long history with any customers. 

d. One in which most customers have few, if any choices since there is generally 
only one provider of local exchange service in each service territory. 

e. One in which the Applicant will not have the capability to adversely affect prices 
or restrict output to the detriment of telephone service subscribers. 

9. PRIVATE LINE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE SPECIFIC ISSUES 

Private line service is a direct circuit or channel specifically dedicated to the use of an 
end user organization for the purpose of directly connecting two or more sites in a multi-site 
enterprise. Private line service provides a means by which customers may transmit and receive 
messages and data among various customer locations over facilities operated and provided by the 
Applicant. The Applicant is therefore engaged in providing telecommunications service for hire 
to the public, which fits the definition of a common carrier and a public service corporation. 

The Applicant will be providing service in areas where an incumbent local exchange 
carrier (“ILEC”), along with various competitive local exchange carriers (“CLECs”) and 
interexchange carriers are providing telephone and private line services. Therefore, the 
Applicant would have to compete with those providers in order to obtain subscribers to its 
services. The Applicant would be a new entrant and would face competition from both an 
incumbent provider and other competitive providers in offering service to its potential customers. 
Therefore, the Applicant would generally not be able to exert market power. Private line 
services are highly competitive, thus, the competitive process should result in rates that are just 
and reasonable. 

10. RECOMMENDATIONS 

The following sections contain the StaM‘recommendations on the application for a CC&N 
and the Applicant’s petition for a Commission determination that its proposed services should be 
classified as competitive. 

10.1 RECOMMENDATIONS ON THE APPLICATION FOR A CC&N 

Staff recommends that Applicant’s application for a CC&N to provide intrastate 
telecommunications services, as listed in this Report, be granted. In addition, Staff further 
recommends: 
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1. That the Applicant complies with all Commission Rules, Orders and other requirements 
relevant to the provision of intrastate telecommunications services; 

2. That the Applicant abides by the quality of service standards that were approved by the 
Commission for Qwest in Docket No. T-01051B-93-0183; 

3. That the Applicant be prohibited from barring access to alternative local exchange service 
providers who wish to serve areas where the Applicant is the only provider of local 
exchange service facilities; 

4. That the Applicant be required to notify the Commission immediately upon changes to 
the Applicant’s name, address or telephone number; 

5 .  That the Applicant cooperate with Commission investigations including, but not limited 
to customer complaints; 

6. The rates proposed by this filing are for competitive services. In general, rates for 
competitive services are not set according to rate of return regulation. Zayo‘s projected 
book value or fair value rate base at the end of its first 12 months of operation is 
projected to be $22,500,000. Additionally, Zayo provided a revenue projection of 
$100,000 for its first twelve months of operation. Staff has reviewed the rates to be 
charged by the Applicant and believes they are just and reasonable as they are 
comparable to other providers offering service in Arizona and comparable to the rates the 
Applicant charges in other jurisdictions. The rate to be ultimately charged by the 
Company will be heavily influenced by the market. Therefore, while Staff considered the 
fair value rate base information submitted by the Company, the fair value information 
provided was not given substantial weight in this analysis; 

_._ ~ _ _  . 

7. That the Applicant offer Caller ID with the capability to toggle between blocking and 
unblocking the transmission of the telephone number at no charge; 

8. That the Applicant offer Last Call Return service that will not return calls to telephone 
numbers that have the privacy indicator activated; 

9. Staff further recommends that the Commission authorize the Applicant to discount its 
rates and service charges to the marginal cost of providing the services; 

Staff further recommends that the Applicant be ordered to comply with the following. If 
it does not do so, the Applicant’s CC&N shall be null and void, after due process. I 

1. The Applicant shall docket a conforming tariff for each service within its CC&N 
within 365 days from the date of an Order in this matter or 30 days prior to providing 
service, whichever comes first: 
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2. The Applicant shall: 

a. Procure a performance bond or an ISDLC equal to $100,000. The minimum 
bond or draft amount of $100,000 should be increased if at any time it would 
be insuffcient to cover advances, deposits, andor prepayments collected from 
the Applicant’s customers. The bond or draft amount should be increased in 
increments of $50,000. This increase should occur when the total amount of 
the advances, deposits, and prepayments is within $10,000 of the bond amount 
or ISDLC amount; and 

b. File the original performance bond or ISDLC with the Commission’s Business 
Office and copies of the performance bond or ISDLC with Docket Control, as 
a compliance item in this docket, within 90 days of the effective date of a 
decision in this matter or 10 days before service to end-user customers is 
commenced, whichever comes first. The original performance bond or ISDLC 
must remain in effect until li,uther order of the Commission. The Commission 
may draw on the performance bond or ISDLC, on behalf of, and for the sole 
benefit of the Company’s customers, if the Commission finds, in its discretion, 
that the Company is default of its obligations arising from its Certificate. The 
Commission may use the performance bond or ISDLC funds, as appropriate, to 
protect the Company’s customers and the public interest and take any and all 
actions the Commission deems necessary, in its discretion, including, but not 
limited to returning prepayments or deposits collected from the Company’s 
customers; 

c. Staff also recommends that the Company notify the Commission through a 
compliance filing within 30 days of the commencement of service to end-user 
customers; and 

3. The Applicant shall abide by the Commission adopted rules that address Universal 
Service in Arizona. A.A.C. R14-2-1204(A) indicates that all telecommunications 
service providers that interconnect into the public switched network shall provide 
funding for the Arizona Universal Fund. The Applicant will make the necessary 
monthly payments required by A.A.C. R14-2-1204 (B). 

Furthermore, Staff‘ recommends that approval of the Application be conditioned on the 
following: 

1. That Zayo application be approved based upon its representation to the 
Commission that Zayo will be providing local exchange service directly to end- 
users in Arizona. Should Zayo not provide service directly to end-user customers, 
it shall notify the Commission and file for cancellation its CC&N. 
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10.2 RECOMMENDATION ON THE APPLICANT’S PETITION TO HAVE ITS 
PROPOSED SERVICES CLASSIFIED AS COMPETITIVE 

Staff believes that the Applicant’s proposed services should be classified as competitive. 
There are alternatives to the Applicant’s services. The Applicant will have to convince 
customers to purchase its services, and the Applicant has no ability to adversely affect the local 
exchange or interexchange service markets. Therefore, the Applicant currently has no market 
power in the local exchange or interexchange service markets where alternative providers of 
telecommunications services exist. Staff therefore recommends that the Applicant’s proposed 
services be classified as competitive. 
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